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Chairman’s Statement
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On behalf of the Board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”, each a
“Director”) of Carnival Group International Holdings Limited (the “Company”), I
am pleased to present the annual results of the Company and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2017.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

For the financial year ended 31 December 2017, the Group recorded a consolidated
net profit of approximately HK$525.5 million as compared to the net profit of
approximately HK$49.6 million for the year ended 31 December 2016. The
improvement on the results was mainly due to (i) increase in gross profit of
approximately HK$456.2 million; (ii) increase in other income of approximately
HK$174.6 million; (iii) increase in fair value change on investment properties of
approximately HK$141.8 million; (iv) increase in gain on disposal of subsidiaries
of approximately HK$59.2 million and (v) decrease in selling and marketing
expenses of approximately HK$242.5 million, which was offset by (i) impairment
loss on goodwill of HK$250 million; (ii) increase in administrative expenses
of approximately HK$131.6 million and (iii) increase in income tax expense of

approximately HK$219.7 million.
PROSPECTS

The Directors believe that the Company is the only listed company with a diverse
portfolio of theme-based leisure and consumption businesses that include theme
parks, hotels, outlet shopping for international premium brands, dining, conference
and exhibition centres, leisure, entertainment and recreational facilities in China.
The Group aims to promote the concept of themed experiential leisure and travel by
providing customers with a one-stop experience encompassing different distinctive
themes to capture the opportunities brought about by the increasing affluence and
spending power unleashed by the fast growing middle class in the PRC and the

rapidly growing tourism market in the PRC and overseas.
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Our business model is to attract and retain customers through different themes for
their experiential consumption inside each of our project complexes, including
high-end retail outlet malls, international branded luxurious resort hotels with
wide-ranging amenities and recreational activities, world-class convention centers,
stadiums, theaters, innovative theme parks, varieties of fine restaurants, sports and
entertainment options. We expect that projects designed, developed and managed
by the Group will not only bring new lifestyle concepts to residents and visitors
alike, but will also become the new landmarks in cities where they are located,
due to their superior locations and excellent retail, hospitality, dining, leisure and

entertainment facilities.

The Group is proactively identifying development and acquisition for our core
business as well as other sectors in the PRC and overseas market. Our strategies are
open-minded in respect of different types of development and acquisition which

bring potential growth of the Group.

Looking ahead, the Group’s core business, integrated tourism and leisure projects,
will continue to benefit from the growing tourism market, expanding middle
class and trend towards a consumption-driven economy in the PRC and abroad.
I believe that the Group can fully leverage the uniqueness of our business model
to gain first-mover advantage and seize the opportunities in the industry. We will
consolidate, and further enhance the Group’s leading position in the industry and
strive to become a leading integrated tourism, hospitality and retail services project
developer in PRC and abroad, thereby generating stable, long-term and abundant

investment returns for our shareholders continuously.

We will consolidate, and further enhance the Group’s leading position in the

industry, and strive to optimize the shareholders benefits.

In closing, I would like to express my deep appreciation of our shareholders and
business partners for their exceptional support to the Group. I am also grateful
for our Directors, senior management and staff for their dedicated service and
contributions in the past years. The Group looks forward to their continued support

for the betterment of its business in the years to come.

King Pak Fu

Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 March 2018
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. King Pak Fu, aged 47, was appointed as an executive Director on 10
September 2012 and was appointed as the chairman of the Board on 22 October
2012. He is experienced in property development and corporate management.
Mr. King is currently the chairman and director of Fujian Start Group Co. Ltd. (a
company listed on Shanghai Stock Exchange stock code: 600734).

Mr. Wang Chunning, aged 40, was appointed as an executive Director on 26
October 2017 and was appointed as the vice chairman of the Board on 15 March
2018. He graduated from International Business School of Hunan University
with a Bachelor’s degree of Industrial Foreign Trade in June 2000 and obtained a
degree of Master of Management from The Faculty of Commerce and Business
Administration of The University of British Columbia in May 2005. Mr. Wang
served as the product manager in the trade and finance department of the head
office of China Minsheng Banking Corporation Limited from October 2006 to June
2012. He served as general manager in the finance department, structure and lever
financing department and ship finance department of China Minsheng Banking
Corporation Limited Hong Kong Branch respectively from June 2012 to December
2015, where he was responsible for financing for overseas merge and acquisition
and large-scale projects. He joined Shanghai branch of Evergrowing Bank Co., Ltd.
in January 2016 and served as governor assistant from May 2016 to September
2017, where he was responsible for corporate business. Mr. Wang has over 15 years

of experience in finance.

Mr. Wu Yangqi, aged 48, was appointed as an executive Director and the chief
executive officer of the Company on 15 March 2018. He graduated from Shandong
Economics University with a Bachelor’s degree of Economics in Planning Statistics
in July 1993 and obtained an Executive Master of Business Administration from
College of Business Administration of Xiamen University in September 2015.
Before joining the Group, he worked for Industrial and Commercial Bank of
China from July 1993 to April 2000 and was responsible for project financing
for transportation and energy industry. He worked for China Merchants Bank
from April 2000 to March 2018 and held various senior positions including
general manager of real estate finance headquarters in China Merchants Bank
Shenzhen Branch and was responsible for provision of loan financing to real
estate companies. His last position in China Merchants Bank was Taiyuan Branch
assistant governor and he was responsible for financial services, investment banking

and asset management. Mr. Wu has over 25 years of experience in finance.
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Mr. Gong Xiao Cheng, aged 34, was appointed as an executive Director on 7
March 2012. He is also a member of the nomination committee of the Company.
He holds a Bachelor’s degree of Finance, Accounting and Management from
University of Nottingham in United Kingdom and a Master’s degree of Real Estate
Economics and Finance from London School of Economics and Politics Science.

Mr. Wang Yikun, aged 45, was appointed as an executive Director on 3 February
2017. He obtained a Master’s degree of Business Administration from Antai
College of Economies and Management, Shanghai Jiao Tong University in 2002.
Mr. Wang worked in the National Mold Research Engineering Center* ( B ZHH
T FEWF5E H 0) of Shanghai Jiao Tong University from 1996 to 2000. Mr. Wang
has served as the investment manager, vice president and secretary of the board in
Shanghai Mingyuan Group* ( |- $5 Ji 42 ) , Xincaifu Industries Investment
Group* ( H B & E £ & £ M) and Sichuan Crun Co., Ltd. respectively
from 2001 to 2007. Mr. Wang has served as the managing director and sponsor
representative of the investment banking division of Minsheng Securities Co.,
Ltd. since October 2007. Mr. Wang has over 15 years of experience in finance,

investment and investment banking.

Mr. Li Jing, aged 44, was appointed as an executive Director on 15 March 2018.
He graduated from Southwest Jiaotong University with a Bachelor’s degree
of Architecture in July 1997. He has over 20 years of experience in property
development. Before joining the Group, Mr. Li worked in Sunac China Holdings
Limited from March 2009 to December 2014, where he served as the general
manager of research and development center and Hangzhou regional deputy general
manager. Mr. Li served as the vice president and Beijing regional general manager
in Tahoe Group Co., Ltd., where he was responsible for property development and
management, from January 2015 to November 2016. Mr. Li served as the group
president assistant, vice president of urban housing division in China Fortune
Land Development Co., Ltd. and Beijing regional business division general
manager of China Fortune Characteristic Town Group* ( 3 & j& 3 /N 45 4] )
from November 2016 to September 2017. Mr. Li is also the president of property

development division of the Group.

* for identification purpose only
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chan Wai Cheung Admiral, aged 44, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director on 10 December 2014. He is also the chairman of each of the
audit committee, the remuneration committee and the nomination committee of
the Company. He holds a Bachelor of Arts (Honours) in Accountancy from City
University of Hong Kong. He is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants. He has extensive experience in accounting and auditing field. Mr.
Admiral Chan is an independent non-executive director of SFund International
Holdings Limited (formerly known as Hanbo Enterprises Holdings Limited) (stock
code: 1367; a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange) and Zhong
Ao Home Group Limited (stock code: 1538; a company listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange) and a non-executive director of China Nonferrous Metals
Company Limited (stock code: 8306; a company listed on the GEM of the Stock
Exchange). He was appointed as an independent non-executive director of Energy
International Investments Holdings Limited (stock code: 353; a company listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange) in March 2012 and was re-designated as
an executive director in November 2013. He was also appointed as an independent
non-executive director of Jia Meng Holdings Limited (stock code: 8101; a company
listed on the GEM of the Stock Exchange) from September 2013 to May 2016.

Mr. Lie Chi Wing, aged 40, was appointed as an independent non-executive
Director on 5 February 2015. He is also a member of each of the audit committee
and the remuneration committee of the Company. He holds a Bachelor Degree of
Business Administration (First Class Honors) from The Hong Kong University of
Science and Technology. He is a fellow member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants and a practicing member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. He is also a Chartered Financial Analyst. Mr. Lie
has extensive experience in auditing and corporate advisory services with major
international accounting firms. He is currently the company secretary of China
Water Affairs Group Limited, a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock

Exchange.
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Ms. Hu Gin Ing, aged 59, was appointed as an independent non-executive Director
on 16 December 2013. She is also a member of each of the audit committee, the
remuneration committee and the nomination committee of the Company. Ms.
Hu holds a master degree in business administration from Florida International
University, United States of America (“U.S.A.”), a master degree in sciences from
Barry University, U.S.A. and a bachelor degree from National Taiwan University,
major in foreign language. Ms. Hu is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and a member of the American Institute of Certified
Public Accountants in U.S.A. Ms. Hu currently holds the position of Corp. CFO,
Global Finance, of Acer Incorporated, a company listed on the Taiwan Stock
Exchange. Ms. Hu has been a director of NHL CPA Ltd., Hong Kong since
January 2005. She has been an independent non-executive director of Enterprise
Development Holdings Limited (HK.1808) since March 2011, an independent
non-executive director of Superactive Group Company Limited (formerly known
as United Pacific Industries Limited) (HK.176) since November 2013 and an
independent non-executive director of LVGEM (China) Real Estate Investment
Company Limited (HK.95) since May 2014. She was an independent director
of Arich Enterprise Co. Ltd. (TW.4173), a company listed on the Taiwan Stock
Exchange from December 2012 to June 2015. She has over 23 years of experience

in accounting and finance.
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CORPORATE OVERVIEW

The Group is principally engaged in the theme-based leisure and consumption
business, focusing on the design, development and operation of integrated large-
scale tourist complex projects in key cities in and outside the People’s Republic
of China (the “PRC”) that comprise of theme parks, hotels, shopping and leisure

facilities, as well as other theme based consumption.
BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group’s flagship project, Rio Carnival (Qingdao) is located in the Phoenix
Island Tourist Resort Zone in Huangdao District, Qingdao city, Shandong province
in the PRC and occupies an aggregate site area of approximately 350,000 square
metres (“sq.m.”) with a total GFA of approximately 800,000 sq.m.. The Group
believes that Rio Carnival (Qingdao) will be one of the first large-scale integrated
commercial, residential and tourism complexes of its kind in China. It will include
indoor and outdoor underwater ocean exploration theme parks, an upscale luxury
hotel “Renaissance” and a service apartment “Marriott Executive Apartment”
(cooperating with Marriott International, with more than a thousand hotel rooms),
an international premium brand outlet shopping mall, themed-street restaurant
dining, a convention centre, performance squares for performances, concerts, sports
matches and parades, and a world-class entertainment complex featuring the largest
Lego education experience centre in China, one of the newest and largest DMAX
cinema complexes in China (Jackie Chan Cinema), an indoor ice skating centre and
a large sea-view Ferris wheel. It is our aim for Rio Carnival (Qingdao) to become

one of the China’s premier tourist destinations.

The outlet has commenced operations and other facilities will be opened in phases.
As part of its business model, the Group also develops and sells high-end coastal
residential properties adjacent to its theme park, outlet mall and hotels in Rio
Carnival (Qingdao). The residential properties occupy an aggregate site area of

approximately 126,000 sq.m. with a total GFA of approximately 350,000 sq.m..
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During the year, the Group completed the acquisition of 100% equity interests in
a company and its subsidiaries (the “Duoliwei Group”). The Duoliwei Group is
principally engaged in property development and it owns the land use right of a
piece of land in Laoshan, Qingdao, the PRC (the “Laoshan Land”). The Laoshan
Land occupies an aggregate site area of approximately 44,400 sq.m. with a total
GFA of approximately 111,000 sq.m.. The planning and construction content
includes high-end coastal residential properties in contemporary loft design, a

harbour side luxe hotel and upscale commercial properties.

In late 2016, the Group acquired a property in Hong Kong with the site area of
approximately 50,000 square feet. The property is located at Southern District,
one of the most prestigious luxury residential areas in Hong Kong. The Directors
believe that, in view of the demands in luxury residential property market in
Hong Kong, together with the Group’s experience in real estate projects in the
PRC, the acquisition of the property will allow the Group to capture future capital
appreciation. The property has commenced initial reconstruction in late 2017 and is

expected to be ready-for-sale in 2019.

During the year, the Company as purchaser entered into a purchase agreement
with two independent third parties, pursuant to which the Company shall acquire a
property comprises of freehold lands located in Vancouver of Canada with a total
area of approximately 41,573 square feet and buildings on the lands (the “Canada
Property”) for an aggregate consideration of Canadian dollars of 245,000,000. The
Canada Property is planned to be developed into a luxury residential condominium
complex. On 20 December 2017, the Company has introduced strategic partner
to jointly develop the Canada Property under the purchase agreement. Further
details are set out in the announcements of the Company dated 26 September 2017
and 20 December 2017 published on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company.

During the year, the Group acquired 99.01% equity interests of Excel Access Group
Limited (“Excel Access”, together with its subsidiaries, the “Excel Access Group™).
The Excel Access Group is principally engaged in property development in Beijing.
Further details of the acquisition are set out on page 18 under the section headed

“Material Acquisitions or Disposals” in the Management Discussion and Analysis.

During the year, the Company disposed of the operation of restaurant chain under
the brand of “Golden Jaguar” to an independent third party. Further details of the
disposal are set out on page 19 under the section headed “Material Acquisitions or

Disposals” in the Management Discussion and Analysis.
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The Group is engaged in the business of organising and operating touring carnival
and other related business. During the year, the Directors have reviewed the
business strategy of the Group, and decided to be more focusing on the integrated
large-scale tourist complex project and property development. In order to diversify
the concentration risk and currency risk, besides the property markets in the
mainland China and Hong Kong, the Directors expect to explore more in other
geographical locations in the overseas property market. The Group will invest more

resources in this segment.

During the year, the Group derived most of its revenue from the following

segments:
Property Development and Investment

Revenue from the Group’s property development and investment was
approximately HK$1,699.9 million for the year ended 31 December 2017,
compared to HK$1,187.3 million for the year ended 31 December 2016. For the
year ended 31 December 2017, the revenue was mostly derived from the sale of

residential units of the completed properties in Qingdao and Chengdu in the PRC.

Catering Business

Revenue from the Group’s catering business was approximately HK$134.3 million
for the year ended 31 December 2017, compared to HK$502.2 million for the
year ended 31 December 2016. The revenue was derived from the operation of
restaurants providing buffet, banquet, exquisite dining and related service by

Golden Jaguar which was disposed during the year.
Trading and Investment business

The Group invested in Hong Kong’s listed securities and financial instruments as

short-term and medium-term investments.

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group recorded net realised gains and
unrealised gains on investments of approximately HK$279.9 million, compared
to HK$197.6 million for the year ended 31 December 2016 and received dividend
income from listed investment of approximately HK$29.4 million, compared to
HK$0.3 million for the year ended 31 December 2016.

As of 31 December 2017, securities investments was approximately HK$1,602.4
million, compared to HK$274.4 million as of 31 December 2016, of which each

investment is less than 2% of the total assets for both years.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Financial Results

S 5 ]
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Earnings per share 5 I 78
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13.4%
80.4%
219.0%

100%
100%

For the financial year ended 31 December 2017, the Group recorded a consolidated
net profit of approximately HK$525.5 million as compared to the net profit
of approximately HK$49.6 million for the year ended 31 December 2016.
The improvement on the results is mainly due to (i) increase in gross profit of
approximately HK$456.2 million; (ii) increase in other income of approximately
HK$174.6 million; (iii) increase in fair value change on investment properties of
approximately HK$141.8 million; (iv) increase in gain on disposal of subsidiaries
of approximately HK$59.2 million and (v) decrease in selling and marketing
expenses of approximately HK$242.5 million, which was offset by (i) impairment
loss on goodwill of HK$250 million; (ii) increase in administrative expenses
of approximately HK$131.6 million and (iii) increase in income tax expense of

approximately HK$219.7 million.
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Capital Structure, Liquidity and Financial Resources

As at 31 December 2017, the authorised share capital of the Company was
HK$10,000.0 million divided into 50,000,000,000 shares of HK$0.2 each and
the issued share capital of the Company was approximately HK$4,294.4 million
divided into 21,472,160,585 shares of HK$0.2 each. As at 31 December 2017, the
current assets and current liabilities of the Group were approximately HK$14,989.1
million (2016: approximately HK$12,262.1 million) and approximately
HK$12,377.0 million (2016: approximately HK$6,913.1 million) respectively.
The liquidity ratio, which is calculated as current assets over current liabilities,
was approximately 1.21 times as at 31 December 2017, as compared to that of
approximately 1.77 times as at 31 December 2016. The decrease in liquidity ratio
was mainly due to the increase in current portions of borrowings and convertible
bonds falling due in 2018.

The Group’s total assets and total liabilities as at 31 December 2017 amounted to
approximately HK$29,518.4 million (2016: approximately HK$25,147.4 million)
and approximately HK$17,768.9 million (2016: approximately HK$16,395.3
million) respectively. The debt ratio, which is calculated based on total liabilities
over total assets, was approximately 0.60 times as at 31 December 2017, as

compared to that of approximately 0.65 times as at 31 December 2016.

The cash and bank deposits (including pledged bank deposits) as at 31 December
2017 were approximately HK$1,659.5 million (2016: approximately HK$2,307.0
million). The decrease was mainly due to the increase in project investments and

investments in financial assets during the year ended 31 December 2017.
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As at 31 December 2017, the net debt to equity ratio of the Group, expressed as a
percentage of borrowings and debts (including obligation under finance lease and
convertible bonds) net of cash and bank deposits (including pledged bank deposits)
over total equity, was approximately 90.6% (2016: approximately 99.0%). The
decrease in net debt to equity ratio was mainly due to the issuance of right shares

and waiver of convertible bonds during the year ended 31 December 2017.

On 6 April 2017, the Company, as issuer, entered into a conditional subscription
agreement with China Huarong Macau (HK) Investment Holdings Limited (“China
Huarong”), as subscriber, pursuant to which the Company issued 6.5% secured
convertible bonds on 18 April 2017 in a principal amount of HK$390 million
(the “CBs”). The CBs will become due on the business day falling on the third
anniversary of the issue date, i.e. 20 April 2020. The CBs bear interest at a rate
of 6.5% per annum, payable semi-annually. Each of Mr. King Pak Fu and Joyous
Investment Holdings Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered
into a guarantee in favour of China Huarong to unconditionally and irrevocably
guarantee the due and punctual payment of all sums expressed to be payable by
the Company under the CBs and the CBs instrument. The closing price per share
on 5 April 2017 was HK$0.83. The proceeds raised from the issuance of the CBs
of approximately HK$376.3 million were used as (i) approximately HK$140.5
million for principal repayments and interest payments of borrowings; (ii)
approximately HK$215 million for the acquisition of Hong Kong — listed securities
and other financial instruments; and (iii) approximately HK$20.8 million for
corporate operating expenses. On 22 December 2017, China Huarong agreed to
unconditionally and irrevocably waive their conversion rights attaching to the CBs.
All the conversion rights attaching to the CBs were irrevocably and unconditionally

waived and cancelled and the CBs became non-convertible debt securities.

On 4 May 2017, the Company entered into a placing agreement with Yue Xiu
Securities Limited as placing agent, pursuant to which the Company agreed to
place, through the placing agent, on a best efforts basis, up to 300,000,000 new
shares to placee(s) at the placing price of HK$0.80 per placing share. The closing
price on 4 May 2017 was HK$0.80 per share. The Company issued 300,000,000
shares on 17 May 2017 and raised net proceeds of approximately HK$237.0
million. The net proceeds raised were used as (i) approximately HK$195 million for
the acquisition of Hong Kong listed securities and other financial instruments; and

(ii) approximately HK$42 million for corporate operating expenses.
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On 8 May 2017, the Company, as issuer, entered into a conditional placing
agreement with Emperor Securities Limited who acted as the placing agent. The
placing agent agreed to procure purchasers to purchase senior bonds to be issued by
the Company in a principal amount of up to HK$300 million in multiple tranches
(the “Bonds”). Pursuant to the placing agreement, the Bonds are transferable in
whole multiples of HK$500,000 or such lesser amount as may represent the entire
principal amount thereof. Part of the Bonds, amounting to HK$260 million was
issued on 16 May 2017, whereas the remaining part of the Bonds amounting to
HK$40 million was issued on 2 June 2017. The Bonds will become due on the date
immediately following two years after the first issue of the Bonds. The Bonds bear
interest at a rate of 6% per annum, payable annually in arrears. For the financial
year ended 31 December 2017, the Company issued aggregate principal amount of
HK$300 million of the Bonds.

On 23 June 2017, the Company as issuer and Convoy Investment Services Limited
as placing agent entered into two placing agreements pursuant to which the placing
agent agreed to act as placing agent, on a best efforts basis, for the purposes of
arranging placees to subscribe for the 3-year 5.25% unlisted bonds and the 4-year,
4 and half-year, 5 and half-year and 7 and half-year 6% unlisted bonds up to an
aggregate principal amount of HK$400 million. For the financial year ended 31
December 2017, the Company issued the bonds in the aggregate principal amount
of HK$157 million.

On 15 August 2017, the Company announced and proposed to implement a
rights issue on the basis of one rights share for every four existing shares held on
the record date at the subscription price of HK$0.4 per rights share (the “Rights
Issue™). All conditions set out in the underwriting agreement in relation to the
Rights Issue have been fulfilled and the Rights Issue became unconditional on
26 September 2017. A total of 4,294,432,117 rights shares were allotted and
issued on 28 September 2017. The gross proceeds raised from the Rights Issue
were approximately HK$1,718 million. Based on the subscription results, the
Rights Issue was under-subscribed by 297,581,501 rights shares, representing
approximately 6.93% of the total number of rights shares offered under the Rights
Issue. The net proceeds raised from the Rights Issue of approximately HK$1,679
million were used as (i) approximately HK$195 million invested in a residential
properties real estate project in Shunyi District, Beijing; (ii) approximately HK$172
million invested in a luxury residential condominium complex real estate project
in West Georgia Street, Vancouver, British Columbia, Canada; (iii) approximately
HK$169 million for corporate operating expenses; (iv) approximately HK$1,119
million for principal repayments and interest payments of borrowings; and (v)

approximately HK$24 million for general and administrative expenses.
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On 20 December 2017, the Company and BFT Acquisition Guernsey L.P. Inc.,
the holder of the exchangeable and convertible bonds in the aggregate principal
amount of HK$240,740,000 issued by the Company on 17 June 2015, entered
into a written agreement, which provides, among others, (i) the principal amount
of the exchangeable and convertible bonds were reduced to HK$72,500,000 and
(ii) the remaining HK$168,240,000 in principal amount of the exchangeable and
convertible bonds were irrevocably and unconditionally cancelled, terminated and

discharged in full.

As of 31 December 2017, the Group’s PRC subsidiaries have total external
borrowings of approximately HK$4,940.1 million of which approximately
HK$2,894.9 million are secured by land-use rights, properties held by the
subsidiaries and personal guarantee provided by the Company’s Chairman, Mr.
King Pak Fu.

The Group’s certain PRC subsidiaries entered into financing agreements
including guarantees or security agreements with various PRC banks and financial
institutions. These loans have original terms ranging from 12 months to 36 months

and secured by pledged bank deposits of the Group.

The principal amounts outstanding under these loans in the PRC generally bear
interest at fixed rates calculated by reference to the relevant bank’s benchmark
interest rate for such loans. Interest payments are payable on either monthly or
quarterly basis and must be made on each payment date as provided in the particular

loan agreement.
FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

Substantially all of the Group’s sales and operating costs are denominated in the
functional currency of each individual group entity i.e. Renminbi and Hong Kong
dollar. As at 31 December 2017, except for the borrowings of principal amount of
US$447.5 million by the Company are denominated in United States Dollar, other
borrowings or share placements denominated in the functional currency of each
individual group entity. Accordingly, the Directors consider that the currency risk
is low to moderate. The Group currently does not have a formal currency hedging
policy in relation to currency risk. The Directors monitor the Group’s exposure on

an on-going basis and will consider hedging the currency risk should the need arise.
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CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had no material contingent liabilities.

CHARGES ON THE GROUP’S ASSETS

As at 31 December 2017, the Group’s certain land-use rights, properties, bank
deposits and equity securities listed in Hong Kong of approximately HK$22,311.5
million (2016: approximately HK$18,246.8 million) were pledged to banks and

other financial institutions to secure certain loan facilities granted to the Group.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS OR DISPOSALS
Acquisition of Excel Access

On 28 November 2017, Rising Alliance Investment Group Limited (the “Investor”),
a direct wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, Mr. King Pak Fu (“Mr.
King”), Astute King Limited (“Astute King”), and Excel Access, entered into a
shares subscription agreement (the “Share Subscription Agreement”), pursuant to
which, (a) the Investor conditionally agreed to subscribe for 100 ordinary shares,
representing all the ordinary shares in the issued share capital of Excel Access (the
“Subscription”); and (b) Astute King agreed to convert 1 ordinary share of Excel
Access, into 1 non-voting deferred share of Excel Access (the “Deferred Share

Conversion”).

The aggregate consideration for the transactions under the Share Subscription
Agreement (the “Transaction”) was HK$300,000,780, comprising (a) HK$780 for
the Subscription; and (b) HK$300,000,000 for the Deferred Share Conversion.

Excel Access through its subsidiaries owns a land located at Shunyi District,
Beijing, the PRC, with a total site area of approximately 14,144.1 sq.m. (the
“Beijing Property”). The Beijing Property is planned to be developed into
residential properties with a total GFA of approximately 45,287.3 sq.m.. On 28
November 2017, demonstration zone of the construction was completed and the

foundation construction was suspended at maintenance status.
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The Transaction was completed on 13 December 2017. Upon completion, (a) the
Company was interested in approximately 99.01% equity interest in Excel Access;
(b) Excel Access became an indirect non wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
and the Company had full control over the Excel Access Group; and (c) the financial
results of Excel Access was since then consolidated into the financial statements of

the Group.
Disposal of Nice Race Management Limited

On 22 December 2017, the Company, Nice Race Management Limited (the
“Disposal Company”), a then direct wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
which engages in the operation of restaurant chain under the brand of “Golden
Jaguar” through its subsidiaries (the “Disposal Group”), and Basic Astute Limited
(“Basic Astute™) as an independent third party investor, entered into a shares
subscription agreement, pursuant to which, (a) Basic Astute conditionally agreed
to subscribe for 100,000 ordinary shares, representing all the issued ordinary
shares of the Disposal Company (the “Subscription Shares™) at the consideration of
USD100; and (b) the Company agreed to convert 30,612,451,020 ordinary shares
of the Disposal Company into 1 non-voting deferred share at the consideration of
HK$280,000,000 (the “Disposal”).

The subscription of new ordinary shares and conversion into non-voting deferred
share was completed on 28 December 2017. Upon completion, (a) the Group was
interested in approximately 0.001% in the Disposal Company; (b) the Disposal
Group ceased to be subsidiaries of the Company; and (c) the financial results of
the Disposal Group was no longer consolidated into the financial statements of the

Group and the operation of Golden Jaguar was disposed to Basic Astute.

The Group recorded a gain of approximately HK$313.3 million on the Disposal.
The Directors consider that the Disposal represents an opportunity for the Company
to realise its investment in the Disposal Group and deploy its resources into other

business segments which may generate better return to the Group.

Save as disclosed above and in Notes 35 to 37 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group did not have any other material acquisitions and disposals
of subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures during the year ended 31 December
2017.
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EMPLOYEE INFORMATION

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had 719 employees (31 December 2016: 1,891
employees). The employees of the Group are remunerated in accordance with their
work experience, performance and prevailing industry practices. The remuneration
policy and package of the Group are periodically reviewed by the management.
For the year ended 31 December 2017, the total staff costs of the Group were
approximately HK$231.3 million (2016: approximately HK$255.8 million),
representing a decrease of approximately 9.6% over the corresponding period of
2016. The decrease in staff cost was mainly due to the elimination of a number of

restaurants of Golden Jaguar and the disposal of Nice Race Group during the year.
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Salaries and other benefits H A HAb A 299,402

Contributions to retirement benefit schemes IR AR A 5 4k 2k 21,605
Equity settled share-based payment DLRE %% 45 SR 32 A =2 kI (65,168)

Total employee benefits expense 12 B @A b S A 255,839

DIVIDEND

The Board resolved not to recommend any dividend for the year ended 31
December 2017 (2016: Nil).

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 22 January 2018, the Company entered into a placing agreement with Yue
Xiu Securities Company Limited as placing agent, pursuant to which the placing
agent conditionally agreed with the Company to use its best effort, as agent of the
Company, to place up to 2,200,000,000 new shares to not less than six placees in
total at the placing price of HK$0.355 per share. The closing price on 22 January
2018 was HK$0.36 per share. The Company issued 2,200,000,000 shares on 2
February 2018 and raised net proceeds of approximately HK$779 million.
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The Company is committed to maintain good corporate governance standard and
procedures to ensure the integrity, transparency and quality of disclosure in order to

enhance the shareholders’ value.
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company has adopted the code provisions set out in the Corporate Governance
Code (“CG Code™) as set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) as its own code of corporate

governance.

Under CG Code provision A.2.1, the roles of the Chairman and the Chief Executive
Officer should be separated and should not be performed by the same individual.
The two positions were previously taken up by Mr. King Pak Fu. Upon the
appointment of Mr. Wang Chunning as the chief executive officer of the Company
in place of Mr. King on 26 October 2017, the two positions were since then be

separated.

Under CG Code provision D.1.4, the Company should have formal letters of
appointment for directors setting out the key terms and conditions of their
appointment. The Company did not have formal letter of appointment for Mr. Tsai
Tson. However, he shall be subject to retirement by rotation in accordance with
the Bye-Laws. In addition, he has followed the guidelines set out in “A Guide
on Directors’ Duties” issued by the Companies Registry and “Guidelines for
Directors” and “Guide for Independent Non-Executive Directors” (if applicable)
published by the Hong Kong Institute of Directors in performing his duties and
responsibilities as Directors. Besides, he actively complies with the requirements
under statute and common law, the Listing Rules, legal and other regulatory
requirements and the Company’s business and governance policies. Mr. Tsai Tson

resigned as Director on 4 October 2017.

Save as aforesaid, in the opinion of the Directors, during the year ended 31
December 2017, the Company was in compliance with all code provisions set out in
the CG Code.
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DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the code of conduct regarding directors’ securities
transactions as set out in the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
of Listed Issuers (“Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules.
Having made specific enquiry of all Directors, the Company confirmed that all
Directors have complied with the required standard set out in the Model Code
throughout the year ended 31 December 2017.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the Company, and is
responsible for setting up the overall strategy and policies of the Group, reviewing
the operation and financial performance, reviewing and monitoring the Group’s
financial control and risk management systems. The Board reserved for its decision
or consideration matters covering overall Group strategy, major acquisitions
and disposals, annual budgets, annual and interim results, recommendations on
Directors’ appointment or re-appointment, approval of major capital transactions
and other significant operational and financial matters. The management was
delegated the authority and responsibility by the Board for the daily management of
the Group. In addition, the Board has also delegated various responsibilities to the

Board committees. Further details of these committees are set out in this report.

The Board currently consists of nine Directors including six executive Directors and

three independent non-executive Directors:

Executive Directors

Mr. King Pak Fu (Chairman)

Mr. Wang Chunning (Vice Chairman)
Mr. Wu Yanqi (Chiet Executive Officer)
Mr. Gong Xiao Cheng

Mr. Wang Yikun

Mr. Li Jing

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Chan Wai Cheung Admiral

Mr. Lie Chi Wing

Ms. Hu Gin Ing

Aoy ) AR AN OB B kT PR B R AT A
P AT R 2R 28 S BB R AT ) (TR S S D) B A
I B o520 AT O 2C B Y R o U o g 2 o AR
WA EERR AAAER 2MEFRBEE-ZR
—HaE A Z A RS B A S BT
AL B -

Y

AT R HIA AT T AR
0 SR W T TSR > A R e S B AR B - TR B K
B 8 A 5 A 1Y B 75 4 o) e R i A L o) € o A 4R [
TSR~ 2 SO R A AR BT AR R I
BBREEREHBCHES - BEEAR G Z
B U At TR W A6 I S 5 O B R R b
RKEE - HHEEEFAREARAREZ AW
Bl EEGRORESEEZTRTRETHH
Wt - A EH TG ZE P ORI AR -

FEHRYBRH LA EFAR - QFHEAZRITES L
ZABILIERATE

PuAT AR

REFRE (EH)
WEHRELAE (FLH)
RAER e (fTR A )
RS
ER I e

ER ek

B I AT
It ft 8 Sl A
FERRSA
WL+



FEAE B R TR F] | 20174F 8t

Corporate Governance Report
e JERTEE e

The Board members have no financial, business, family or other material/relevant
relationships with each other. Such balanced Board composition is formed to
ensure strong independence exists across the Board. The composition of the Board
reflects the balanced skills and experience for effective leadership. The biographical
information of the Directors are set out on pages 6 to 9 under the section headed

“Biographies of Directors”.
Directors’ Training

According to the code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code, all directors should
participate in continuous professional development to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills to ensure that their contribution to the board remains informed

and relevant.

All Directors have participated in continuous professional development and
provided a record of training they received for the financial year ended 31

December 2017 to the Company.

The individual training record of each Director received for the year ended 31

December 2017 is summarised below:

B W B R K bk
MEBER EFaz @G wREFTZ
e JEE B8 S o o A BRI 4 R B A IR T
15 > AT AR A S - o 2 R RO S 6 L A
OH [EHMIE] —fi-

Hgr 2 5l

ML A S ATIR S I Z P AU BRSO A6 SR BLAE > BT F
o E 2 R A R N - B M R L e M b
HE > DA DR A0 45 1) 3 55 o7 A o 0 Bl 2 K -

ZMERYC 2R 3 O A RA R R
BWEREEZR - LFE T ZH =+ H LB
JEE 4% 52 3% 9l Z Fe Bk o

BRE-Z-LET A= —HILFEENEERE
32 Z AN 35 9 G SR E At F

Attending or
participating in
seminars/
reading materials
relevant to the
director’s duties

WS m#EF
FAEAH B D&
Name of Directors WYL I3 W R A
Executive Directors Hir
Mr. King Pak Fu (Chairman) BHFRA (EE) v
Mr. Wang Chunning (Vice Chairman) EEERE (AEH) v
Mr. Wu Yanqi (Chief Executive Officer) RAER I (1TBA#)

(appointed on 15 March 2018) (RZF—NFE=ZH T HEZF) N/A A
Mr. Gong Xiao Cheng R Se AR 4
Mr. Wang Yikun ER e A 4
Mr. Li Jing (appointed on 15 March 2018) BR (B =F—NE=H 1T HEZE) N/A 7
Independent Non-executive Directors B HEHAT d T
Mr. Chan Wai Cheung Admiral R A 5 e A v
M. Lie Chi Wing Y 3 v/
Ms. Hu Gin Ing [N e 4
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Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code requires that the responsibilities between the
chairman and the chief executive officer should be segregated. The two positions
were previously taken up by Mr. King Pak Fu. Upon the appointment of Mr. Wang
Chunning as the chief executive officer of the Company in place of Mr. King on 26

October 2017, the two positions were since then be separated.

On 15 March 2018, Mr. Wang resigned as chief executive officer of the Company

and Mr. Wu Yanqi was appointed as the chief executive officer of the Company.

Up to the date of this report, Mr. King is in charge of the management of the Board
and strategic planning of the Group. Mr. Wu is responsible for the day-to-day
management of the Group’s business. The Company considered that the division
of responsibilities between the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer is clearly
established.

Non-executive Directors

The independent non-executive Directors are appointed for a specific term and
they are also subject to the retirement by rotation at least once every three years in

accordance with the Bye-Laws.

The three independent non-executive Directors are persons of high caliber, with
academic and professional qualifications in the fields of accounting and finance.
With their experience gained from various sectors, they provide strong support
towards the effective discharge of the duties and responsibilities of the Board.
Each independent non-executive Director gives an annual confirmation of his/
her independence to the Company, and the Company considered each of them is

independent under Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
Board Diversity Policy

The Board adopted a Board Diversity Policy on 23 August 2013 (the “Board
Diversity Policy”) which sets out the approach to achieve diversity on the Board.
The Company recognises that increasing diversity at the Board level will support
the attainment of the Company’s strategic objectives and sustainable development.
The Company seeks to achieve Board diversity through the consideration of a
number of factors, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of
service. The Company will also take into consideration its own business model and
specific needs from time to time in determining the optimal composition of the
Board.
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The Board delegated certain duties under the Board Diversity Policy to the
Nomination Committee. The Nomination Committee will discuss and review the
necessity to set any measurable objectives for implementing the Policy from time to
time to ensure their appropriateness and the progress made towards achieving those

objectives will be ascertained.

The Nomination Committee will review the Board Diversity Policy, as appropriate,

to ensure its continued effectiveness from time to time.
Board Meetings

The Board has four scheduled meetings a year at approximately quarterly interval
and additional meetings will be held as and when required. The four scheduled
Board meetings for a year are planned in advance. During the regular meetings
of the Board, the Board reviewed the operation and financial performance and

reviewed and approved the annual and interim results.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Board held 13 meetings. All
Directors were given an opportunity to include any matters in the agenda for
regular Board meetings, and were given sufficient time to review documents and

information relating to matters to be discussed in Board meetings in advance.
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Number of

attendance
Name of Directors WA W f K
Executive Directors A7 H
Mr. King Pak Fu (Chairman) BHZRE (FF) 7/13
Mr. Wang Chunning (Vice Chairman) Mo« WHESEE (A R) 3/4
Mr. Wu Yanqi (Chief Executive Officer) N RAIERE e (T A #) () N/A 7386 F
Mr. Gong Xiao Cheng BB Sk 12/13
Mr. Meng Cai e T Se A (i) N/A A3
Mr. Wang Yikun ER e A 11/13
M. Tsai Tson Nt R Se s (Wi 2/9
Mr. Li Jing Mo ZE I Se A () N/A A jE
Independent Non-executive Directors Bk I AT
Mr. Chan Wai Cheung Admiral R 8 5 e A 13/13
Mr. Lie Chi Wing BT i 8/13
Ms. Hu Gin Ing R+ 12/13
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Notes: it
1. Mr. Wang Chunning was appointed as an executive Director on 26 October 2017, 1. EHRSERER R -CE T A ANAERER
4 meetings were held during his tenure of office in 2017. AT R A =T — AR - 8 AT YK
LR
2. Mr. Wu Yanqi was appointed as an executive Director on 15 March 2018. 2. REREAR R EEH T I EREL
i
3. Mr. Meng Cai resigned on 9 February 2017, no Board meeting was held before 3. WA SN R — LA AL BHE R ERHE
his resignation in 2017. [ Sl YU R =
4. Mr. Tsai Tson was appointed as an executive Director on 8 February 2017 and 4. BABER T LEZH N A ERE AT E
resigned on 4 October 2017, 9 Board Meetings were held during his tenure of E jﬁéﬁ@:ig‘bﬁ‘:+ﬂ VY H AR > 1 8 A 5 200
office. BT LRI Tk
5. Mr. Li Jing was appointed as an executive Director on 15 March 2018. 3.

gi%im:$~/\$EE I AR BT

Board minutes are kept by the Company Secretary and are open for inspection
by the Directors. Every Board member is entitled to have access to Board papers
and related materials and has unrestricted access to the advice and services of the
Company Secretary, and has the liberty to seek external professional advice if so
required.

Ik A Bk p 4 R B R AT > 3 T it A
B o 5 44 o 7 H A A B S SOpE R B
OB > I8 ] A5 A 52 B T O 4 W B o 2 R R
B> ML T B S ORAM R MR

Appropriate insurance cover has been arranged by the Company in respect of
relevant actions against its Directors.

A2 T OB B 3 I B A Y B 3 AT B K PR
B Z AR B PR
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F—LERKBERGR -F— AL T B 2T

General Meetings

During the year ended 31 December 2017, 2 general meetings of the Company
were held, being the 2017 annual general meeting held on 9 May 2017 and the
special general meeting held on 10 July 2017.

2 JBe B ) R o

Number of

attendance
Name of Directors WYL H W f k¥
Executive Directors HArd I
Mr. King Pak Fu (Chairman) SHFRA (EE) 0/2
Mr. Wang Chunning (Vice Chairman) ®oe WAL (/L) WD N/A A5
Mr. Wu Yanqi (Chief Executive Officer) N2 RAER IS (fTBAH#) (i) N/A 73 i
Mr. Gong Xiao Cheng B S 12
Mr. Meng Cai Mo T A SedE (HE) N/A A7
Mr. Wang Yikun ERH e A4 0/2
Mr. Tsai Tson Rk 12
Mr. Li Jing o4 B e (Wi N/A AN jE
Independent Non-executive Directors B AT dE I
Mr. Chan Wai Cheung Admiral B 2 S A 28,
Mr. Lie Chi Wing BT S A 12
Ms. Hu Gin Ing il 212
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Notes:

1. Mr. Wang Chunning was appointed as an executive Director on 26 October 2017,
no general meeting was held during his tenure of office in 2017.

2. Mr. Wu Yanqi was appointed as an executive Director on 15 March 2018.

3. Mr. Meng Cai resigned on 9 February 2017, no general meeting was held before
his resignation in 2017.

4. Mr. Li Jing was appointed as an executive Director on 15 March 2018.

The Board is responsible for maintaining an on-going dialogue with shareholders
and in particular, uses annual general meetings or other general meetings to

communicate with them and encourage their participation.
NOMINATION COMMITTEE

In considering the nomination of new Directors, the Board will take into account the
qualification, ability, working experience, leadership and professional ethics of the

candidates.

The Company established the Nomination Committee with written terms
of reference on 28 March 2012 and currently consists of two independent
non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Chan Wai Cheung Admiral (as chairman) and
Ms. Hu Gin Ing, and one executive Director, namely Mr. Gong Xiao Cheng. The
terms of reference of the Nomination Committee is currently made available on the

websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

Terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are aligned with the code

provisions set out in the CG Code.

The function of the Nomination Committee are to review the structure, size and
diversity of the Board and made recommendations on any proposed changes to
the Board to complement the Group’s strategy; to identify qualified individuals
to become members of the Board; to assess the independence of the independent
non-executive Directors; to review the Board Diversity Policy and review the
measurable objectives that the Board has set for implementing the Board Diversity
Policy, and the progress on achieving the objectives; and to make recommendations
to the Board on the appointment or reappointment of Directors and succession

planning for Directors, in particular the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer.
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During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Nomination Committee held
1 meeting for assessing the independence of the independent non-executive
Directors; considering the re-election of Directors; and reviewing the structure, size

and diversity of the Board.

REE-F—-LETL A= HIEEE - REE
BEW R —REdk - USSR BT SR 2
SR B R EE DR R AN
LY LT

Number of
attendance
Name of Members BB 4% % fraf ik ¥
Mr. Chan Wai Cheung Admiral (chairman) BRRER S () 171
Ms. Hu Gin Ing [ S s 1/1
Mr. Gong Xiao Cheng BB 1/1

Apart from the meeting held above, the Nomination Committee by passing of
written resolutions made recommendation to the Board on the appointment of

Directors.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company established the Remuneration Committee with written terms of
reference and currently consists of three independent non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. Chan Wai Cheung Admiral (as chairman), Mr. Lie Chi Wing and Ms.
Hu Gin Ing. The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee is currently

made available on the Stock Exchange’s website and the Company’s website.

Terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are aligned with the code

provisions set out in the CG Code.

The main functions of the Remuneration Committee are (i) to make
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy and structure on the
remuneration packages for all Directors’ and senior management’s remuneration
and on the establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for developing
remuneration policy and (ii) to determine the remuneration package of executive

Directors and senior management.
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During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Remuneration Committee held 1

meeting for reviewing the remuneration packages of the Directors.

BREZZ-LETZAZT—HILEE -HMEE
8 BRAT R DU I o

Number of
attendance
Name of Members BB Bk 4 HO% fra ok
Mr. Chan Wai Cheung Admiral (chairman) Bt s etk () 171
Mr. Lie Chi Wing FEHRRRE 1”1
Ms. Hu Gin Ing (L S /1

Apart from the meeting held above, the Remuneration Committee also by way of

written resolutions approved the remuneration of new executive Directors.

The emoluments payable to Directors and senior management depend on their
respective contractual terms under the employment agreements, if any, and is
fixed by the Board with reference to the recommendation of the Remuneration
Committee, the performance of the Group and the prevailing market conditions.
Details of the remuneration of the Directors and senior management are set out in

notes 11 and 12 to the consolidated financial statements.
AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established the Audit Committee on 9 November 1999 with written
terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code and currently consists of three
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Chan Wai Cheung Admiral (as
chairman), Mr. Lie Chi Wing and Ms. Hu Gin Ing. The terms of reference of the
Audit Committee is currently made available on the websites of the Stock Exchange

and the Company.

Terms of reference of the Audit Committee are aligned with the code provisions set
out in the CG Code.

The Audit Committee is mainly responsible for making recommendations to the
Board on the appointment, re-appointment and removal of the external auditors
and to approve the remuneration and terms of engagement of the external auditors,
and any questions of resignation or dismissal of such auditors; reviewing the
interim and annual reports and financial statements of the Group; and overseeing
the Company’s financial reporting system including the adequacy of resources,
qualifications and experience of staff in charge of the Company’s financial
reporting function and their training arrangement and budget, and risk management

and internal control systems.
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The Audit Committee meets the external auditors regularly to discuss any area of
concern during the audit. The Audit Committee reviews the interim and annual
reports before submission to the Board. The Audit Committee focuses not only
on the impact of the changes in accounting policies and practices but also on the
compliance with accounting standards, the Listing Rules and the legal requirements

in the review of the Company’s interim and annual report.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Audit Committee held 2 meetings.
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Number of
attendance
Name of Members BB Bk 44 HOR fra ik
Mr. Chan Wai Cheung Admiral (chairman) B fER otk (F ) 2/2
Mr. Lie Chi Wing B i 212
Ms. Hu Gin Ing [ S s 2/2

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Audit Committee reviewed, among
others, the annual and interim results of the Group, which were in the opinion of the
Audit Committee that the preparation of such results complied with the applicable

accounting standards and the Listing Rules.

The Audit Committee noted the existing risk management and internal control
systems of the Group and also noted that review of the same will be carried out

annually.

The accounts for the year ended 31 December 2017 were audited by HLB Hodgson
Impey Cheng Limited whose term of office will expire upon the conclusion of the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company (“2018 AGM”). The Audit
Committee has recommended to the Board that HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng
Limited be re-appointed as the auditors of the Company at the 2018 AGM.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The corporate governance functions are performed by the Board.

The corporate governance functions are to develop and review the Company’s
policies and practices on corporate governance to comply with the CG Code and
other legal or regulatory requirements, to oversee the Company’s orientation
program for new Director, to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior management, to develop, review
and monitor the code of conduct and compliance manual (if any) applicable to
employees and Directors, and to review the Company’s disclosure in the Corporate

Governance Report.

During the financial year ended 31 December 2017, the Board held 1 meeting
for reviewing the training and continuous professional development of Directors,
reviewing the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and reviewing the

Company’s disclosure in Corporation Governance Report.
AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

During the year, the remuneration paid/payable to the Company’s auditors are set

e Sign] 1
5 0 LT A 3 A
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out below:
Fee paid/payable
[RYEE-4ii g
Services rendered [BX- 31951 HEAT ¥ H
HKS$°000
T#0
Audit services 1% BN s 3,000
Non-audit services TR B B
— Services on potential acquisition — I Y A WO Y R 200
— Review of disclosures of financial information — 2 [ w0 P Y A R R 260
in interim report
— Report on certain financial information — o B L JBE R B 0 T A 5 R} L R 250
in connection with proposed rights issue
Total: A5t 3,710

31



Carnival Group International Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2017

Corporate Governance Report
e JERTE ey

JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

The Company engaged an external professional company secretarial services
provider, Uni-1 Corporate Services Limited (“Uni-17), to provide compliance and
full range of company secretarial services to the Group in order to assist the Group
to cope with the changing regulatory environment and to suit different commercial

needs.

Ms. Chan Yuen Ying, Stella (“Ms. Chan”), the representative of Uni-1, was

appointed as the company secretary of the Company on 19 December 2012.

Ms. Li Jing (“Ms. Li”), the chief strategy officer of the Company, was appointed as
a joint company secretary of the Company on 1 March 2016. She is also the primary
point of contact at the Company for Ms. Chan.

According to the requirements of Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, each of Ms. Chan
and Ms. Li had taken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training for the

financial year ended 31 December 2017.
SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

The general meetings of the Company provide an opportunity for communication
between the shareholders and the Board. An annual general meeting of the
Company shall be held in each year and at the place as may be determined by the
Board. Each general meeting, other than an annual general meeting, shall be called

a special general meeting.
Shareholders to convene a special general meeting

Shareholders may convene a special general meeting of the Company according
to the provisions as set out in the Bye-Laws and the Companies Act of Bermuda.
The procedures shareholders can use to convene a special general meeting are set
out in the document entitled “Procedures for a Shareholder to Propose a Person for

Election as a Director”, which is currently available on the Company’s website.
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Putting enquiries by shareholders to the Board

Shareholders may send written enquiries to the Company for the attention of the

Company Secretary at the Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong.

Procedures for putting forward proposals by shareholders at
shareholders’ meeting

The number of members necessary for a requisition for putting forward a proposal

at a general meeting shall be:

(a)  any number of members representing not less than one-twentieth of the total

voting rights at the date of the requisition; or
(b)  not less than one hundred members.

A copy or copies of requisition signed by all requisitionists shall be deposited, with
a sum reasonably sufficient to meet the Company’s expenses in giving notice of
the proposed resolution or circulating any necessary statement, at the Company’s

principal place of business in Hong Kong in the case of:

(a)  arequisition requiring notice of a resolution, not less than six weeks before

the meeting; and

(b)  any other requisition, not less than one week before the meeting.

The Company will verify the requisition and upon confirming that the requisition is

proper and in order, the Board will proceed with the necessary procedures.
VOTING BY POLL

Pursuant to Rule 13.39(4) of the Listing Rules, any vote of shareholders at a general
meeting must be taken by poll except where the chairman, in good faith, decides to
allow a resolution which relates purely to a procedural or administrative matter to be
voted on by a show of hands. As such, all the resolutions to be set out in the notice
of 2017 AGM will be vote by poll.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company is committed to a policy of open and regular communication and

reasonable disclosure of information to its shareholders.

Information of the Company is disseminated to the shareholders in the following

manner:
. Delivery of annual and interim results and reports to all shareholders;
. Publication of announcements on the annual and interim results on the Stock

Exchange website, and issue of other announcements and shareholders’
circulars in accordance with the continuing disclosure obligations under the

Listing Rules; and

. The general meeting of the Company is also an effective communication

channel between the Board and shareholders.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Board acknowledges its responsibility to prepare the Group’s consolidated
financial statements for each financial year which give a true and fair view of the
financial position of the Group and of the financial performance and cash flows of
the Group for that year. In preparing the consolidated financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2017, the Board has selected suitable accounting policies
and applied them consistently; made judgements and estimates that are prudent, fair

and reasonable and prepared the accounts on a going concern basis.

The Directors are responsible for taking all reasonable and necessary steps to
safeguard the assets of the Group and to prevent and detect fraud and other

irregularities.

The Directors, having made appropriate enquiries, consider that the Group has
adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future
and that, for this reason, it is appropriate to adopt the going concern basis in

preparing the consolidated financial statements.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board acknowledge that it is responsible for the risk management and internal
control systems and reviewing their effectiveness. Such systems are designed to
manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives,
and can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against material

misstatement or loss.

The Board has delegated its responsibilities (with relevant authorities) of
risk management and internal control to the Audit Committee, who oversees
management in the design, implementation and monitoring of the risk management
and internal control systems, and management has provided a confirmation to the
Audit Committee (and the Board) on the effectiveness of these systems for the year
ended 31 December 2017.

Main features of the risk management and internal control
systems

The risk management framework of the Group and main responsibilities of the

members in the framework are described as follows:
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General Manger/ Headquarter of the Group Internal Audit function
Deputy Manager/ A5 ] 4 W 2 Sh ik

Senior Management Level

Hazg ol RPN

Management of subsidiaries

i 2 ) 4 B

Department managers of subsidiaries

Wik I8 2wl 8 1 4

L

35



Carnival Group International Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2017

Corporate Governance Report

e 3 igl R e

Member Main Responsibilities /451 FERT
The Board + Set up goals for risk management strategy, assess and HHEY o T R WA SO W R > REAN R M AR
determine the nature and extent of risk acceptable to SR WG R N Y R R A Lk B R
achieve the strategy goals; Ji s
+ Establish and maintain a proper and effective risk o EPRBEOL R A R i B A SR
management and internal control systems; AR
+ Review the effectiveness of the risk management and oI R A A A
internal control systems.
Audit Committee * Assist the Board in overseeing the risk level and the BUERE o B E S BB T R RN
design and performance of the risk management and R EF A S VS S E

internal control systems;

Discuss the risk management and internal control systems
with the management, ensure the management has fulfilled
its responsibility of establishing effective systems;
Ensure that the internal audit function has sufficient
resources for operation and has a proper position, review
and supervise its performance.

Keep updated of various major risks confronted by the
Group and the risk management status, make decisions
for effective risk control;

Report the risk status of the Group and issues to be
concerned or improved to the Board on a regular basis;
Review the Risk Management Operation Manual and its
amendments;

Facilitate risk management and assessment, regularly
appoint relevant accountable persons to implement risk
assessment;

Organise and promote the establishment of the risk
management system at the group level,

Review material risk assessment report and various risk
management reports.

Review major risk management measures, rectify and
deal with the decisions made or actions adopted by

relevant organizations or individuals beyond the risk

management system;
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Member

Main Responsibilities

1% H

ER §i

The Group’s Headquarter

Engage relevant persons to organise and coordinate
various departments and projects to carry out
identification and assessment of significant risks at the
group level, summarise and analyse such information,
submit risk assessment and various risk management
reports;

Carry out risk management for other major issues.

Design, implement and supervise the risk management
and internal control systems, maintain and update the risk
management manual;

Oversee the implementation of the risk management
policy and program, develop assessment standards and
organisation for risk management;

Carry out relevant measures for construction of the risk
management and internal control systems, organise the
assessment on the management of subsidiaries and the
building of a risk management team.

Continuously monitor risks to ensure principal risks are
controlled within the tolerance of the Group;

Assess the external circumstance of the Group and
enterprise macro-risk, propose a risk response plan
regarding the risks inherent in the environment, strategy
and operation process of the Company.

Organise and facilitate the construction of the risk
management system at the group level;

Organise and coordinate various functions of the
headquarter and the subsidiary to carry out major
risk identification and assessment at the group level,
summarise and analyze such information to prepare
a material risk assessment report and various risk
management reports at the group level, report to the Audit
Committee the major risks at the group level;

Control the risks at the group level, conduct research to
propose measures and plans for management of major
risks at the group level, provide professional opinions for
major risk decisions;

Supervise the cultivation of the overall risk management

culture of the Group.
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Member Main Responsibilities BB FERB K
Management of subsidiaries + Ensure that the subsidiaries carry out the risk assessment P J 2 ) o TR Y S 2~ ) A O T o e
in compliance with the risk management manual I T 1 B e e A A 5
formulated by the Group;
* Review and approve the risk assessment results of the o R I T O ) L A
subsidiaries in respect of the business; R
* Ensure that the subsidiaries implement effective risk o TEAR BHF B A W) AT RO0 4 PR B ¢
management;
¢ Monitor the principal business risks confronted by o B IR A T ) 2 S I B R B
the subsidiaries and the effectiveness of relevant risk JE i LA M T e 5
management measures;
* Allocate resources such as fund and workforce to the o T E PR 2 B4 H A B O
subsidiaries for implementation of the risk assessment (BFEEE NB%) o
projects.
Department managers of * Regularly update the risk register for its scope of business PEEEARIERM o A SR R T A 3 Y L
subsidiaries and carry out risk assessment as required by the Group; sl S RN SR R A
¢+ Formulate and implement a risk response plan for its o T T S Ry R S g
scope of business, facilitate and implement the specific THG G 356 56 5 0 R D o 4 O 4
risk management measures. R
*  Monitor various risks for its scope of business and report o PR E N A R B AT B s T
risk information to the Risk Management Committee of SRS Z B R R
the Group in a timely manner;
¢+ Deal with other works related to risk management. o BRI B B AT I A o
Internal audit function *  Report directly to the Audit Committee, analyse and W& o HENERZEARE-ARHEEEH

conduct independent assessment on the adequacy and

effectiveness of the risk management and internal control

systems.
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The process used to identify, evaluate and manage significant
risks

The risk management process of the Group is described as follows:

Project initiation

initiate risk management and prepare for relevant
activities.

Risk identification

identify the current risks confronted.

Risk analysis — conduct two-dimension analysis on the risk
including the impact extent and possibility of
occurrence.

Risk response - choose a proper risk response method and develop a

risk mitigation strategy.

Control measures

propose up-to-date internal control measures and
policy and process.

Risk control —  continuously monitor the risks identified and
implement relevant internal control measures to

ensure the effective operation of the risk response

strategy.
Risk management — summarise results of risk assessment and analysis
report and internal audit, formulate and report an action
plan.
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Internal audit function

The Group’s internal audit function is performed by an internal audit team, which

reports directly to the Audit Committee.

The Board also engaged an external professional firm, APAC Consultancy and
Internal Control Services Limited (“APAC”), to conduct the annual review of the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems for the year
ended 31 December 2017.

The Group has properly followed all recommendations provided by APAC, and

ensures these recommendations will be implemented within a reasonable time.
Handling and dissemination of inside information

The Group regulates the handling and dissemination of inside information
according to the “Guidelines on Disclosure of Inside Information™ published by
the Securities and Future Commission in June 2012 to ensure inside information
remains confidential until the disclosure of such information is appropriately
approved, and the dissemination of such information is efficiently and consistently
made. The Company regularly reminds the Directors and employees about due
compliance with all policies regarding the inside information. Also, the Company
keeps Directors, senior management and employees appraised of the latest
regulatory updates. The Company shall prepare or update appropriate guidelines or

policies to ensure the compliance with regulatory requirements.

The Board has conducted a review of the systems of risk management and internal
control for the year ended 31 December 2017 to ensure the effectiveness and
adequacy of the systems. Such review shall be conducted annually. The Board
considered that the risk management and internal systems of Company for the year

ended 31 December 2017 were effective and adequate.
CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There is no change in the Company’s constitutional documents during the year
ended 31 December 2017.
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The Directors are pleased to present the annual report and the audited consolidated

financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2017.
PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The principal
activities and other particulars of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 49 to

the consolidated financial statements.
BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review, analysis using financial key performance indicators and
future development in the Company’s business of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2017 are set out in the section headed “Management Discussion and

Analysis” on pages 10 to 20 of this annual report.

The environmental policies and performance, compliance with relevant laws
and regulations and relationships with employees are also discussed in the

Environmental, Social and Governance Report on pages 57 to 77.
Principal Risks and Uncertainties

Risks Pertaining to the Property Market

Project expansion by commercial brand from home and abroad has resulted in
fierce competition among markets of second and third-tier cities in the PRC.
Coupled with the growing of the existing competitors and the increasing of potential
competitors, the market competition is getting more intensified. Confronted by the
fierce competition from other operators, the Company needs to review its brand
positioning and adopt phased upgrading and adjustment; otherwise, the business,

operating results and the financial position would be materially adversely affected.

In addition, the Company has material interests in residential and commercial
property development and property investment in the PRC and is therefore subject
to the risks associated with the PRC’s property market. The Company’s operations
in the PRC may also be exposed to the risks of policy changes, currency fluctuation,
interest rate changes, demand-supply imbalance, changes in the overall economic
conditions, competition in the labour market, and availability of financing, which
may pose an adverse impact on the Company’s business, financial condition or

results of operations.
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The Company will actively collect data to have a better understand of the market
and develop coping strategies. The Company also conducts research in the
properties nearby the project to have a good knowledge of the regional market,
adjust its sales price and set up marketing plans and schedules, with an aim to

maintain the Company’s competitiveness in the industry.

Business Risk

Property development comprises multiple phases which include site selection,
land acquisition, planning, design, construction, sales and after-sales service.
Project development typically requires long turnover periods, significant financial
investments and interaction with numerous parties. It is also subject to approval
and supervision by a number of government authorities, such as authorities for the
administration of land and resources, housing and urban-rural development, fire
prevention and environmental protection, and will also be affected by factors such

as market conditions.

In recent years, the government has announced policies containing more stringent
approval requirements for land transactions, housing layout planning, and
application for construction permits and sales permits, etc. This may result in longer
turnover periods for the Company’s property development and sales, and increase

our development costs and development risks.

As a property development company, if we are unable to obtain land required for
our project development in a timely manner, our production operations will be
forced into suspension. At present, the transfer of land sites for development and
construction in the PRC is conducted through the “tender, auction and listing”
system of transfer in the public market. Property development companies face
intense competition in land acquisition. If the Company is unable to acquire land
sites required for project development in a timely manner and maintain a dynamic
land bank required for ongoing development, the Company’s development will
be restrained and the continuous growth in the Company’s revenue and operating

results will be affected as a result.

In 2017, the Company continues to actively develop valuable land and has entered
the markets including Beijing, Shenzhen and Qingdao so as to increase the land

bank resources.
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Financial Risk

An effective and sound financial management system is essential to the Company’s
operations. The Company may be exposed and impacted by factors such as shortage

of fund flow, increase in costs of funding and currency fluctuation.

The finance team is embedded within the Group to provide financial management
support by monitoring the financial market conditions and setting an appropriate
financial strategy. The Company maintains an open and proactive relationship with
the banking community, arranging different terms of loan facilities from different
sources with different tenures and ensures continuous assessment of counterparty

risks.
Compliance with the Relevant Laws and Regulations

During the year under review, as far as the Board and management are aware,
there was no material breach of or non-compliance with the applicable laws
and regulations by the Group that has a significant impact on the businesses and

operation of the Group.

Key Relationships with Employees, Customers and
Suppliers

The Group recognises that employees are one of the significant assets of the Group.
The Group aims to continue establishing a caring environment to employees and

empbhasis the personal development of its employees.

The Group maintains a good relationship with our customers and suppliers. The
Group aims to continue providing quality services and consumption experiences to

our customers and establishing cooperation strategy with our suppliers.
RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2017 are set out in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income on pages
85 to 86.

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the year ended
31 December 2017 (2016: Nil).
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CHARITABLE DONATIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group made HK$54,800 charitable
donations (2016: HK$213,800).

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For the purpose of determining the identity of the shareholders of the Company
entitled to attend and vote at the 2018 AGM to be held on Wednesday, 23 May
2018, the register of members of the Company will be closed from Wednesday,
16 May 2018 to Wednesday, 23 May 2018, both days inclusive, during the period
no transfer of shares will be effected. All transfers accompanied by the relevant
certificates must be lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong
Kong, Tricor Standard Limited at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road
East, Wanchai, Hong Kong for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on Tuesday, 15
May 2018.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements during the year ended 31 December 2017 in the property,
plant and equipment of the Group are set out in Note 16 to the consolidated

financial statements.
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of the movements during the year ended 31 December 2017 in the
investment properties of the Group are set out in Note 17 to the consolidated

financial statements.
DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At 31 December 2017, the aggregate amount of reserves available for distribution
to equity holders of the Company was approximately HK$9,404,000 (2016:
approximately HK$9,404,000).

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share capital during the year are set out in Note 29

to the consolidated financial statements.
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SHARES ISSUED

During the year, the Company has issued shares with details as follows:

1. On 7 May 2017, an aggregate of 300,000,000 new ordinary shares were
allotted and issued at HK$0.80 per share pursuant to the placing agreement
dated 4 May 2017. The gross proceeds of the placing were HK$240,000,000;
and

2. On 28 September 2017, an aggregate of 4,294,432,117 new ordinary shares
were allotted and issued at HK$0.4 per share pursuant to the rights issue on
the basis of one rights share for every four existing shares held on the record
date of 6 September 2017 offered by the Company. Details are set out in the
prospectus of the Company dated 7 September 2017. The gross proceeds of
the rights issue were HK$1,717,772,847.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s Byelaws or the
laws of Bermuda, being the jurisdiction in which the Company was incorporated,
which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing

shareholders of the Company.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

During the year ended 31 December 2017, neither the Company nor any of its

subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance cover for Directors’ and
officers’ liabilities in respect of legal actions against its Directors and senior
management arising out of corporate activities. The permitted indemnity provision
is in force for the benefit of the Directors as required by section 470 of the
Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the laws of Hong Kong) when the Report of
the Board of the Directors prepared by the Directors is approved in accordance with
section 391(1) (a) of the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the laws of Hong
Kong).

C 84T e
4 A T LB AT A 2 RN T

1. WoZ—-bHHALH - WEBERNAE 2L
AR Y B Z BB o - %89 0. 80U G L B
K BEAT A 3£300,000,000 8397 5 4 It - WL 6 o A5
K H B84 %5240,000,0008 70 5 K

2. WIZE—LHENAZI)UH - RBARAF B
WRERREHIYM 2 -EELANA B
AR BUA B B — RO R Ay &
I AT 0B B > 34T B0 4 T 0 B K B AT A 3L
4,294,432, 117837 W 3B Bt o w45 R A A % H
Wk =Rt A L HZ5M - BB
YE AR F51,717,772,84THETC ©

85 S8 D L i

AN W) 2 TERL A B VR (B A4 W RE M R OL 2
R ) 59 3 SR A R 4B S L RE I 4 O - LA
A0 W) ZE R Ve A 16 A O ) BLAT B SRR 2 A R A -

NN ~ ol O ] A 2 ) ol

MREZZ-LET A=+ HILEE - KAH
o AT ] O 2 ) M SR O A e oD A T A 2
Az Bl

i 98 8 e S

Aoy ) L HE e A A BN H IR 4 W SR AT Rk
B RTE - B E R RN B AR A
PR 22 B o B T R 23 00 8 ol 3 O B R SO R A
ARG (B 55 62258 ) 5547008 i BLAE I 3 3 4
P2 A B R R IR A R (5 9 622
) SE391(1) ()R M A 308 I A 2 o

45



Carnival Group International Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2017

Directors’ Report
WRERE

GROUP FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities of the Group for the last five
financial years is set out on page 236 of this report.

DIRECTORS

The list of Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this
annual report is set out below:

Executive Directors

Mr. King Pak Fu (Chairman)
Mr. Wang Chunning

(Vice Chairman)
Mr. Wu Yanqi (Chief Executive Officer) (appointed on 15 March 2018)

(appointed on 26 October 2017)

Mr. Gong Xiao Cheng

Mr. Meng Cai (resigned on 9 February 2017)

Mr. Wang Yikun (appointed on 3 February 2017)

Mr. Tsai Tson

(also known as Steve Tsai)

(appointed on 8 February 2017 and
resigned on 4 October 2017)

Mr. Li Jing (appointed on 15 March 2018)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Chan Wai Cheung Admiral
Mr. Lie Chi Wing
Ms. Hu Gin Ing

In accordance with Bye-law 111 of the Bye-Laws, Mr. Gong Xiao Cheng and Mr.
Lie Chi Wing shall retire from office as Directors by rotation and, being eligible,
offer themselves for re-election at the 2018 AGM.

In accordance with Bye-law 115 of the Bye-Laws, Mr. Wang Chunning, Mr. Wu
Yanqi and Mr. Li Jing, being Directors appointed after the 2017 annual general
meeting of the Company, shall be subject to re-election at the 2018 AGM and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

Pursuant to the Code provision A.4.2 of the Corporate Governance Code as set out
in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules, every director, including those appointed for
a specific term, should be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three
years. Accordingly, Mr. King Pak Fu shall be subject to retirement by rotation at the
2018 AGM in accordance with the Corporate Governance Code, and being eligible,
offers himself for re-election at the 2018 AGM.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Mr. King Pak Fu entered into a service contract with the Company on 4 November
2015 with retrospective effect from 1 August 2015 with no specific term unless

terminated by either party by giving 3 months’ advance notice to the other.

Mr. Wang Chunning entered into a service contract with the Company on 26
October 2017 for an initial term of 1 year commencing from 26 October 2017
unless terminated by not less than one month’s notice served by either party on the

other.

Mr. Wu Yanqi entered into a service contract with the Company on 15 March 2018
for an initial term of 3 years commencing from 15 March 2018 unless terminated

by not less than one month’s notice served by either party on the other.

Mr. Gong Xiao Cheng entered in to a service contract with the Company on 7

March 2012 with no fixed term of service.

Mr. Wang Yikun entered into a service contract with the Company on 3 February
2017 commencing from 3 February 2017 unless terminated by not less than one

month’s notice served by either party on the other.

Mr. Li Jing entered into a service contract with the Company on 15 March 2018 for
an initial term of 3 years commencing from 15 March 2018 unless terminated by

not less than one month’s notice served by either party on the other.

Mr. Chan Wai Cheung Admiral signed an appointment letter issued by the Company
on 10 December 2016 for a term of one year commencing on 10 December 2016,
which was automatically renewable for successive term of one year upon expiry of

the said term.

Mr. Lie Chi Wing signed an appointment letter issued by the Company on 5
February 2015 for an initial term of one year commencing on 5 February 2015,
which was automatically renewable for successive term of one year upon the
expiry of the said term, and expired on 5 February 2017. Mr. Lie further signed an
appointment letter issued by the Company on 5 February 2017 for a term of one
year commencing on 5 February 2017, which was automatically renewable for

successive term of one year upon expiry of the said term.
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Ms. Hu Gin Ing signed an appointment letter issued by the Company on 16
December 2015 for a term of one year commencing on 16 December 2015, which
was automatically renewable for successive term of one year upon the expiry
of the said term, and expired on 16 December 2017. Ms. Hu further signed an
appointment letter issued by the Company on 16 December 2017 for a term of one
year commencing on 16 December 2017, which shall be automatically renewable

for successive term of one year upon the expiry of the said term.

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the 2018 AGM has a
service contract with the Company which is not determinable within one year

without payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.
CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received from each of the independent non-executive Directors
a confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
The Company considers that all of the independent non-executive Directors are

independent.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed under the sections headed “Share Option Schemes” above and in
Note 40 to the consolidated financial statements, at no time during the year ended
31 December 2017 was the Company, or any of its subsidiaries, a party to any
arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of acquisition of
share in, or debt securities, including debenture, of the Company or any other body

corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed above in the sections headed “Connected Transactions” below
and “Significant Related Party Transactions” in Note 45 to the consolidated
financial statements, no significant transaction, arrangements and contracts in
relation to the Group’s business to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was
a party, and in which a Director of the Company had a material interest, whether

directly or indirectly subsisted at the year-end or at any time during the year.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES

As at 31 December 2017, the interests or short positions of the Directors and chief

executives of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the

Company or any associated corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO)

which were notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions
7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions which they are

taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO), or which were required,

pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein,

or which were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange,

pursuant to the Model Code, are set out below:
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WA ) > SRR R 7 B 1 A M ) 565 3 5240 il R AE 7%
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Approximate
percentage of
the issued share
Long position/ Ordinary shares Derivative shares Total number capital of
Name of Directors Capacity Short position (no. of shares) (no. of shares) of shares held the Company Note
i 2 A
Wik A e Pi ¥4 eELRA
f3iE4 S R kR (BhEH) (BhHH) e By 4 BEAIT 2 b [
Mr. King Pak Fu (“Mr. King”)  Interest of controlled Long position 13,730,773,266 - 13,730,773,266 63.95 1
corporations
REHFRE ([RELD Z M WA
Note: Fff 5

(i) 7,735,033,747 ordinary shares are held through Better Joint Venture Limited
(“Better Joint”), a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with
limited liability which is wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. King; (ii)
1,618,798,557 ordinary shares are held through Glory Merit International
Holdings Limited (“Glory Merit”), a company incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands with limited liability which is beneficially owned as to 99% by Mr. King;
(iii) 2,626,478,712 ordinary shares are held through Elite Mile Investments
Limited (“Elite Mile”), a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands
with limited liability which is wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. King; (iv)
1,750,462,250 shares are held through Sino Wealthy Limited (*“Sino Wealthy”), a
company which is wholly-owned by Bremwood Holdings Limited (“Bremwood
Holdings”), which is in turn wholly-owned by Gauteng Focus Limited (“Gauteng
Focus”), which is in turn wholly-owned by Rentian Technology Holdings Limited
(“Rentian Technology”), a company which is held as to 47.53% by Mystery Idea
Limited (“Mystery Idea”), a company wholly-owned by Mr. King.

[

(i) 7,735,033, 747 5% W% 4 5t 7% 35 48 i 25 Je 0 L E
FE A % 2 Z B 2 B Better Joint Venture Limited
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A ([RED) F 4 - Wik A vl b s e B il
99% 3 (iii)2.626,478,712J5 15 1 J§ 745 7% 18 i 3 Ji§
L B RE M AL 2 A R A W R TR B E A R A R
([RAR ) $547 - %A 7] h R S e 2 i TOAR B AT

(iv) 1,750,462,250/B 4 75 7% 3 Sino Wealthy Limited
(['Sino Wealthy ]) #H > 1fi 3% 2 #] HH Bremwood
Holdings Limited ([ Bremwood Holdings | ) 4= & #
A > Bremwood Holdings B Gauteng Focus Limited
(' Gauteng Focus |) 2 & #EH > Gauteng Focus H14-R
P RA RAE (MERA]) & A - 2R
%} B HiMystery Idea Limited ([ Mystery Idea |) 75
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Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors, chief executives of the Company or
their associates had any interests or short positions in any shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations as defined in
Part XV of the SFO as recorded in the register to be kept under section 352 of the
SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
the Model Code as at 31 December 2017.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2017, the register of substantial shareholders maintained by the
Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO shows that other than the interests of
the Directors and the chief executives, the following shareholders had notified the
Company of relevant interests or short position in shares and underlying shares of

Company as follows:

B ESCRi RSN R A= —H
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T 1B 0491 58 3360k 47 B 2 T e AOB R AT A > B
AN REATBN R Z A FAIBRR T
B AR A TR B AR S IR A 4 By B R B B 2 A
I B 25 SR T T

Approximate
percentage of
the issued share
Long position/ Ordinary shares Derivative shares capital of
Name Capacity short position (no. of shares) (no. of shares) the Company Notes
ik A+
W% L T RA
T3 T YES 0 Lig: 9 ¥ 1 (B ¥ H) (B ¥ H) BT 4 e H ik
Better Joint Beneficial owner Long position 7,735,033,747 - 36.02 1
Better Joint HREA A iv<s
Glory Merit Beneficial owner Long position 1,618,798,557 - 7.54 2
K JEE X/ ZEUN i)
Elite Mile Beneficial owner Long position 2,626,478,712 - 12.23 3
B g X/ ZEPN =]
Sino Wealthy Beneficial owner Long position 1,750,462,250 - 8.15 4
Sino Wealthy B A i1
China Huarong Asset Interest of controlled Long position 440,510,000 671,428,570 5.18 5
Management Co., Ltd. corporation
R 5 i A AR S P 2R e
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Approximate
percentage of
the issued share
Long position/ Ordinary shares Derivative shares capital of
Name Capacity short position (no. of shares) (no. of shares) the Company Notes
iAo
B G B £79 %S
BeRLES B -4/ 1508 (B ¥H) (B ¥H) BE&E 2 Bk
Haitong International Securities Interest of controlled Long position 1,483,761,501 - 6.91 6
Group Limited corporation
B S SRMARA T 2hE MR WA
Investment manager Long position 536,439,285 - 2.50 6
igagisd iy
Interest of controlled Short position - 736,180,000 3.43 6
corporation
et o wA -
Chu Yuet Wah Interest of controlled Long position 1,750,300,000 - 8.15 7
corporations
FH#E R AR WA
Kingston Finance Limited Security interest Long position 1,750,000,000 - 8.15
S WM B A A PREB M WA
Notes: i 5E

Better Joint is the legal and beneficial owner of 7,735,033,747 ordinary shares.
Better Joint is wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. King. By virtue of the SFO,
Mr. King is deemed to be interested in those shares held by Better Joint.

Glory Merit is the legal and beneficial owner of 1,618,798,557 ordinary shares of
the Company. Glory Merit is beneficially owned as to 99% by Mr. King. By virtue
of the SFO, Mr. King is deemed to be interested in those shares held by Glory
Merit.

Elite Mile is the legal and beneficial owner of 2,626,478,712 ordinary shares of
the Company. Elite Mile is wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. King. By virtue
of the SFO, Mr. King is deemed to be interested in those shares held by Elite Mile.

Sino Wealthy is the legal and beneficial owner of 1,750,462,250 ordinary shares
of the Company, Sino Wealthy is wholly-owned by Bremwood Holdings, which
is in turn wholly-owned by Gauteng Focus, which is in turn wholly-owned by
Rentian Technology, a company which is held as to 47.53% by Mystery Idea,
which in turn is wholly-owned by Mr. King. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. King is
deemed to be interested in those shares held by Sino Wealthy.

Better Joint457,735,033, 7471 15 48 It = ¥ € I B 2%
BEH A o Better Joint H BB A 2 EH ISR - I8
T S B ) > B 2 BB i Better JointFF A
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These include (i) 440,510,000 ordinary shares and 268,571,428 derivative
shares held through Brilliant Nexus Limited and Winsome Tech Worldwide
Limited respectively, both companies are wholly-owned by China Huarong
Overseas Investment Holdings Co., Limited, which is in turn wholly-owned by
i i3l 3 7 % A A BB A B2 W], which is owned as to 51% by Huarong
Zhiyuan Investment & Management Co., Ltd., which is wholly-owned by China
Huarong Asset Management Co., Ltd.; (i) 302,142,857 derivative shares held
by Cathay Rong IV Limited, which is wholly-owned by China Huarong Macau
(HK) Investment Holdings Limited; and (iii) 100,714,285 derivative shares
held through Wise United Holdings Limited, which is in turn wholly-owned
by Diamond Path International Investments Limited, which is in turn wholly-
owned by Diamond Path Investments Limited, which is in turn wholly-owned
by Huarong Investment Stock Corporation Limited, which is in turn owned as
to 50.99% by Right Select International Limited, which is in turn wholly-owned
by China Huarong International Holdings Limited, which is wholly-owned by
China Huarong Asset Management Co., Ltd.. China Huarong Asset Management
Co., Ltd. is owned as to 65% by Ministry of Finance of the People’s Republic
of China. By virtue of the SFO, Ministry of Finance of the People’s Republic of
China is deemed to be interested in those interests held by China Huarong Asset
Management Co., Ltd.

These include (i) 297,581,501 ordinary shares held through Haitong
International New Energy VIII Limited, which is wholly-owned by Castle Range
Developments Limited; (ii) 1,186,180,000 ordinary shares in long position
and 736,180,000 derivative shares in short position held through Haitong
International Financial Solutions Limited, which is wholly-owned by Haitong
International Finance Company Limited, which is in turn wholly-owned by
Haitong International (BVI) Limited; (iii) 200,725,000 ordinary shares held
by Hai Tong Asset Management (HK) Limited as investment manager, which
is wholly-owned by Haitong International (BVI) Limited; and (iv) interest
in the convertible bonds issued by the Company in the principal amount of
USD50,000,000 due 2018 which is convertible into a maximum of 335,714,285
ordinary shares upon full conversion at the conversion price of HK$1.155
based on the exchange rate of USD1 = HK$7.755 held by Haitong International
Asset Management Limited as investment manager, which is wholly-owned by
Haitong International (BVI) Limited, which is in turn wholly-owned by Haitong
International Securities Group Limited, which is owned as to 61.74% by Haitong
International Holdings Limited, a company which is wholly-owned by Haitong
Securities Co., Ltd. By virtue of the SFO, Haitong Securities Co., Ltd is deemed
to be interested in those interests held by Haitong International Securities Group
Limited.
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7. These include (i) 300,000 ordinary shares held through Best China Limited,
which is wholly-owned by Chu Yuet Wah; and (ii) security interest in
1,750,000,000 ordinary shares held through Kingston Finance Limited, which
is wholly-owned by Ample Cheer Limited, which is in turn owned as to 20%
by Insight Glory Limited and owned as to 80% by Best Forth Limited, both
companies are wholly-owned by Chu Yuet Wah.

Save as disclosed above, no other parties were recorded in the register of the
Company required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO as having interests
or short positions in the shares or underlying shares of the Company as at 31
December 2017.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as the code of
conduct regarding securities transactions by the Directors. Having made specific
enquiry of all Directors, the Company confirmed that all Directors have complied
with the required standard set out in the Model Code during the year ended 31
December 2017.

CONNECTED TRANSACTION

On 28 November 2017, Rising Alliance Investment Group Limited (the “Investor”),
a direct wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, Mr. King Pak Fu (“Mr. King”),
Astute King Limited (“Astute King”) and Excel Access Group Limited (the “Target
Company”) entered into a shares subscription agreement (the “Share Subscription
Agreement”), pursuant to which, (a) the Investor conditionally agreed to subscribe
for 100 ordinary shares, representing all the ordinary shares in the issued share
capital of the Target Company (the “Subscription”); and (b) Astute King agreed to
convert 1 ordinary share of the Target Company, into 1 non-voting deferred share of
the Target Company (the “Deferred Share Conversion”).

The aggregate consideration for the transactions under the Share Subscription
Agreement (the “Transaction”) was HK$300,000,780, comprising (a) HK$780 for
the Subscription; and (b) HK$300,000,000 for the Deferred Share Conversion.

Astute King was a company wholly-owned by Mr. King, the controlling
shareholder (as defined under the Listing Rules) of the Company, and the Target
Company was in turn wholly-owned by Astute King. As such, Astute King and
the Target Company were connected persons of the Company under Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules. As the applicable percentage ratios (as defined in the Listing
Rules) in respect of the Transaction exceeded 0.1% but were less than 5%, the
Transaction constituted a connected transaction for the Company and was subject
to reporting and announcement requirements, but was exempt from the independent

Shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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The Transaction was completed on 13 December 2017. Upon completion, the
Company through the Investor holds the entire issued ordinary shares in the Target

Company.

The Directors consider that the related party transactions disclosed under Note 45 to
the consolidated financial statements did not fall under the definition of “connected
transaction” or “continuing connected transaction” in Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules which are required to comply with any of the reporting, announcement or
independent shareholders’ approval requirements under the Listing Rules. The
Group has complied with the disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) at the
annual general meeting of the Company held on 31 May 2013. Pursuant to the
Share Option Scheme, the Board may at its discretion offer options to any eligible
participants including, but not limited to, any person being an employee, executive
directors, or non-executive directors (including independent non-executive
directors) of the Group or any invested entity and any supplier, adviser or consultant
to any area of business or business development of any member of the Group or any

invested entity.

As at the date of this annual report, the total number of shares available for issue
under the Share Option Scheme (after considering the share options already granted
under the Share Option Scheme) is 1,291,388,404, representing approximately

5.41% of the shares in issue as at the date of this annual report.

Details of the Company’s share option scheme are set out in Note 40 to the

consolidated financial statements.
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save as those disclosed in the sections headed “Share Option Scheme” in this
Directors’ Report and “Capital Structure, Liquidity and Financial Resources” in
the Management Discussion and Analysis and also “Convertible Bonds” in Note
33 to the consolidated financial statements, no other equity-linked agreements were

entered into by the Group, or existed during the year ended 31 December 2017.
SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company as at 31 December 2017 are

set out in Note 49 to the consolidated financial statements.
BORROWINGS

Particulars of loans of the Group as at 31 December 2017 are set out in note 31 to

the consolidated financial statements.
MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

Contracts with the Group’s five largest suppliers combined by value, accounted for
13.13% in value of total purchases during the year ended 31 December 2017, while
contracts with the Group’s largest supplier by value, accounted for 8.08% in value
of total purchases during the year ended 31 December 2017. Contracts with the
Group’s five largest customers aggregated accounted for less than 34.57% of the

Group’s sales during the year ended 31 December 2017.

None of the Directors, their associates or any other shareholder (which to the
knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s share capital)

had an interest in the major suppliers or customers noted above.
EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy for the employees of the Group is set up on the basis of
their merit, qualifications and competence. The emoluments of the Directors are
decided by the Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Group’s operating
results, individual performance and comparable market statistics. Details of the
Company’s share option scheme are set out in Note 40 to the consolidated financial
statements. Details of the Group's retirement benefit plans are set out in Note 41 to

the consolidated financial statements.
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DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

Details of the remuneration of the Directors for year ended 31 December 2017 are

set out in Note 11 to the consolidated financial statements.
PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and within the
knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained a sufficient public float as

required under the Listing Rules during the year and up to the date of this report.
AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established an Audit Committee on 9 November 1999 with written
terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code. The primary duties of the
Audit Committee are to review and supervise the financial reporting system and to
review the risk management and internal control systems of the Group. The Audit
Committee comprises three independent non-executive Directors of the Company,
Mr. Chan Wai Cheung Admiral (as chairman), Mr. Lie Chi Wing and Ms. Hu
Gin Ing. The Audit Committee has reviewed the audited consolidated financial

statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2017.

AUDITORS

The accounts for the years ended 31 December 2015, 2016 and 2017 were audited
by HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited whose term of office will expire upon the
conclusion of the 2018 AGM. A resolution for the re-appointment of HLB Hodgson
Impey Cheng Limited as auditors of the Company for the subsequent year is to be
proposed at the 2018 AGM.

By order of the Board
Carnival Group International Holdings Limited
King Pak Fu

Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 March 2018
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Carnival Group International Holdings Limited (the “Company”), together with
its subsidiaries (the “Group”), is pleased to present this Environmental, Social
and Governance Report (the “Report”) to provide an overview of the Group’s
management on significant issues affecting the operation, and the performance of
the Group in terms of environmental and social aspects. This Report is prepared by
the Group with the professional assistance of APAC Compliance Consultancy and

Internal Control Services Limited.
PREPARATION BASIS AND SCOPE

This Report is prepared in accordance with Appendix 27 to the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) (the “Listing Rules”) — “Environmental, Social and Governance
Reporting Guide” and has complied with “comply or explain” provision in the

Listing Rules.

This Report summarises the performance of the Group in respect of corporate social
responsibility, covering its operating activities which are considered as material
by the Group — property development and investment in the People’s Republic of
China (“PRC”). With the aim to optimise and improve the disclosure requirements
in the Report, the Group has taken initiative to formulate policies, record relevant
data, implement and monitor measures. This Report shall be published both in
Chinese and English on the website of Stock Exchange. Should there be any
discrepancy between the Chinese and the English versions, the English version shall

prevail.
REPORTING PERIOD

This Report demonstrates our sustainability initiatives during the reporting period
from 1 January 2017 to 31 December 2017.
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CONTACT INFORMATION

The Group welcomes your feedback on this Report for our sustainability initiatives.

Please contact us by email to security @0996.com.hk.

INTRODUCTION

The Company and the Group are principally engaged in theme-based leisure and
consumption business, focusing on the design, development and operation of
integrated large-scale tourist complex projects in key cities in and outside the PRC.
‘We are the only publicly listed operator of large-scale integrated tourism, hospitality
and retail attraction, consisting of theme parks, hotels, premium outlet shopping,
dining, conference and exhibition centres, entertainment and recreational facilities
in the PRC. We aim to provide our customers with a themed one-stop shop for
leisure, shopping, dining, entertainment and culture, and in return, we are capturing
the fast-growing Chinese tourism market brought by the increasing spending power

of Chinese population.

The Group has recognised the importance of sustainable development as it is crucial
for the growth of the Group to achieve business excellence and to enhance long-
term competitiveness. Sustainable development is ingrained in our core value. The
Group endeavours to create long-term value for our stakeholders, including our
employees, customers, shareholders, suppliers and the community as a whole. We
engage with our stakeholders on an on-going basis to collect their views and act on
their feedback. The key interests and concerns of our stakeholders are reflected and

prioritised for disclosure in the report.
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STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

The Group acknowledges the importance of intelligence gained from the
stakeholders’ insights, inquiries and continuous interest in the Group’s business
activities. The following table provides an overview of the Group’s key
stakeholders, and various platforms and methods of communication are used to

reach, listen and respond.

Y2

A 5 JAH A5 T i i N 3B A 4 I S 54 ) v LA
5 ) B o A AR Y TR B o R R M A AC AR L Y
B AR N e A% B~ TP S [ G F 2 i I
Ji ke

Stakeholders Issues of concern Engagement channels

L E-YN Bl T S MYOH

Government and Regulatory - To comply with the laws and regulations - Annual reports and announcements
authorities - AP B - AR RN

BN R B A g

- Proper tax payment

- IBEH

- Social responsibility

- HEEE

- Promote regional economic development and

employment
— R I AR O
Shareholders and Investors - Low risk
R AR E - fERE R

- Return on the investments

- BREMEH

— Protection of interests and fair treatment of

shareholders

- DRERBEROBE RS B A7 3 AR SRR

- Information disclosure and transparency

- HEAeER AW

- Operations in compliance with applicable

laws, rules and regulations

— R R - A R B

- Annual general meetings

- BARIEERE

- Annual reports, interim reports and

announcements

- R PRI R A
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Stakeholders Issues of concern Engagement channels
B B £ BYOE
Employees - Safeguard the rights and interests of - Training, seminars and briefing sessions
g B employees - B~ o e R A 6
- DREEDR H RS
- Cultural and sport activities
- Occupational health and safety - AL B BTGB
- BREREREEZAE
- Decent working environment
- R TR
- Career development opportunities
- HEBREHEE
Customers - Product quality and quantity assurance - Company website, brochures, annual reports and
%P - JE i DR PR announcements
- AEMS M AR R A
- Stable and long-term relationship
- B2 I R B AR - Customer service hotline
- RPREERS
- Information transparency
- HEAEWE
- Integrity
- WfE

- Business ethics

- FRETE
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ENVIRONMENTAL ASPECTS

The Group is committed to operating its businesses in an environmentally
responsible manner through improving energy efficiency and minimising its
environmental footprint. We understand that every property development project
may cause an impact to the environment. To minimise the environmental impact of
construction work, environmental impact assessment was carried out in the Group’s
flagship project — Rio Carnival (Qingdao). Monitoring environmental impacts
is also integrated into its business operations, as efficient use of environmental
resources can contribute to the operational efficiency and long-term sustainability
of the company. The Group has established and implemented corresponding
policies and procedures to set a guideline for the reduction of environmental
impacts in its facilities, such as hotel and shopping centre. The Group is in strict
compliance with the “Regulations on the Administration of Construction Project
Environmental Protection”, and other relevant laws and regulations, and had no
material non-compliance regarding environmental issues during the reporting

period.
EMISSIONS
Air Pollutants Emission

Emission control is essential to mitigate the impact on the environment and to
protect the health of employees. For our property development construction
projects, the Group encourages its construction contractor to use responsible
construction practices to reduce air pollutants emission and carries out monitoring
procedures to ensure that the construction work complies with the relevant national
laws and regulations. For example, the Group encourages the contractor to reduce
the dust emission by spraying water when earth-moving activities or excavation are
carried out. The Group’s air pollutants emission is mainly generated from the use of

vehicles and natural gas.
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The air pollutants emission generated from the Group during the reporting period is

2 SR [ 7 O S S0 1A A Y 2 SRS Be i HE R F

as follows:

Air Pollutants Unit Total
ZERIT Rt L 5t
Nitrogen oxides (NOx) kg 13,763.54
AL (NOY) T3

Sulfur dioxide (SO2) kg 552.22
WAL (SO T

Particular matter (PM) kg 4.97
HE KL (PM) T3

Greenhouse Gas (“GHG”’) Emission

The Group recognises that climate change poses a risk to its business and it is
committed to mitigating the effects of climate change. GHG is considered as one of
the major contributors to the climate change. As the majority of the GHG emission
of the Group comes from energy consumption, the Group tackles its GHG emission
by reducing the energy consumption. The Group regards “China’s 13th of five-
year national energy conservation and emission reduction comprehensive work
planning” as its internal control policy for the emission reduction. Measures to

encourage energy saving have been incorporated throughout our operations. Details

are mentioned in the section “Use of Resources” of this Report.
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The GHG emission during the reporting period is as follows:

O 0 390 P 2 SRR B g F

GHG Emission! Unit Total
o Sk B ¥ Bk
Scope 1? tonnes of CO2-¢ 3,046.42
i [ —2 M SRR A

Scope 2° tonnes of COz-e 16,576.45
i s W AR =

Total GHG emission tonnes of COz-e 19,622.87
1 25 S HE AR Pk g M SRR A

Intensity Tonnes of CO2-¢/HK$’000 of revenue 0.01
R Wi ALk R/ TWmlA

1 The calculation of the greenhouse gas emission is based on the “Corporate 1 B SRS R AR PR S R A R A [ 4

Accounting and Reporting Standard” from Greenhouse Gas Protocol.

2 Scope 1: Direct emissions from sources that are owned or controlled by the 2 0 — = 2 AR A A el 1 A R Y

S EER A | 5

Group. Hi o
3 Scope 2: Indirect emissions from purchased electricity consumed by the Group. 3 B = 2R I A A O R ) o B o
Hazardous and Non-hazardous Wastes H R TR

The Group’s operational activities do not involve in the generation of hazardous
waste. For the non-hazardous waste generation, the Group takes effort to reduce

the non-hazardous waste in different property business operations by implementing

corresponding measures.

A S ) 0 287 B AN 9 B A R A E A o A S
I T W A O T > A A LG A R M O - 5
T3 A % TE ) S A E A A R I TR o
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For the construction projects, the Group encourages its contractors to reuse and
recycle waste generated from construction and demolition. For shopping centre,
there are several recycling bins located inside and outside the centre to separately
collect recyclable and non-recyclable wastes. Electric hand dryers are installed
in the washing rooms in the shopping centre to encourage the customers not to
use towel paper to reduce waste. In our managed residential community, we have
organised recycling activities for books to encourage the reduction of waste. In
office, the employees are encouraged to use double-sided printing and to bring their
own cups to minimise the use of paper and paper cups.

e SR TE B > AC SR [ S0 A 6 v 0 R PR I
Rt v S A Y B S 0 3 A T O P B 0 BR A N
Wbl > FAMAE A 1 L 2 A T WOk - T (e OR)
B A v ] Mg i o S 4 A 40 OO < A I P 0 T
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B 5 T oA B - S5 Wl 96k A i S o A I B B > B
SO H TR T AT ED R B R OKAE > 3 R
A AR AR B ARHE o

The wastes produced from the Group during the reporting period is as follows: AR A [ T R A B N T

Wastes Unit Total
52§ 27 WL st
Non-hazardous waste disposal tonnes 732.22
it 2 A S g8 ) L

Non-hazardous waste intensity tonnes/HK$’000 of revenue 0.0004
5 % 0 L Wi/ TR
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USE OF RESOURCES

The Group has implemented different measures to achieve efficient use of energy

and water for long-term sustainability.
Energy

To reduce electricity consumption, motion-activated lighting systems are installed
in our developed properties. These properties are also designed to keep warm in
winter and insulate heat in summer to reduce electricity consumption from air

conditioning.

To bring down energy consumption caused by lighting in the shopping centre, our
shopping centre is designed with glass curtain wall to allow natural light to enter
into the internal area to the greatest extent during daytime. Many of our facilities
like hotel, shopping centre and residential community use LED lighting and this
measure is expected to be adopted throughout all the buildings to increase the

energy efficiency.

We remind our employees to switch off idle electrical appliances to promote
energy saving. Employees are also encouraged to use alternative measures such as
videoconferencing to avoid unnecessary business travels. With these measures, not

only the energy consumption can be saved, but also GHG emission can be reduced.
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During the reporting period, the energy consumptions of the Group are as follows: AR AR T 7 R R 30 79 Y R DR R AT

Energy consumption Unit Total
T UEFE Tk S Az A5t
Purchased electricity kWh in ‘000s 14,692.90
WHEEH T8 T BU I

Petrol kWh in ‘000s 293.65
¥ T T L IR

Diesel kWh in ‘000s 3.18
St T8 T BU

Natural gas kWh in ‘000s 14,211.75
RAR T T L K

Total energy consumption kWh in ‘000s 29,201.48
AEdRAARE B T8 T BU I

Intensity kWh in *000s/HK$’ 000 of revenue 0.02
I TR TR/ TH#TRA

[l T rp——
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Water

Water is another important resource. The Group actively seeks ways to conserve
water. For example, rainwater is collected for plant irrigation in the managed
residential community. There are reminders placed to remind our customers to
conserve water and we choose water-saving appliances such as automatic sensor

water taps for the water facilities to achieve water saving objective.

LS

TR e 57— I TR T o A S A L A % O A6
IR 7K o G > A0 4 BIAY A [0SR WK R
L0 R i O 4% AR 418 I 0 A0 UK : ok
It 388 P 19 B e MR K Wk - B L A4 K Y B o

The water consumption during the reporting period is as follow: T TR I5T P9 e RE K BE AR ¢

Water Unit Total
* WLp: B
‘Water consumption m? 249,026.10
ek ik

Intensity m*/HK$°000 of revenue 0.14
I SETIR/ THEITEA

THE ENVIRONMENT AND NATURAL RESOURCES

The Group undertakes rigorous measures to minimise impacts to the environment.
Various factors including those related to the environmental and social issues
are taken into consideration in site selection and development. In particular,
comprehensive investigation, assessment and remediation will be carried out in line
with the applicable regulations for brownfield development. The menus in our hotel
restaurants will be designed according to seasonal shifts to prevent overreliance on
certain food that could affect the ecosystems.

BB B K AR ¥ 08
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SOCIAL ASPECTS

EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICES
EMPLOYMENT

The Group believes that people are important assets for the sustainable development
and aspires to create a caring environment to our people. The Group pays attention
to the employees’ rights and strictly complies with the “Labour Law of the People’s
Republic of China”. Policies of key human resources management practices in
recruitment, promotion, working hours, equal opportunities, compensation and
benefits are stipulated in the Employees’ Handbook. The Group acknowledges
the importance of attracting more talents to support our business growth. We
collaborate with top universities in the PRC to organise recruitment fairs and talks,

so as to source high-quality talents for the strategic growth of our business.

The Group rewards and promotes employees based on their capability and
performance. Competitive remuneration packages, which are in line with the
market trends, are offered to our employees. Our employees are provided with
other benefits including share options, insurance, transportation allowance,

communication allowance, extended maternity leaves, retirement benefits, etc.

The Group is committed to constructing an inclusive workplace that embraces
diversity and equal opportunity. The management sets zero tolerance to harassment
and discrimination of any form. The Group promotes fair competition among
employees and all employees have equal opportunities for promotion. Employees
are hired and selected based on their qualifications and abilities, regardless of their
gender, age, nationality, religious belief, marital status, etc. to ensure fair judgment

and avoid any risk of favouritism or discrimination.

The Group’s management attaches great importance to the needs and opinions
of the employees. There are different means of communication between the
management and employees, including department meeting, email and notice
board. This can help maintain a good relationship between the management and

employees.

We organised a variety of activities, including basketball competition, team
building training camp, monthly birthday party and tug of war during the reporting
period, in order to foster a harmonious working environment, strengthen the
sense of belonging of employees, encourage the communication among different

departments and create a work-life balance culture.
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HEALTH AND SAFETY

Protecting the health, safety and wellbeing of our employees is our key priority. The
Group has established “Policy for safe working environment” and strictly complies
with “Law of the People’s Republic of China on Prevention and Treatment of
Occupational Diseases”. The Group ensures that its employees are able to carry
out their daily work in a comfortable working environment by reminding and
training them to apply proper personal protective equipment when necessary. Safety
performance is monitored and followed up to encourage continuous improvement.
The employees are required to participate in the regular fire evacuation drill.
Regular safety talks and seminars are held to increase workplace safety awareness.
Annual health checks are conducted to monitor the health and wellbeing of our
workforce. In addition, the we also strive to provide clean drinking water, balanced
diet and comfortable dining place to our employees for promoting a healthy living

concept.
DEVELOPMENT AND TRAINING

The Group believes that fostering the knowledge and skills of its employees is a key
to continuous business development and success. Training at all levels is available
to meet the needs of our business growth as stipulated in the Group’s “Policy for
training and development”. Various trainings are provided based on the employee
categories. For new employees, induction and mentorship are provided to help them
better understand the corporate culture and settle in their new positions. For existing
employees, internal and external trainings are offered to enhance their professional
skills and knowledge. The training courses are provided through different means,
including talks and electronic platforms. Electronic platforms can enable our

employees to learn whenever and wherever they wish.

Assessment is conducted after the training for the Group to understand the
effectiveness of the training and performance of the employees. This can help the
Group to continuously improve the training programs offered to all levels of staff so

as to enhance their job performance.
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LABOUR STANDARDS

The Group strives to prohibit the use of child or forced labour in its operations. The
Group has set the minimum age requirement for recruitment in our “Employment
management policy”, which complies with the legislation on “Provisions on the
Prohibition of Using Child Labour”. Our suppliers and contractors are expected
to follow the same standard of labour practices when working with us. During the
reporting period, the Group was in strict compliance with the relevant laws and
regulations and no non-compliance regarding labour standards brought against the

Group or its employees was noted.

OPERATING PRACTICES
SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT

As a property developer, we actively collaborate with contractors for construction
work services. We are keenly aware of the potential environmental and social
risks associated with our supply chain and are committed to mitigating such risks
in collaboration with our contractors. We have established “Tender management
system” to set up principles and guidelines for selecting contractors. We only
invite contractors with high-qualification and good reputation to join the tendering
process. Environmental and safety performance is one of the key assessment criteria
when we select contractors. Besides, the Group carries out on-site inspection from
time to time to ensure the quality of services the contractors provided meets our

standards.
PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY

Achieving and maintaining high quality standard for construction projects and
delivering quality products and services to customers are utmost important for
sustainability development of the Group. We focus on product quality throughout
the entire life cycle of property development. We have engaged experienced
construction management company to conduct monthly monitoring report to ensure
the quality of construction work provided by our contractors, and to identify and
address potential defective work. Furthermore, the environment at our managed
residential sites is regularly evaluated to ensure a clean and healthy environment for

residents.
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We have various mechanisms in place for handling customer feedback. Complaints
are recorded and followed up by dedicated well-trained staff in a timely manner.
After addressing the complaints received, we will implement relevant improvement

measures to improve customer experience and the quality of services provided.

We respect customer data privacy and are committed to preventing customer data
leakage or loss. Collected customer personal data is accessible only by authorised
personnel and handled with care. We also observe the significance of having correct

labelling of our products to protect the interests of our customers.

The Group is in strict compliance with the laws and regulations related to product
responsibility. There is no any significant risk regarding product responsibility

observed during the reporting period.
ANTI-CORRUPTION

The Group operates with a high standard of integrity and ethics. We implement
policies and procedures to minimise risks of fraud, corruption and bribery.
Our principle on anti-corruption is well conveyed to our employees through
daily communication, training and workshops. The Group has established
whistleblowing mechanisms that allow employees and third parties to report
suspicious cases in a confidential manner. The Group has also set up a monitoring
group to advocate self-discipline and integrity among employees. Our suppliers
and contractors are expected to follow the same policy when working with us. If
any legal case regarding corrupt practices was brought against our suppliers and

contractors, we will terminate our cooperation with them immediately.

The Group has been in strict compliance with “Criminal Law of the People’s
Republic of China”. During the reporting period, no non-compliance regarding

corrupt practices brought against the Group or its employees was noted.
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COMMUNITY i
COMMUNITY INVESTMENT ¥ B &

The Group is dedicated to improve the quality of life for and bring new lifestyles to AR SR T B ) R S R e 2 AL R B > %
the community through both its business operations and community involvement. b A R B o A Ak I R 2R S O U e M B
We implement different policies including “Donation management approach” B B - GBRBUR) F 2 FBUR -

and “Disability policy”, which aim to maintain a long-term relationship with our & 76 B4k [ 1) 1 25 FH BH A AR R U B4R - DLEE BT
stakeholders in the community for sustainable development. We seek to make P S TR o FAM Jy 3R 2 AL I 0 R A R A B B TS

contributions to events that have a positive impact on community development. B 0 H BB -

Over the years, we have continued to support many charitable events and provided ZAER - RM—EXHERLEZED - 2 Rm KR
relief to natural disaster victims through donations. Leveraging our expertise K o AR A ] B B W4 3 B BB R o A A W B
in property development, we built a park in close proximity of the surrounding AT — A B o S o) R BH B o AN R 0 A
neighbourhoods and provided free entrance to the public. To manifest our efforts PN > Byt £ 0 T 9% M AL TR g o

in supporting an inclusive and caring community, we also hire persons with

disabilities.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE  IR¥i- ¥ & @M E &9

REPORTING INDEX
Subject areas, aspects, general disclosures and Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) Section Page
BRI ~ T Ok~ — A5t Bk ¢ Bk O O A A B (K P 8] HK

A. Environmental

A B

Al: Emissions

Al HE

General Disclosure “Environmental Aspects” 61
— e [ 3R 55 |

KPIAL.1 The types of emissions and respective emissions data “Emissions — Air Pollutants Emission” 62
KPIALI T R 25 A B T (B — 22 535 e P

KPIAL2 Greenhouse gas emissions in total and, where appropriate, intensity “Emissions — Greenhouse Gas Emission” 63

KPIAL2 L 2 SRR A A A e (il ) 8 B2 [ Bk — 2 SR A i
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Subject areas, aspects, general disclosures and Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) Section Page
BRG] ~ — A5t % 5% % B S A A B (KPT) 8 H&K
KPIAL3 Total hazardous waste produced and, where appropriate, intensity “Emissions — Hazardous and Non- 64
hazardous Wastes”
KPIAL3 i A T B A A A e (SR ) R (B — & R R |
KPIAl4 Total non-hazardous waste produced and, where appropriate, intensity “Emissions — Hazardous and Non- 64
hazardous Wastes”
KPIAl.4 Jif A S S A R (I ) (B — A % B A5 s |
KPIALS Description of measures to mitigate emissions and results achieved “Emissions — Air Pollutants Emission” 61
[ BET A — 22 5035 St kit |
KPIALS 8 Al VK B O 4 T A9 R “Emissions — Greenhouse Gas Emission”
[HEB — 3 RS il
KPIAL6 Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are handled, “Emissions — Hazardous and Non- 63
reduction initiatives and results achieved hazardous Wastes”
KPIALG it i B AT S T S0 D 0 0~ WA A BRI R AR TR — R R A
A2: Use of Resources
A2 BB
General Disclosure “Use of Resources” 65
— R [P H ]
KPIA2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type in total and intensity “Use of Resources — Energy” 66
KPIA2.1 FRAER B 3 0 EL R 5 R U 4 P 0 S [ U508 T — BB U
KPIA2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity “Use of Resources — Water” 67
KPIA2.2 ARG KB R 5 1 [ A — Kk
KPIA2.3 Description of energy use efficiency initiatives and results achieved “Use of Resources — Energy” 65
KPIA2.3 A 2t R 5L B FH 22 T 0 B ot A R [ 5 — BE R
KPIA2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water that is fit for “Use of Resources — Water” 67
purpose, water efficiency initiatives and results achieved
KPIA2.4 it SR HO FH A R L T A A P > DA AR T R S ) e [ A — K
Jir AR
KPI A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished products and, if applicable, with ~ Not applicable to the Group’s business -
reference to per unit produced
KPIA2.5 LR it i P SRR A T (D ) A A e LA EpNc L I ¥ Nl
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Subject areas, aspects, general disclosures and Key Performance Indicators (KPIs)

GG ~ R v~ — B % B B S A B (K PT)

Section

i

Page
H&K

A3: The Environment and Natural Resources

A3 BREI R KRG

General Disclosure

— MR

KPIA3.1 Description of the significant impacts of activities on the environment and
natural resources and the actions taken to manage them

KPIA3.1 00 S IO 3 R B R AR Y R T B T AR B
HHB BT

B. Social

BALH

Employment and Labour Practices

0 B e 53 L% ML

B1: Employment

BI : &

General Disclosure

— s

KPIBI.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type, age group and geographical
region

KPIBI.1 S ~ TR~ A AL s 3 9 L A

KPIBI1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and geographical region

KPIB1.2 TR ) ~ A AL B I A3 O ELR R LR

“The Environment and Natural Resources”

(BRI e R AR B R

“The Environment and Natural Resources”

(BB R R E IR

“Employment”

[ 1 95 J

67

67
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Subject areas, aspects, general disclosures and Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) Section Page
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B2: Health and safety
B2 : i HES % 2

General Disclosure

— Bt

KPI B2.1
KPIB2.1

KPIB2.2
KPIB2.2

KPIB2.3

KPIB2.3

“Health and Safety” 69
[ et R B2 2 |
Number and rate of work-related fatalities - -
SRR EL TP AN YN P
Lost days due to work injury - -
B THHR R T A H %
Description of occupational health and safety measures adopted, how they are ~ “Health and Safety” 69

implemented and monitored

3 IR A 9 fe R B 2 41 - DA R B AT IR T [t R B 2 |

B3: Development and Training

B3 : B ) Al

General Disclosure

— s

KPIB3.1
KPIB3.1

KPIB3.2

KPIB3.2

B4: Labour Standards
B4 : 55 THEH

General Disclosure

— BB

KPIB4.1

KPI B4.1

KPIB4.2
KPI B4.2

“Development and Training” 69
[ 8% Je Je il |
The percentage of employee trained and employee category - -
SR 5 b R d B8R
The average training hours completed per employee by gender and employee — -
category
TR T 0 B33 0 3 - 544 0 B 5 BB I H - 3 TR
“Labour Standards” 70
45 T4 ]
Description of measures to review employment practices to avoid child and ~ — -
forced labour
0 A AL 4 DA A EE T R R 45 T
Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices when discovered - -
i T B0 AL 00 I 5 A B 6 00 P R R 4 25 R
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Subject areas, aspects, general disclosures and Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) Section Page

BRG] ~ — A5t % 5% % B S A A B (KPT) 8 H&K

Operating Practices

BERHI

BS: Supply Chain Management

BS : fit 4T B

General Disclosure “Supply Chain Management” 70

— M5 [ 30

KPIB5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region - -

KPIB5.1 et i 3] 43 01 5t JE G A

KPIB5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers, number of suppliers ~— — -
where the practices are being implemented, how they are implemented and
monitored

KPI B5.2 A T T v e AL - e BT R P R R R S DA
A B TR B AT R s

B6: Product Responsibility

B6 : 7 fh B AT

General Disclosure “Product Responsibility” 70

— sk [ it A

KPIB6.1 Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to recalls for safety and ~ — =
health reasons

KPI B6.1 OB ol EL K 7 o A4 e R 2 2 A L o o 28 I W B 1 43 P

KPI B6.2 Number of products and service related complaints received and how they are  — -
dealt with

KPI B6.2 IR 2 it e R 9 B 0 A DA R Ry

KPIB6.3 Description of practices relating to observing and protecting intellectual - -
property rights

KPI B6.3 it B A e % R0 A B LA

KPI B6.4 Descripti(;)nﬂo‘f‘ quality assurance process and recall procedures - -

KPI B6.4 L R M R B AR S
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Subject areas, aspects, general disclosures and Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) Section Page
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B7: Anti-corruption

B7 : R& 5

General Disclosure “Anti-corruption” 71

— MR [R5

KPIB7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices brought against  No concluded legal case regarding corrupt -
the issuer or its employees during the reporting period and the outcomes of practices was noted.
the case

KPIB7.1 T TE RS P 3 B A7 A LR B R I DA A TR R AP E M O A R R R A o
Rrb iR

KPIB7.2 Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing procedures, how - -
they are implemented and monitored

KPIB7.2 1 20 7 56 9 D SR TR > D B AT B B 28 7

Community

iy

B8: Community Investment

B8 : k:[E &

General Disclosure “Community Investment” 72

— e [ i 4% 4 |

KPIB8.1 Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education, environmental concerns, labour ~ “Community Investment” 72
needs, health, culture, sport)

KPI BS.1 MR (NBE - BB HE - S TRKR R UL - E) E:41%4d

KPIB8.2 Resources contributed (e.g. money or time) to the focus area - -

KPIBS.2 75 0 S 80 DO (e BRI D)
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B st @ FH R R
Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited

HLB

To the shareholders of
Carnival Group International Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with Iimited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Carnival Group
International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 85 to 233, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2017, and
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,

including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of
the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2017, and of its
consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and
have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the

Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
(“HKSASs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards are
further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in
accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the
“Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Pl 3 7 e

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of oA Gk 7 T R A o B - R 2 AR
most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current ] 4% A B 205 2 1 5 T i A R LM R o g S I
period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated T AE TR AN A F R 5 S BB R A HL A R AT
financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not B BLAY o FAM A o e e IR A R A R o

provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matter

LE S e 2

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

FA A sk don o 2 B S A T 2

Carrying values of properties under development and completed

properties for sale

B iy 3% e O 1A 4 3R 2 MK

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had properties under
development and completed properties for sale (the “Properties
Portfolio”) amounting to approximately HK$4,362,779,000 and
approximately HK$1,605,446,000, respectively, situated in various
locations in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) and Hong
Kong. The Properties Portfolio is carried at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Significant management judgement is required
in determining the estimated net realisable values of the Properties
Portfolio with reference to the latest selling prices of the properties
and costs to be incurred until completion and sale and the valuation
report performed by an independent professional valuer engaged by
the Group.

RZR-EEFZAZT—H . HEMKRRPERD
BT B (THSRALE ) BUE 2 3 7 $94,362,779,000% TG
Be#11,605,446,00098 7G » 7 rh 3 N\ RIGAnBY ([ H Y ] ) B A
W 2 5 o oy S5 AL JROAR B vT 5 B HE T A P IR AR
B o it 2275 W 36 W di A 45 A % L 3 0 3k TR I S I
A A DA B A I ) < . T A I A Y
PR A - 852 0 SR AL A Al T T A B M Y - JEARE T EERAE
L) ) i -

The accounting policies and disclosures for the impairment of
properties under development and completed properties for sale are
included in Notes 3, 4 and 22 to the consolidated financial statements

respectively.
7 B 5% J v iy 36 B ©L3R TR B 0 6 AL Y 1wt 1B SR T 4 R 4
B f 5 BB R AR M 583 ~ 4 %22 o

Our audit procedures included:

B B 7 AR LA

. Obtaining an understanding of and evaluating management’s
procedures on identifying properties for which the net realisable
values may be lower than their carrying amounts, including
the methodologies and inputs used in the estimation of the net
realisable values;

TSI A A L 3 T T A B ML T AR L R i L FY
3R MRR P - ELAE AN T AT A B R BT AR A B 5 ik A
LS

. Comparing to the latest selling prices of the properties;
P 3 4 3 G e Y A 1R

. Testing the calculation for the impairment assessment performed
by management;
A B R o 24 A7 Y AFL A B 45

. Comparing to the latest land auction price of comparable land or

valuation of land;

BT AT b P A e AT AT el (2 AT 2 B

. For properties under development, assessing the construction costs

to be incurred; and

TR R T A ST > Al I i A A AR 5

. Engaging our valuation specialists on evaluating the methodologies

and assumptions adopted in the valuation.

P A1) ol 0 S8 28N 5 PR Al £ o R PR B O 5 S AR -
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Key audit matter

B 8t e o5

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

FA A A ik don ol 2 A S A 29

Valuation of completed investment properties and investment

properties under development in the PRC
7 e 1 Wy T % B S B I vl B W SR 2 A

The Group has various completed investment properties and
investment properties under development in the PRC. Such
properties are measured at fair value and their aggregate carrying
amount was approximately HK$6,353,156,000 as at 31 December
2017.

FARMA P E NS 2 HOR TREWERER T REY
o DEY AR A PER R R 2R EE TS AZ T HE
I T 48 4 %46,353,156,000% 7

Significant estimation and judgement are required by management to
determine the fair value of the completed investment properties and
investment properties under development. To support management’s
determination of the fair value, the Group engaged an independent
professional valuer to perform valuations on the completed
investment properties and investment properties under development
at the end of the reporting period.

R A HOE TR THRE W SRR B G WS i AP I >
B W T A BT o s n B A BB M E AP AR
I o S A S U OR % TR K B R
BE W EHEATAAE -

The accounting policies and disclosures for the estimation of fair
value of investment properties are included in Notes 3, 4 and 17 to
the consolidated financial statements respectively.

A B W 3 A PR PR G R R 48 R 4 O B T
B MRS ~aRk17 -

Our audit procedures included:

FAM 7 AR AL 45

Evaluating the objectivity, independence and competency of

>
management’s valuer;

RV A L A L - % B ~ S R BT RE )

Obtaining an understanding of the valuation process and
significant assumptions and critical judgement areas to assess if the
approaches are consistent with relevant accounting requirements
and industry norms;

ARG AERR PP ~ T % R ) I 0 DA A A R O
7 B B o w2 R AT SRR AT 5

Performing market research and analysis to assess whether the
changes in fair value of investment properties resulted from the
valuation was reasonable and consistent with market trends to our
knowledge;

HEAT TG WETE RIS AT > DT A B 3 IR Ak B i B A A1
B 53 B R 7 A B T A 6 M 0T a0 g T 30 R

Assessing the appropriateness of estimated construction cost
to complete for investment properties under construction and
investment properties pending revitalisation by comparing the costs
incurred to date against the budgets and evaluating whether the
expected developer’s profit margins are comparable to the market;
and

20 L 8 34 T A SR A BB R A B R T R
PR AL B W 3 0 A 5 50 B S AR A T > BT A B
P FEYT R 1B R A BT S R 2

Engaging our valuation specialists to assist us to assess the
methodologies and assumptions adopted in the valuation for
estimating the fair value of the investment properties and
performing benchmarking of the market value of investment

properties held by the Group to other comparable properties.

PS5 A1)l 1 S N B 1 B AP o Al 2 A 1 S 0 S 8 F
IR P A AT A% 48P BR AT B 8 BB - A Bl B SR T B
By 3 0 1 B S b T BE e AR S b o
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the annual report, but does not

include the consolidated financial statements and our auditors’ report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other

information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether
the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report

that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKEFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free

from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are responsible
for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis
of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease

operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging their

responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

Jefb s B
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AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion. This report
is made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Companies
Act of Bermuda, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted
in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial

statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgement

and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform
audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional

omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s

internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the

directors.
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Independent Auditors’ Report
T S i

. Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern
basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether
a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention
in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditors’ report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group

to cease to continue as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated
financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a

manner that achieves fair presentation.

. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to express
an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain

solely responsible for our audit opinion.

‘We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any

significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with
them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on

our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

o B IRN R AU AR B G A
K5 o A BT I A G - S R S A AE
S TE T DU R Y R KAl > R T T i
HECE R R AR B D A AR E K SR
. o G SR A 8 A A TR AN - B AT
ST A% Yt e R B P A
A v A R B 4 R o B R R SRR 2 - T
P 9 A T R B TR S o AN 4 A A
T A SR 3 H Ak BT O B 3 G - AR
ARACHF SN UL T RE B AR R RE A

e

o AFEAS B HGR N EE S HDT A SR
o BIENEE s UGB REES TR
W A2 5 A 2 I o

o B BRI T S A B S R
UCF AL ~ 9 T A > DA A A I
RPEREA - RMAT BEHFRT -
BB AT o BAM 2 7t R R A A AT

B JE At S IR A > B AM B A% % B I T R Y
R R R PR - R RN BB MR AEE
st e H P R 4 e R K Sk B

RMBRFEZHGREY > ANRMOFEH
IR S X A ) S T T R - S B A1 A T
HE A B A5 28 % 7 5 B R AM B S R Y B A R AR
Al = 5 > DA B A 30 P A A L > A B R B R G
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Independent Auditors’ Report
T A S

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine those T BRI 22 B i 2 0 o T - AT e IR L
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial S A H) o T S S R 4 o T ek TR R A R A
statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe St o T o A A A SR b S O
these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or regulation precludes public Bix I s LR T 4 B 45 R 08 2 o I > sl AE R i
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine FEREUT > R A BT A A A b s
that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse 2 T PRI £ T A% SRR A 0 SRR 2 o A
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public FEARWEAE B I R I o

interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement director on the audit resulting in the independent auditors’ report LA S A B A R T TE S R RO o
is Hui Chun Keung, David.

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited 1 5l i s A B W]
Certified Public Accountants L ES

Hui Chun Keung, David W R

Practising Certificate Number: P05447 3 R AW 9% - P05447

Hong Kong, 28 March 2018 i —F-NE=ZH - 1+/)N\H

AR it
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
Aoy TE At B Al 2 i B A

For the year ended 31 December 2017

BEF-LETZHAZ T HILEE

Notes

Revenue KA 5
Cost of sales BB AR
Gross profit EF
Other income H Al A 7
Selling and marketing expenses P KBS X
Administrative expenses AT BB 32
Gain on bargain purchase EAEU A€ 35
Fair value change on financial liabilities AR AR Z

at fair value through profit or loss SRl A2 AT HED) 33
Fair value change on investment properties ~ & WHEZ A FHED) 17
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries Hh B B B o W] 2 W 37
Impairment loss on goodwill TR AP A 1R 19
Share of profit of an associate JREAY — [T 8 2 W) Z i ) 15
Finance costs B A 8
Profit before tax o A5, iy ¥4 )
Income tax expense P B 32 9
Profit for the year A7 B i A 10
Other comprehensive income/(expense) b 2wk ()
Items that will not be reclassitied NG EFAHHER G ZIHH -

to profit or loss:
Revaluation of property, LA Y 0 & L

plant and equipment 16
Deferred tax liability on recognition of e W A 3~ W B 2

revaluation of property, A S A5 I A

plant and equipment
Items that may be reclassified subsequently — HZ \J HH M E R as Z HH -

to profit or loss:
Share of exchange differences of an associate Al — [H] 1 %5 2 =] 14 B 5. 25 B 15
Reclassification adjustment for exchange T H A O A ] Ry 4

reserve release upon disposal of Ve B, it 5 =2 2T 4 )

subsidiaries 37
Exchange differences on translating of e FLIT AP S P B A M B B

foreign operations
Fair value gain on available-for-sale A R E 2 AT RS

investments
Other comprehensive income/(expense) 5% T 15 i A% 4 3 LA

for the year, net of income tax R (32 H)
Total comprehensive income/(expense) AR AR (S ) AU

for the year

2017 2016
L SRR
HK$°000 HK$°000
T#x TH#T

1,934,024
(1,366,473)

567,551

84,659
(512,080)
(465 446)

12,104
126,172
254,146

3,136
(19,856)

50,386
(763)

49,623

585,652

(146,413)

(5,763)

11,677

(520,475)

(75,322)

(25,699)
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

Bk B B A 2 i R i

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #E -~ F—LE T A= —HILEE

2017 2016
e St ZRA
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Mt ik T#T T
Profit/(loss) for the year attributable to:  FAI A L HEASSE R A, (1) ©
Owners of the Company AR EHER A 123,740
Non-controlling interests Ik I HE 25 (74,117)
49,623
Total comprehensive income/(expense) TH AL W R (3H)
attributable to: B
Owners of the Company PN/ 2SN 167,430
Non-controlling interests I e I HE 25 (193,129)
(25,699)
(Restated)
(FEF])
Earnings per share IR A A 14
— Basic (HK dollar per share) — A (FEReiT) 0.01
— Diluted (HK dollar per share) — ¥ (g RwIT) 0.01

& |
A B 5 s

V1L
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

TRt RN

At 31 December 2017 W _Z—tLE+H=+—H

Notes
Kt

Non-current assets IR Wy %
Goodwill [k 19
Other intangible assets oAl JE TR B A 18
Property, plant and equipment LB RN & 16
Investment properties Ed =gk 17
Long-term rental deposits R &% 4 24
Note receivables JE W 24
Available-for-sale investments gk R 20
Current assets bR b g
Inventories sy 22
Trade receivables W B 5 MRk 23
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables T8 {4 3k JH ~ #% 4 F il 8 Wik 16 24
Available-for-sale investments &R E 20
Financial assets at fair value through HATE R AR 2R Z 4 Bl

profit or loss 21
Pledged bank deposits TG SRAT A7 K 25
Cash and cash equivalents Bl& R B4 %Y 25
Total assets ¥ AE
Current liabilities LBy £
Trade payables JEAT B 5 MRk 26
Deposits from customers KP4 27
Accrued liabilities and other payables JRE T 4 A3 e Al WA 3R I 27
Amounts due to non-controlling interests M {5 JE 45 B B %5 3K TH 28
Amounts due to related companies JRE A R 7 2 ] K IE 28
Obligation under finance lease MM EIE T 2 HAE 30
Borrowings — current portions ik — RV #8 43 31
Convertible bonds % 5 0 33
Provisions g 34
Current tax liabilities B J90 58 E £ £5
Net current assets R ) 5 AN A
Total assets less current liabilities 80 RO ) £ 4

ﬁ
s
-

2017 2016
- SRR
HK$°000 HK$’000
T#x T

870,169
227,027
6,339,288
5,431,830
16,954

12,885,268

5,027,477
60,487
3,737,257

1,129,917
1,860,257
446,737

12,262,132

25,147,400

1,549,582
1,221,474
754,074
140,453
20,983
334
3,035,626

54,242
136,377

6,913,145

5,348,987

18,234,255
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

BB LR

At 31 December 2017 R _F—t&E+_H=1+—H

2017
Bt S
Notes HKS$’000
s T#x
Capital and reserves A B il
Share capital A 29
Share premium and reserves JBe A3 i AT B fit
Equity attributable to owners of PNASEE 2PN N £
the Company
Non-controlling interests e e 2
Total equity i 2% A4
Non-current liabilities I 5 ) £ 4%
Deferred income WA 27
Long-term payable 1 1) A kR 27
Borrowings i 31
Obligation under finance lease AEMEH T ZHE 30
Convertible bonds CE Y dr 33
Deferred tax liabilities B SE B LR 32

The consolidated financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the

Board of Directors on 28 March 2018 and were signed on its behalf by:

King Pak Fu

Director

RAEF
HF

RAMBERECR -F - \FE=AZFN\HEESR

2016
SRR
HK$°000
T

3,375,546
3,675,471

7,051,017
1,701,039

8,752,056

12,447
77,376
5,435,386
346
2,502,322
1,454,322

9,482,199

18,234,255

o bl B A RE T B8 - 0 b TR AR

Wang Chunning
EH S

Director

#HF
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
AR S R
For the year ended 31 December 2017 #&E_F—LHFE+ZH=+—HIL4EE
Attributable to owners of the Company
BB R THAA
Convertible
bonds Share Tnvestments Non-
Share Share ~ Contributed equity options  Translati luati I lated controlling Total
capital  premium surplus Teserve Teserve reserve Teserve Teserve losses Total interests equity
WHRR %
Bk RBES MARR O EREE RREGE  EARE  EREE  THEE  RHER it FRRER
HKSON  HKSO00  HKSO0  HKSOM  HKS000  HKSO00  HKSOO)  HKSO00  HKSO0  HKSOH0  HKSO00  HKSO0)
Tgr T FEx T T T T FE T TEx Tex T
Note(a) ~ Note (b)(c)
Wit Hioe
At January 2016 R0 2976476 4573491 9404 BI0 66013 (6l - S QN5 5108 L8168 708629
Profit for the year L] - - - - - - - - IBM I3 (W) 4963
Revaluation of propety, plant and equipment ECHEN 1T | - - - - - - B ) B ) B
Deferred tax liability on recognition of revaluation of HERE L W Rtz
property,plant and equipment BERRAK - - - - - - - (46413 - (146413) - (46413)
Reclassification adjustment for exchange reserve released Ft e — T A R B S
upon disposalof asubsidiary [iz4chs Bl - - - - - 11677 - - - 11617 - 11677
Exchange differences arising on translation of BANER R R ERER
foreign operations - - - - - (407,226) - - - (07220 (119012)  (526238)
Total comprehensive income for the year B AT - - - - - (395549 S A9 B0 16740 (193129)  (25699)
Recognition of equity-settled share-based payments BERDLMER SE S S b 23k - - - - 1407 - - - - 1407 - 11407
Share options apsec/cancelled during th year ERSR/ 2 I RE - - - - (16579 - - - - (657 - (0657
Tssue of shares by way of placing ERRERTRR 39010 1401776 - - - - - - - 1800846 - 1800846
Transaction costs attributable to issue of shares BT AR Sk - (#.219) - - - - - - - (44219 - (#.219)
At31 December 2016 and 1 January 2017 REZ-NEFCAET-0 R
I i ] 335546 5931048 9404 35970 845 (557600) S0 QI TS0 1701039 8752056
Profit for the year B A - - - - - - - S BAT00 394700 130793 52549
Fair value gain on available-for-sale investments W EREATENE - - - - - - 31715 - - 31715 - 31,715
Reclassification adjustment for exchange reserve released Ft B4 v iR
upon dispossl of subsidiares (Nore 37) 2 TR A R (i) - - - - -5 - - -5 -5
Exchange differences arising on translation of PSSR 2B AR
foreign operations " - - B B S = S IR%8 5848
Total comprehensive income for the year MR TIEAA = = = = - 30 31715 S0 5 BT 1060936
Share options cancelled during the year R B - - - = (845) = = = = (845) = (845)
Acquisiton of subsidiaries (Note 35) WBREAR (Hiss) = - s = = = = = = ER X VR 7R
Acaquisiton of non-controlling inerests (Note J5) VOB Je et (tss) = - = = = = = = 14731 W31 (181850)  (167,119)
Issue of shares by way of placing BRRERTRG 60,000 180,000 - - - - - - - 240,000 - 240,000
Transaction costs attributable to issue of shares BRI BEN R AHA - (2,400) - - - - - - - (2,400) - (2400
Recogaition of equity component of convertble bonds B bk R R A - - = 4484 - = - = = 4484 = 4484
Deferted tax liabiliy on recognition of equity component of Bl R R A
comertible bonds RERRAK - - - (140) - - - - - (740) - (740)
Cancellation of convertible bonds LAt - - - (374 - - - - 374 - - 5
Tssue of shares upon rights issue EREBRTR G 858886 838,886 - - - - - - SN - Lm
Transaction costs attibutable o ights issue BERAE A Sk - (390 - - = < = 2 - (390 - (390
At 31 December 2017 e S ol S e 4094430 6928614 044 35970 - (86870)  BLTIS 439239 (LTI0200) 9782304 1967232 11749536
) 1 T:’ g J :
T L
1 My ¢ i3 8
ey ANt ) Ry —
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
Py BTy U ES
For the year ended 31 December 2017 #E -~ F—LE T A= —HILEE

Notes: Mt -

(a)  Under the Companies Act of Bermuda, the share premium of the Company can be (@)  MRIBEREAN R AR A E] Z B p i T 1R A
used in paying up unissued shares of the Company to be issued to members of the A BEAT T AL B B A By O U AL 2 A A ] 1
Company as fully paid bonus shares. REBEAT AR

(b)  The contributed surplus of the Group represented the net amount arising from the (b)  ARERE Z BB ERTR R B H IR Oy R~
reduction of share premium account, capital reduction and amounts transferred to JBEAR J i D) G 89 408 A 4R B BT 1R AR IH Z
write off the accumulated losses in prior years. Hio

(©) Under the Companies Act of Bermuda, the contributed surplus of a company is (c) MR FEA /U AR Z A BRI T IR T

available for distribution to shareholders. However, a company cannot declare or T o SR > A TFHIE BT > A R A ] DU BB

pay a dividend, or make a distribution out of contributed surplus, if: B YR IR B B B A 4 UR

(1) the company is, or would after the payment be, unable to pay its liabilities (1) IHk 2 ) 8 3 TAE RS AR N B 9 S A L EN
as they become due; or ZAHIE s B

(ii)  the realisable value of the company’s assets would thereby be less than the (i) MO Z B A R A B A PR IO
aggregate of its liabilities and its issued share capital and share premium 5 B CBEAT IR AR B ¥ R R 2 AL o

account.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

A B R R

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #ZE R —LETF - H=Z1T—HILEE

2017

—®B— g

Notes HK$’000
it T

Operating activities
Profit for the year
Adjustments for:
Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment
Amortisation of other intangible assets
Fair value change on investment
properties
Fair value change on financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss
Finance costs
Equity-settled share-based payments
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries
Income tax expense
Interest income on bank and other deposits
Dividend income from listed investments
(Gain)/loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment
Written-off on property, plant and
equipment
Impairment losses on property, plant and
equipment
Recognition in non-cash items of
cost of sales
Share of profit of an associate
Loss on early redemption of senior bonds
Impairment losses on other receivables
Gain on bargain purchase
Impairment loss on goodwill
Gain in respect of convertible bonds
cancelled

BEEEH
A i A1)
R
LIE N VYT Y A

A JHE TR 5 4
B 32 N FAHSE W)

TaHER AR Z SRA R
KPR E)

S 25 P A

VIRE 25 %5 5 Ay SO A 2 ak0H
B I 4 W) 2 W ds

Fr A B 5

SRAT B LA A7 3R B A
AA B BE Z B A
B - R Sl
(Wedk) /e iR

Yo ~ W5 e A

o3 ~ W7 B B 2 A A 4R
W8 B B AR 2 JE B TH A

JREAY; — [ M % 2 ) = Ha
342 1l B I B S RO 2 s R
A O o R Kk 2 kN 1R
it i WA O Wi 2
7 Ol s 4
e 8 T I 2 2 Wi

2016

B
HK$’000
Tt

49,623

92,596
4,106

(126,172)

(12,104)
19,856
(65,168)
(254,146)
763
(34,175)
(326)

872
752
89,087

481,571

(3,136)
1,471
38,261

91



Carnival Group International Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2017

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

BT BlLERER

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #ZE ~F—LE T+ H=Z1T—HILEE

2017
i e o 3
Notes HK$°000
Kt T#xT
Operating cash flows before movements BEGSHEN 2B EB &R
in working capital
Movements in working capital: BIEE
Inventories pece
Trade receivables JRE W B2 5 MRk
Prepayments, deposits and FE AT R ~ e 4 B H: A WOk I
other receivables
Financial assets at fair value N T EFABR Z SR E
through profit or loss
Trade payables JEAT B 5 MRk
Deposits from customers BPESE
Accrued liabilities and other payables JRE 51 4 £ 5 HL Al B Ao 3K I
Deferred income AW A
Long-term rental deposits RIS
Cash generated from /(used in) operations mmEmEE (i) 284
Tax paid EA BT

Net cash from/(used in) operating activities mEEHEt (iR ZBeTHE

Investing activities B E B

Interest received BRI B

Dividend received from listed investments 4% b i & & )i B

Purchase of available-for-sale investments i B #] 8§ & % &

Purchase of note receivables i A O B S

Repayment from related companies 2 BT ) 2 B IR R

Additions to property, plant and VSR /E Y N &L
equipment

Additions to investment properties WEIREYE

Additions to other intangible assets R Al TR B A

Acquisition of subsidiaries (net of cash U 4PN R
and cash equivalents acquired) Bl BBl &%) 35

Acquired assets through acquisition of 75 3% WKLV A JB 2 ) WO =
subsidiaries (net of cash and B (BRI Z
cash equivalents acquired) B4 RBL&5EY)

Acquisition of non-controlling interests W Jif I 47 JBe i 25

Proceeds from disposal of subsidiaries H 8 [ A B 2 B Ak T 37

Withdrawal of pledged bank deposits TR T SRAT

Proceeds from disposal of property, e ME K2
plant and equipment g7 e

Net cash used in investing activities BEEE TN B & FH

2016
A
HK$°000
T

283,731

(749,505)
20,192

(440,340)

(390,679)
(98,341)

(179,844)
201,973
(66,073)

(1,418,886)
(18,064)

(1,436,950)

35,083
326

5,430

(1,280,315)
(90,260)
(24,482)

115,000
375,099

38

(864,081)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

BT BlLERER

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #ZE ~F—LE T+ H=Z1T—HILEE

2017 2016
e Sl i 3 RN
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
it T TF#sT
R
Financing activities T
Interest paid [BEEIIDES (854,591)
New bank and other borrowings BB SRAT B A K 2,972,196
Repayment (to)/from non-controlling (i), A B i i ds =
interests (-3¢ 88,229
Repayment of bank and other borrowings 18 % $47 S JAb A 3Kk (3,045,291)
Repayment of obligation under finance BEREMEH T Z 8]
lease (354)
Proceeds from issue of ordinary shares AT Ak 0E 1,800,846
Proceeds from issue of shares pursuant to A5 #4547 B A T 15 5K 0
rights issue -
Proceeds from issue of bonds BT EFE R RE 1,688,000
Proceeds from issue of convertible bonds 47 A 4 i 5 7¢ B A4 3K I -
Share issue expenses BAT Ay X (44,219)
Bonds issue expenses BT (59,081)
Convertible bonds issue expenses AT AR F S -
Repurchase of senior bonds Jif Il B e £ 25 (498,984)
Net cash from financing activities AR E Rl B B A 2,046,751
Net decrease in cash and B4 B B4 M 2 WA T
cash equivalents (254,280)
Cash and cash equivalents at the AERIZ B4 BB S
beginning of the year 717,989
Effects of foreign exchange rate changes [ 3 i 55 i 2% (16,972)
Cash and cash equivalents at the AR 2B BB S EY
end of the year 25 446,737
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Ao 3 5 WA Wk

For the year ended 31 December 2017

1.

RE_FE—LET A=+ —HIEE
GENERAL INFORMATION

Carnival Group International Holdings Limited (the “Company’) was
incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted company with limited liability and
its shares are listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The Company’s registered office is situated
at Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda. The
Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong is situated at Suites
1804-1810, 18th Floor, Everbright Centre, 108 Gloucester Road, Wanchai,
Hong Kong.

The Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”)
are principally engaged in theme based leisure and consumption business,
focusing on the design, development and operation of integrated large-scale
tourist complex projects in key cities in and outside the People’s Republic
of China (the “PRC”) that comprise of theme parks, hotels, shopping and

leisure facilities as well as other theme based consumption.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily effective
for the current year

The Group has applied the following amendments to HKFRSs issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) for the
first time in the current year:

Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure Initiative

Amendments to HKAS 12 Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for
Unrealised Losses
Amendments to HKFRS 12 As part of the Annual Improvements to

HKFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle

Except as described below, the application of the amendments to HKFRSs
in the current year has had no material impact on the Group’s financial
performance and positions for the current and prior years and/or on the

disclosures set out in these consolidated financial statements.

— RS R

AR R R A E ([ARAF D) AR
S M o B R AR AT PR B A ]
By AT I A 28 A IR AR (TR pr ] ) &
AR BT o A2 B Z RE M B g 5E 3R Clarendon
House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM11,
Bermuda ° A/ 7] Z Fr ¥ 5 4 3 1 B SR
WE T AT E 10858 X K0 1818 1804-1810
o

A T B I g A T (AR A [ACHR I ) %
e o A D) R T o R - FO A BN RS
A (7] ) R 3 b 238 4k ik wt - B 3% e
BB KRBRE AR A H - B A
W~ T A A D i DA e L At R 2
HH -

M R0 W B 488055 T 7 o B ko
I (17 B it el )

T AR A R o 2 38 2 S A T A e S
5 8 o8 e

A G T TP A4 B UK ME T DAT B A 9
A (THBEEHA G ) B2 T
S 785 e o R 1)

W A 1 5 5t
BT Z BT
Ul W AR 2 B M 1 e R
125k BT 9 92 750 0 5
WM BB AR R
125k 2 BT BRI "R —NEE
R RNERY

FEREYOEZ

BT SCR A3 b > T A J5E B A A o S B
e J) 2 A6 T A G A AR A B BB AR AR B2
B 5 2 B RO UL K S B A B T B R
Jit 4R 5 < 4 8% 3 408 7K B o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A B IR
For the year ended 31 December 2017 #E _F—tE+T_H=Z+—HIL4EE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure Initiative

The Group has applied these amendments for the first time in the current
year. The amendments require an entity to provide disclosures that enable
users of financial statements to evaluate changes in liabilities arising from
financing activities, including both cash and non-cash changes. In addition,
the amendments also require disclosures on changes in financial assets if
cash flows from those financial assets were, or future cash flows will be,

included in cash flows from financing activities.

Specifically, the amendments require the following to be disclosed: (i)
changes from financing cash flows; (ii) changes arising from obtaining or
losing control of subsidiaries or other businesses; (iii) the effect of changes

in foreign exchange rates; (iv) changes in fair values; and (v) other changes.

A reconciliation between the opening and closing balances of these items
is provided in Note 44. Consistent with the transition provisions of the
amendments, the Group has not disclosed comparative information for the
prior year. Apart from the additional disclosure in Note 44, the application of
these amendments has had no impact on the Group’s consolidated financial

statements.
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2.

BEZF-LETZAZ T HILEE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”’) (Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised HKFRSs that

have been issued but are not yet effective:

HKFRS 9

HKFRS 15

HKFRS 16

HKFRS 17

HK(IFRIC)-Int 22

HKIFRIC)-Int 23

Amendments to HKFRS 2

Amendments to HKFRS 4

Amendments to HKFRS 9

Amendments to HKFRS 10

and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKAS 28

Amendments to HKAS 28

Amendments to HKAS 40

Amendments to HKFRSs

Financial Instruments’

Revenue from Contracts with Customers
and the related Amendments'’
Leases’

Insurance Contracts*

Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance
Consideration’

Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments’

Classification and Measurement of Share-
based Payment Transactions’

Applying HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments
with HKFRS 4 Insurance Contracts’

Prepayment Features with Negative
Compensation®

Sale or Contribution of Assets between
an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture’

Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint
Ventures’

As part of the Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle!
Transfers of Investment Property’

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2015-
2017 Cycle?

_
B e
N

A A VL 0 A 2 32 T B T
7 4 1 5 4 v

A 4 1 Sl 9 42 LR T 5 A A 4B W R A 3K
Z AT e ARG R A W S i L

v B
%%

T ¥ A 25 i i R
159

T v B 2 i 5 M R
H165E

T U I i e 1)
1T

s (15 B B 7 45
BEEHE) -
RS20

s (10 B B 7 A
AREEHE) -
W R 23R

v T i i
SNk Z T

v T i i e 1
AR Z BT

T ¥ B 5 i e A
o X &R
T B 5 i e A
0% XA & 5
e JI| 45280 > B HT
8 & s g Al
S8R Z B HT
v o 5 g Al
HosE 2 BT

Frits g e Al
BA0BEZ BT

TR A

FEPREHUAK
£H B 15 7T
5

IR S R
B

P 1 B JE P 2
A1 GE 2

Yty 3 1 2 45 2 4
R Al 2

T B 7
I f FEATE 1R B
A — F HEJH
S A A
FodEE TR

IR 17 il 1 38 AT
B

e EE A S 8 4 ]
Cazg & =il
B M RN

VT
GEEEZS
RA 7t

1E 25 7r 8 B 3 7
HEHZF—HEE
ZEANERH
9 JE R HEZ — B A

LG H

TWMBRE RN FHEYER A

(C3)

ZFAFEE
ZF LY
PR



FEAE B R TR F] | 20174F 8t

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A I B IR B
For the year ended 31 December 2017 #ZE ~F—LE T+ H=Z1T—HILEE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective
(Continued)

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018

2

Eftective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be determined

4

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021

Except for the new and amendments to HKFRSs and Interpretations
mentioned below, the directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of all other new and amendments to HKFRSs and Interpretations
will have no material impact on the consolidated financial statements in the

foreseeable future.

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements for the classification and
measurement of financial assets, financial liabilities, general hedge

accounting and impairment requirements for financial assets.
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective
(Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 which are relevant to the Group are:

. all recognised financial assets that are within the scope of HKFRS
9 are required to be subsequently measured at amortised cost or fair
value. Specifically, debt investments that are held within a business
model whose objective is to collect the contractual cash flows, and
that have contractual cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal outstanding are generally measured at
amortised cost at the end of subsequent accounting periods. Debt
instruments that are held within a business model whose objective
is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling
financial assets, and that have contractual terms that give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding, are generally measured
at fair value through other comprehensive income (“FVTOCT”). All
other financial assets are measured at their fair value at subsequent
accounting periods. In addition, under HKFRS 9, entities may
make an irrevocable election to present subsequent changes in the
fair value of an equity investment (that is not held for trading) in
other comprehensive income, with only dividend income generally

recognised in profit or loss;

. with regard to the measurement of financial liabilities designated
as at fair value through profit or loss, HKFRS 9 requires that the
amount of change in the fair value of the financial liability that is
attributable to changes in the credit risk of that liability is presented
in other comprehensive income, unless the recognition of the effects
of changes in the liability’s credit risk in other comprehensive
income would create or enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit
or loss. Changes in fair value attributable to a financial liability’s
credit risk are not subsequently reclassified to profit or loss. Under
HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement, the
entire amount of the change in the fair value of the financial liability
designated as fair value through profit or loss is presented in profit or

loss;
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED 2.

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective
(Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

3 in relation to the impairment of financial assets, HKFRS 9 requires
an expected credit loss model, as opposed to an incurred credit loss
model under HKAS 39. The expected credit loss model requires
an entity to account for expected credit losses and changes in those
expected credit losses at each reporting date to reflect changes in
credit risk since initial recognition. In other words, it is no longer
necessary for a credit event to have occurred before credit losses are

recognised.

Based on the Group’s financial instruments and risk management policies as
at 31 December 2017, the directors of the Company anticipate the following
potential impact on initial application of HKFRS 9:

Classification and measurement:

. Unlisted investments including private fund and equity securities
classified as available-for-sale investments carried at fair value as
disclosed in Note 20: these investments qualified for designation as
measured at FVTOCI under HKFRS 9, however, the fair value gains
accumulated in the investments revaluation reserve amounting to
approximately HK$31,715,000 as at 1 January 2018 will no longer
be subsequently reclassified to profit or loss under HKFRS 9, which
is different from the current treatment. This will affect the amounts
recognised in the Group’s profit or loss and other comprehensive

income but will not affect total comprehensive income;
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2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”’) (Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective
(Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

Classification and measurement: (Continued)

Convertible bonds issued by the Group designated as at fair value
through profit or loss (“FVTPL”) as disclosed in Note 33: these
financial liabilities qualified for designation as measured at FVTPL
under HKFRS 9, however, the amount of change in the fair value of
these financial liabilities that is attributable to changes in the credit
risk of those liabilities will be recognised in other comprehensive
income with the remaining fair value change recognised in profit or
loss. This is different from the current accounting treatment under
which the entire change in fair value of the financial liabilities is
recognised in profit or loss. The change in fair value attributed to
a change in credit risk of these financial liabilities amounting to
approximately HK$6,759,000 during the current year would be
recognised in other comprehensive income were HKFRS 9 applied;

and

All other financial assets and financial liabilities will continue to be
measured on the same bases as are currently measured under HKAS
39.
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2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective
(Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)
Impairment:

In general, the directors of the Company anticipate that the application of
the expected credit loss model of HKFRS 9 will result in earlier provision of
credit losses which are not yet incurred in relation to the Group’s financial
assets measured at amortised costs and other items that subject to the

impairment provisions upon application of HKFRS 9 by the Group.

Based on the assessment by the directors of the Company, if the expected
credit loss model were to be applied by the Group, the accumulated amount
of impairment loss to be recognised by Group as at 1 January 2018 would be
slightly increased as compared to the accumulated amount recognised under
HKAS 39 mainly attributable to expected credit losses provision on trade
and other receivables. Such further impairment recognised under expected
credit loss model would reduce the opening retained profits at 1 January
2018.
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2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”’) (Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective
(Continued)

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers”

HKFRS 15 was issued which establishes a single comprehensive model
for entities to use in accounting for revenue arising from contracts with
customers. HKFRS 15 will supersede the current revenue recognition
guidance including HKAS 18 “Revenue”, HKAS 11 “Construction
Contracts” and the related interpretations when it becomes effective.

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity should recognise revenue to
depict the transfer of promised goods or services to customers in an amount
that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in
exchange for those goods or services. Specifically, the standard introduces a
5-step approach to revenue recognition:

Step 1:  Identify the contract(s) with a customer
Step 2:  Identify the performance obligations in the contract
Step 3:  Determine the transaction price

Step 4:  Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the

contract

Step 5:  Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a performance

obligation

Under HKFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods or services
underlying the particular performance obligation is transferred to the
customer. Far more prescriptive guidance has been added in HKFRS 15 to
deal with specific scenarios. Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required
by HKFRS 15.

In 2016, the HKICPA issued Clarifications to HKFRS 15 in relation
to the identification of performance obligations, principal versus agent
considerations, as well as licensing application guidance.
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”’) (Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective
(Continued)

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers” (Continued)

The directors of the Company has reassessed its business model and contract
terms to assess the effects of applying the new standard on the Group’s
financial statements and has identified the following areas that will be
affected:

. Revenue from pre-sales of properties under development is
recognised when or as the control of the asset is transferred to the
customer. Depending on the terms of the contract and laws that apply
to the contract, control of the properties under development may
transfer over time or at a point in time.

. The timing of revenue recognition for sale of completed properties,
which is currently based on whether significant risk and reward of
ownership of properties transfer, will be recognised at a later point in
time when the underlying property is legally or physically transfer to
the customer under the control transfer model.

. The Group currently offers different payment schemes to customers,
the transaction price and the amount of revenue for the sale of
property will be adjusted when significant financial component exists
in that contract.

. The Group may provide different incentives to customers when
they sign a property sale contract. Certain incentives (e.g. free gift
and property management service) represents separate performance
obligation in a contract. Part of the consideration of the contract will
be allocated to those performance obligations and recognised as
revenue only when performance obligation is satisfied. The amount
of revenue for the sale of property will also be reduced for any cash
payment to customer which doesn’t not represent fair value of good or
service provided by the customer.

. Certain costs incurred for obtaining a pre-sale property contract (e.g.
sale commission), which is currently expensed off in profit and loss
directly, will be eligible for capitalisation under HKFRS 15 and match
with revenue recognition pattern of related contract in the future.
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2.

BEZF-LETZAZ T HILEE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective
(Continued)

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers” (Continued)

The Group is estimating the overall impact of the above to the Group’s

retained earnings on 1 January 2018.

HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16 introduces a comprehensive model for the identification of
lease arrangements and accounting treatments for both lessors and lessees.
HKFRS 16 will supersede HKAS 17 Leases and the related interpretations

when it becomes effective.

HKFRS 16 distinguishes lease and service contracts on the basis of whether
an identified asset is controlled by a customer. Distinctions of operating
leases and finance leases are removed for lessee accounting, and is replaced
by a model where a right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability have to be
recognised for all leases by lessees, except for short-term leases and leases of

low value assets.

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost and subsequently
measured at cost (subject to certain exceptions) less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, adjusted for any remeasurement of the
lease liability. The lease liability is initially measured at the present value
of the lease payments that are not paid at that date. Subsequently, the lease
liability is adjusted for interest and lease payments, as well as the impact
of lease modifications, amongst others. For the classification of cash flows,
the Group currently presents upfront prepaid lease payments as investing
cash flows in relation to leasehold lands for owned use and those classified
as investment properties while other operating lease payments are presented
as operating cash flows. Upon application of HKFRS 16, lease payments
in relation to lease liability will be allocated into a principal and an interest
portion which will be presented as financing and financing/operating cash

flows respectively by the Group.
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2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”’) (Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective
(Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

Under HKAS 17, the Group has already recognised an asset and a related
finance lease liability for finance lease arrangement and prepaid lease
payments for leasehold lands where the Group is a lessee. The application of
HKFRS 16 may result in potential changes in classification of these assets
depending on whether the Group presents right-of-use assets separately
or within the same line item at which the corresponding underlying assets

would be presented if they were owned.

In contrast to lessee accounting, HKFRS 16 substantially carries forward
the lessor accounting requirements in HKAS 17, and continues to require a
lessor to classify a lease either as an operating lease or a finance lease.

Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by HKFRS 16.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group has non-cancellable operating lease
commitments of approximately HK$88,728,000 as disclosed in Note 38.
A preliminary assessment indicates that these arrangements will meet the
definition of a lease under HKFRS 16, and hence the Group will recognise a
right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability in respect of all these leases
unless they qualify for low value or short-term leases upon the application
of HKFRS 16. In addition, the application of new requirements may result
changes in measurement, presentation and disclosure as indicated above.
However, it is not practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of the
financial effect until the directors complete a detailed review.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (“Listing Rules”) and by the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (“CQO”).
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3.

BEZF-LETZAZ T HILEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical
cost basis except for certain properties and financial instruments that are
measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period, as explained in the
accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given
in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at
the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly observable
or estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value
of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the characteristics of
the asset or liability if market participants would take those characteristics
into account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.
Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these consolidated
financial statements is determined on such a basis, except for share-
based payment transactions that are within the scope of HKFRS 2, leasing
transactions that are within the scope of HKAS 17, and measurements
that have some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as net
realisable value in HKAS 2 or value in use in HKAS 36.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market
participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its
highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would
use the asset in its highest and best use.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are
categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs to the
fair value measurements are observable and the significance of the inputs to
the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the
measurement date;

. Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within
Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or
indirectly; and

. Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements
of the Company and entities controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries.

Control is achieved when the Company:
. has power over the investee;

. is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with

the investee; and
. has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and
circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the three

elements of control listed above.

When the Group has less than a majority of the voting rights of an investee,
it has power over the investee when the voting rights are sufficient to give it
the practical ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee unilaterally.
The Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing
whether or not the Group’s voting rights in an investee are sufficient to give

it power, including:

. the size of the Group’s holding of voting rights relative to the size and

dispersion of holdings of the other vote holders;

. potential voting rights held by the Group, other vote holders or others

parties;
. rights arising from other contractual agreements; and
. any additional facts and circumstances that indicate that the Group

has, or does not have, the current ability to direct the relevant activities
at the time that decisions need to be made, including voting patterns at

previous shareholders’ meetings.
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3.

BEZF-LETZAZ T HILEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control over
the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control of the subsidiary.
Specifically, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income from the date the Group gains control until

the date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income are attributed
to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling interests. Total
comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the
Company and to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-

controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of
subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with the Group’s

accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows
relating to transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in full

on consolidation.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing subsidiaries that do
not result in the Group losing control over the subsidiaries are accounted
for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the Group’s relevant
components of equity and the non-controlling interests are adjusted to
reflect the changes in their relative interests in the subsidiaries, including re-
attribution of relevant reserves between the Group and the non-controlling
interests according to the Group’s and the non-controlling interests’

proportionate interests.
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3.

BEZF-LETZAZ T HILEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries (Continued)

Any difference between the amount by which the non-controlling interests
are adjusted, and the fair value of the consideration paid or received is

recognised directly in equity and attributed to owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the assets and liabilities of
that subsidiary and non-controlling interests (if any) are derecognised. A
gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss and is calculated as the difference
between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration received
and the fair value of any retained interest and (ii) the carrying amount of
the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary attributable
to the owners of the Company. All amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in relation to that subsidiary are accounted for as
if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities of the
subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss or transferred to another category
of equity as specified/permitted by applicable HKFRSs). The fair value of
any investment retained in the former subsidiary at the date when control
is lost is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition for subsequent
accounting under HKAS 39 or, when applicable, the cost on initial

recognition of an investment in an associate or a joint venture.
Investment in subsidiaries

Investment in subsidiaries are included in the Company’s statement of

financial position at cost less any identified impairment loss.
Investment in associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence.
Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and operating
policy decisions of the investee but is not control or joint control over those

policies.
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3.

BEZF-LETZAZ T HILEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Investment in associates (Continued)

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are incorporated in these
consolidated financial statements using the equity method of accounting,
except when the investment, or a portion thereof, is classified as held for sale,
in which case it is or the portion so classified is accounted for in accordance
with HKFRS 5. Any retained portion of an investment in an associate that
has not been classified as held for sale shall be accounted for arising the
equity method. Under the equity method, an investment in an associate is
initially recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position at
cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of the profit or
loss and other comprehensive income of the associate. Changes in net assets
of the associate other than profit or loss and other comprehensive income
are not accounted for unless such changes resulted in changes in ownership
interest held by the Group. When the Group’s share of losses of an associate
or exceeds the Group’s interest in that associate (which includes any long-
term interests that, in substance, form part of the Group’s net investment
in the associate), the Group discontinues recognising its share of further
losses. Additional losses are recognised only to the extent that the Group has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the

associate.

An investment in an associate is accounted for using the equity method from
the date on which the investee becomes an associate. On acquisition of the
investment in an associate, any excess of the cost of the investment over the
Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of
the investee is recognised as goodwill, which is included within the carrying
amount of the investment. Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair
value of the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of the investment,
after reassessment, is recognised immediately in profit or loss in the period

in which the investment is acquired.
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3.

BEZF-LETZAZ T HILEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Investment in associates (Continued)

The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied to determine whether it is
necessary to recognise any impairment loss with respect to the Group’s
investment in an associate. When necessary, the entire carrying amount of
the investment (including goodwill) is tested for impairment in accordance
with HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets as a single asset by comparing
its recoverable amount (higher of value in use and fair value less costs
of disposal) with its carrying amount, Any impairment loss recognised
forms part of the carrying amount of the investment. Any reversal of that
impairment loss is recognised in accordance with HKAS 36 to the extent that

the recoverable amount of the investment subsequently increases.

When the Group ceases to have significant influence over an associate, it
is accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in the investee with a
resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss. When the Group
retains an interest in the former associate and the retained interest is a
financial asset within the scope of HKAS 39, the Group measures the
retained interest at fair value at that date and the fair value is regarded as its
fair value on initial recognition. The difference between the carrying amount
of the associate and the fair value of any retained interest and any proceeds
from disposing the relevant interest in the associate or joint venture is
included in the determination of the gain or loss on disposal of the associate.
In addition, the Group accounts for all amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income in relation to that associate on the same basis
as would be required if that associate had directly disposed of the related
assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or loss previously recognised in other
comprehensive income by that associate would be reclassified to profit or
loss on the disposal of the related assets or liabilities, the Group reclassifies
the gain or loss from equity to profit or loss (as a reclassification adjustment)

upon disposal/partial disposal of the relevant associate.

The Group continues to use the equity method when an investment in an
associate becomes an investment in a joint venture or an investment in a joint
venture becomes an investment in an associate. There is no remeasurement

to fair value upon such changes in ownership interests.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Investment in associates (Continued)

‘When the Group reduces its ownership interest in an associate but the Group
continues to use the equity method, the Group reclassifies to profit or loss the
proportion of the gain or loss that had previously been recognised in other
comprehensive income relating to that reduction in ownership interest if
that gain or loss would be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the

related assets or liabilities.

When a group entity transacts with an associate of the Group, profits and
losses resulting from the transactions with the associate are recognised in the
Group’s consolidated financial statements only to the extent of interests in

the associate that are not related to the Group.
Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the acquisition method.
The consideration transferred in a business combination is measured at fair
value, which is calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of
the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by the Group to the
former owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Group in

exchange for control of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally

recognised in profit or loss as incurred.
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3.

BEF-LETZAZ - HILEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Business combinations (Continued)

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities

assumed are recognised at their fair value, except that:

. deferred tax assets or liabilities and liabilities or assets related
to employee benefit arrangements are recognised and measured
in accordance with HKAS 12 “Income Taxes” and HKAS 19

“Employee Benefits” respectively;

. liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based payment
arrangements of the acquiree or share-based payment arrangements of
the Group entered into to replace share-based payment arrangements
of the acquire are measured in accordance with HKFRS 2 “Share-
based Payment” at the acquisition date (see the accounting policy

below); and

. assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for sale in
accordance with HKFRS 5 “Non-current Assets Held for Sale and
Discontinued Operations” are measured in accordance with that

standard.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree,
and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the
acquiree (if any) over the net amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed as at acquisition date. If, after reassessment, the net
amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds
the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held
interest in the acquire (if any), the excess is recognised immediately in profit

or loss as a bargain purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests and entitle
their holders to a proportionate share of relevant subsidiary’s net assets in the
event of liquidation are initially measured at the non-controlling interests’
proportionate share of the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable
net assets or at fair value. The choice of measurement basis is made on a
transaction-by-transaction basis. Other types of non-controlling interests are

measured at their fair value.

3.

EE A aBOR (4)

20508 ()

TP W AT - M T ) S LR I LR
PR > BT %5 RS :

o ERERLIEE A ok AT SR B R A K PR
B O A A e A o e
SIS 1285% T 45 | B A5 8 7 it o U 58
19%% [ @ B e A | o a8 A it &

o BB DT Z B A Ak 2 K B s AC AR
AT 7 DA B MO T DA BB £ ik 2 %
HEZ DA A A 3k 2 2 HEAH B i £ £ sl i
A T AR A 8 U o o S S 2% T DL
T Aoy A5F sk 1 7 T H R (2 5T 3
TRHEOR) s &

o RN UE B S S U TR AR A
Z I A R TR R S |
P A B R A (R AL ) AR
% 4 )

T B 3 T T AR T B W Ty 2 A e 42 e
R 2 < T B WD N8 1 R A 2 B RO T B e
(A7) Z 2P Z 480 S S 390 o O
Tl R B LR A BB R 2 it e
A 1 TR PP 4 - WA Y 9 W T e
7 T TR M AR I P AR - TR ik
i 5 2 A A 4 o i i e A % WA D N A
AT AR (A ) Z AP Z A
2% B IR e 2 i RO e 2

JRES 77 B W A 2 L S R IR R R A L
0 23t L I B 2 ) R B i
T DL I 5 T 2 5 LU £ HE A B WA O D Tl
7 A O R A R A P (T A o B B R
e 1L JE A2 S 1 A ) 798 458 o LA 7R I 2 Bt
Ml 25 DAL 2y P {5t o

113



Carnival Group International Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2017

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A B IR R B

For the year ended 31 December 2017

3.

BEF-LETZAZ - HILEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Business combinations (Continued)

When the consideration transferred by the Group in a business combination
includes assets or liabilities resulting from a contingent consideration
arrangement, the contingent consideration is measured at its acquisition-date
fair value and included as part of the consideration transferred in a business
combination. Changes in the fair value of the contingent consideration that
qualify as measurement period adjustments are adjusted retrospectively, with
the corresponding adjustments made against goodwill. Measurement period
adjustments are adjustments that arise from additional information obtained
during the “measurement period” (which cannot exceed one year from the
acquisition date) about facts and circumstances that existed at the acquisition
date.

The subsequent accounting for the contingent consideration that do not
qualify as measurement period adjustments depends on how the contingent
consideration is classified. Contingent consideration that is classified as
equity is not remeasured at subsequent reporting dates and its subsequent
settlement is accounted for within equity. Contingent consideration that is
classified as an asset or a liability is remeasured to fair value at subsequent
reporting dates, with the corresponding gain or loss being recognised in

profit or loss.

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the Group’s previously
held equity interest in the acquiree is remeasured to fair value at the
acquisition date (i.e. the date when the Group obtains control), and the
resulting gain or loss, if any, is recognised in profit or loss. Amounts
arising from interests in the acquiree prior to the acquisition date that have
previously been recognised in other comprehensive income are reclassified
to profit or loss where such treatment would be appropriate if that interest

were disposed of.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is incomplete by the end
of the reporting period in which the combination occurs, the Group reports
provisional amounts for the items for which the accounting is incomplete.
Those provisional amounts are adjusted during the measurement period
(see above), and additional assets or liabilities are recognised, to reflect new
information obtained about facts and circumstances that existed as of the
acquisition date that, if known, would have affected the amounts recognised
at that date.
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3.

BEF-LETZAZ - HILEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Acquisition of a subsidiary not constituting a business

When the Group acquires a group of assets that do not constitute a business,
the Group identifies and recognises the individual identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed by allocating the purchase price first to
properties under development for sales, property, plant and equipment which
are at cost, less any recognised impairment loss and financial assets/financial
liabilities at the respective fair values, the remaining balance of the purchase
price is then allocated to the other individual identifiable assets and liabilities
on the basis of their relative fair values at the date of purchase. Such a

transaction does not give rise to goodwill or bargain purchase gain.
Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at cost as
established at the date of acquisition of the business less accumulated

impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to each of the
Group’s cash-generating units (or groups of cash-generating units) that is
expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination, which represent
the lowest level at which the goodwill is monitored for internal management

purposes and not larger than an operating segment.

A cash-generating unit (or group of cash-generating units) to which goodwill
has been allocated is tested for impairment annually, or more frequently
when there is an indication that the unit may be impaired. For goodwill
arising on an acquisition in a reporting period, the cash-generating unit
(or group of cash-generating units) to which goodwill has been allocated
is tested for impairment before the end of that reporting period. If the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit (or group of cash-generating
units) is less than its carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated first
to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit and then
to the other assets of the unit pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of

each asset in the unit (or group of cash-generating units).
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Goodwill (Continued)

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the attributable amount of

goodwill is included in the determination of the profit or loss on disposal.

The Group’s policy for goodwill arising on the acquisition of an associate is

described above.
Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or

receivable.

Revenue is recognised when the amount of revenue can be reliably
measured; when it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to
the Group and when specific criteria have been met for each of the Group’s

activities as described below.

Sale of properties is recognised as revenue when all of the following criteria

are met:

. the significant risk and rewards of ownership of the properties are

transferred to buyers;

. neither continuing managerial involvement to the degree usually

associated with ownership nor effective control over the properties are

retained;
. the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;
. it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the

transaction will flow to the Group; and

. the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction can be

measured reliably.

Deposits received from purchasers prior to meeting the above criteria for
revenue recognition are included in the consolidated statement of financial

position under curfam abilities.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Property management service income is recognised over the period in which

the services are rendered.

Other property related service income is recognised when the services are

rendered.

Revenue from restaurant operations is recognised when catering services

have been provided to customers.

Revenue from the sale of foods is recognised when the significant risks
and rewards of ownership have been transferred to the buyer, provided that
the Group maintains neither managerial involvement to the degree usually

associated with ownership, nor effective control over the foods sold.

Revenue from admission tickets sold is recognised when tickets are accepted
and surrendered by the customers. Revenue from tickets sold for use at a
future date is deferred until the tickets are used by the customers, surrendered

or have expired.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is probable that
the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the amount of income can
be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference
to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable,
which is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts
through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying

amount on initial recognition.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the shareholders’
rights to receive payment have been established (provided that it is probable
that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the amount of income

can be measure reliably).

The Group’s accounting policy for recognition of revenue from operating

leases is described in the accounting policy for leasing below.
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3.

BEF-LETZAZ - HILEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings held for use in the
production or supply of services or for administrative purposes (other than
construction-in-progress as described below) are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost less subsequent accumulated

depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Properties in the course of construction for production, supply or
administrative purposes are carried at cost, less any recognised impairment
loss. Costs include professional fees and, for qualifying assets, borrowing
costs capitalised in accordance with the Group’s accounting policy. Such
properties are classified to the appropriate categories of property, plant and
equipment when completed and ready for intended use. Depreciation of
these assets, on the same basis as other property assets, commences when the

assets are ready for their intended use.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of items of property,
plant and equipment other than construction in progress less their residual
value over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method. The
estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate

accounted for on a prospective basis.

Transfer from owner-occupied property to investment property
carried at fair value

If an item of property, plant and equipment becomes an investment property
because its use has changed as evidenced by end of owner-occupation,
any difference between the carrying amount and the fair value of that item
(including the relevant prepaid lease payments) at the date of transfer is
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in property
revaluation reserve. On the subsequent sale or retirement of the asset, the

relevant revaluation reserve will be transferred directly to retained profits.

3.

EE A aBOR (4)

Yok ~ W5 B e M

o3& ~ Wb B s it G A5 5 A R 2 28 s 43t B Il
B B AR AT B 38 2 M (F At 7 2 g K B
) o THHE AL A% B O R AR R
fERE 1R (A ) TA AR 6 J B R DL SR -

R A ~ B S A AT B d 2 A 4y SR DA
AR T A 4L 51 R o RO 555
St - BT T R AR AR R A AR
RHECRE A Z i FORA o % W 2% T
ARG RE 3R I 3 S A W S ~ 5 B il 2 0
U o W% A I A AR B PO R B A
e BRIty 36 0 FE A 1) 2 B G B 9 85 -

VB T3 AL AL 3 ~ o R st A (A8
FEYSEBRAN ) At mT P A0 P e AR Tk
T 5% ACTAEL ol 1 T PR 40 0 ~ ) o MR % 25
5 W T A 0 R AR Y A - A ol 5 B 2
5 S R O ) e e AR o

A PR Z Y w5 7 B %

i 3 ~ W5 K s M I RIS IR LA 8 ik
(BPAPFHSEE A M) I8 % BB W3 - % 0H
2 R T B A ) 2 AP (RS A R
T ALK ) 2 AT A 2 A L A 2 v e 2 A
TR > SR AN M o Rt R E
7 A sl P I - AR A N R
PR B ¥ ) o



F AT B P R TR ] | 201 74F 8t

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A B IR B

For the year ended 31 December 2017

3.

BEF-LETZAZ - HILEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over their expected
useful lives on the same basis as owned assets. However, when there is no
reasonable certainty that ownership will be obtained by the end of the lease
term, assets are depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and their useful

lives.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or
when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued
use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of
an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference
between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is

recognised in profit or loss.

Building under development for future own-occupied
purpose

Buildings under construction are carried at cost, less any identified
impairment losses. Depreciation of buildings commences when they are
available for use (i.e. when they are in the location and condition necessary

for them to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management).
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3.

BEF-LETZAZ - HILEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or for capital
appreciation (including properties under construction for such purposes).
Investment properties include land held for undetermined future use, which

is regarded as held for capital appreciation purpose.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including any directly
attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment
properties are measured at their fair values. Gains or losses arising from
changes in the fair value of investment properties are included in profit or

loss for the period in which they arise.

Construction costs incurred for investment properties under construction are
capitalised as part of the carrying amount of the investment properties under

construction.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when the
investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and no future
economic benefits are expected from its disposals. Any gain or loss arising
on derecognition of the property (calculated as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the

profit or loss in the period in which the property is derecognised.
Properties for sale

Properties for sale are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Costs include leasehold land cost, development cost, borrowing costs and
other direct costs attributable to such properties, until the relevant properties

reach a marketable state.
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3.

BEF-LETZAZ - HILEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Properties for sale (Continued)

Net realisable value is determined by reference to management estimates of
the selling price based on prevailing market conditions, less all estimated

costs to completion and costs to be incurred in marketing and selling.
Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately
are carried at costs less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment losses/revalued amounts, being their fair value at the date of the
revaluation less subsequent accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment losses. Amortisation for intangible assets with finite useful lives
is recognised on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. The
estimated useful life and amortisation method are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate being accounted
for on a prospective basis. Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives that
are acquired separately are carried at cost less any subsequent accumulated

impairment losses.
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3.

BEF-LETZAZ - HILEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Intangible assets (Continued)

Internally-generated intangible assets — research and development
expenditure

An internally-generated in tangible asset arising from development activities
(or from the development phase of an internal project) is recognised it, and
only if, all of the following have been demonstrated:

. the intention to complete the intangible asset and use or sell it;

. the ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

. how the intangible asset will generate probable future economic
benefits;

. the availability of adequate technical, financial and other resources to

complete the development and to use or sell the intangible asset; and

. the ability to measure reliably the expenditure attributable to the
intangible asset during its development.

The amount initially recognised for internally-generated intangible asset
is the sum of the expenditure incurred from the date when the intangible
asset first meets the recognition criteria listed above. Where no internally-
generated intangible asset can be recognised, development expenditure is
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred.

Subsequent to initial recognition, internally-generated intangible assets are
reported at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment
losses (if any), on the same basis as intangible assets that are acquired
separately.

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination are recognised
separately from goodwill and are initially recognised at their fair value at
the acquisition date (which is regarded as their cost). Subsequent to initial
recognition, intangible assets acquired in a business combination with finite
useful lives are reported at costs less accumulated amortisation and any
accumulated impairment losses/revalued amounts, being their fair value at
the date of the revaluation less subsequent accumulated amortisation and
any accumulated impairment losses, on the same basis as intangible assets
that are acquired separately. Alternatively, intangible assets acquired in a
business combination with indefinite useful lives are carried at cost less any
subsequent accumulated impairment losses (see the accounting policy in

respect of impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets below).
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3.

BEF-LETZAZ - HILEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Intangible assets (Continued)

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination (Continued)

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no future economic
benefits are expected from use or disposal. Gains and losses arising from
derecognition of an intangible asset, measured as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, are recognised in

profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.

Impairment on tangible assets other than goodwill (see accounting policy in

respect of goodwill above)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of
its tangible and intangible assets with finite useful lives to determine whether
there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss.
If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the relevant asset is

estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any).

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and intangible assets not yet
available for use are tested for impairment at least annually, and whenever

there is an indication that they may be impaired.

When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an asset
individually, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs. When a reasonable and consistent
basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also allocated
to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to
the smallest group of cash-generating units for which a reasonable and

consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and
value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset (or a cash-generating unit) for which the estimates of future cash

flows have not been adjusted.
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BEF-LETZAZ - HILEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Intangible assets (Continued)

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination (Continued)

Impairment on tangible assets other than goodwill (see accounting policy in

respect of goodwill above) (Continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit) is estimated
to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or a
cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment
loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless the relevant asset
is carried at a revalued amount under another standard, in which case the

impairment loss is treated as a revaluation decrease under that standard.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of
the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is increased to the revised estimate
of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or a cash-generating unit) in
prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in
profit or loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount under
another standard, in which case the reversal of the impairment loss is treated

as a revaluation increase under that standard.
Inventories

Inventories, other than properties for sale, are stated at the lower of cost
and net realisable value. Costs of inventories are determined on a weighted
average method. Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price
for inventories less all estimated costs of completion and costs necessary to

make the sale.
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3.

BEF-LETZAZ - HILEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All

other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recognised as receivables
at the amount of the Group’s net investment in the leases. Finance lease
income is allocated to accounting periods so as to reflect a constant periodic
rate of return on the Group’s net investment outstanding in respect of the

leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or loss on a
straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs
incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the
carrying amount of the leased asset. Other than investment properties
measured under fair value model, such costs are recognised as an expense on

a straight-line basis over the lease term.

The Group as lessee

Assets held under finance leases are initially recognised as assets of the
Group at their fair value at the inception of the lease or, if lower, at the
present value of the minimum lease payments. The corresponding liability to
the lessor is included in the consolidated statement of financial position as a

finance lease obligation.

Lease payments are apportioned between finance expenses and reduction
of the lease obligation so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on
the remaining balance of the liability. Finance expenses are recognised
immediately in profit or loss, unless they are directly attributable to
qualifying assets, in which case they are capitalised in accordance with
the Group’s general policy on borrowing costs (see the accounting policy
below). Contingent rentals are recognised as expenses in the periods in

which they are incurred.
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BEF-LETZAZ - HILEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leasing (Continued)

The Group as lessee (Continued)

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line
basis over the lease term, except where another systematic basis is more
representative of the time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased
asset are consumed. Contingent rentals arising under operating leases are

recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter into operating leases,
such incentives are recognised as a liability. The aggregate benefit of
incentives is recognised as a reduction of rental expense on a straight-line
basis except where another systematic basis is more representative of the

time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased asset are consumed.
Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity,
transactions in currencies other than the functional currency (foreign
currencies) are recognised at the rates of exchange prevailing on the dates
of the transactions. At the end of the reporting period, monetary items
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at
that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in
foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date when the
fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of

historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items, and on
the retranslation of monetary items, are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they arise except for exchange differences on monetary
items receivable from or payable to a foreign operation for which settlement
is neither planned nor likely to occur (therefore forming part of the net
investment in the foreign operation), which are recognised initially in other
comprehensive income and reclassified from equity to profit or loss on

disposal or partial disposal of the Group’s interests in associates.

3.

EE A aBOR (4)

AL (4

A 25 RBA (H)

A8 R B O AT IR AL ) DA A 3 R s
t o MEA AT D5 — AR AR v AR A A
TS KR M) 2 2 IRy TR ASE X 5 3 ) i o A AL
TP 7 A 2 AR < s A B T e 2 B S

A BT 3 A8 7 REL S O R 48 A - A B A
i s U o B AR 2 DL AL AR R R B A L
BSZ WA > A R R R AR
JEE 22 A58 75 M) 2 T G 1 IR ] A XS B A o

L0t

1 S 451 ) 48 T B R Wy > DA i
B DA Z B (M) Ty BLAL 2 38 5 1R 7 52
Sy H ) 90 P B 3 528 < I o U1 - DLAM
HIE 2 8 W IE H DB H 00 P R ERT R -
O PR DL OIS A2 A 2 £ W 0 B 4 i
AFEE 2 0 R TR T o DAANIE IR B
JRA B 2 I BN R A

BRI A O R B O 8 B Y R 5 2 SRR
U A 9] 1 A 48 2 v e R > M B W E A ¥ A1
S 18 WIH H 2 W 528 SEBRAT > J IR A ]
AT R K AT R A S (TN O it A SE S 4
Bz i) o S At 2 R A B 46 R
B A 45 Tt 45 s 40 5 7 g A W Z
it IR A8 AR 2 TR 2 S R A



F AT B P R TR ] | 201 74F 8t

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A B IR R B

For the year ended 31 December 2017

3.

BEF-LETZAZ - HILEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial statements, the
assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign operations are translated into the
presentation currency of the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) using exchange
rates prevailing at the end of each reporting period. Income and expenses
items are translated at the average exchange rates for the year, unless
exchange rates fluctuate significantly during the period, in which case, the
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of transactions are used. Exchange
differences arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive income and

accumulated in equity under the heading of translation reserve.

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of the Group’s entire
interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss of control over a
subsidiary that includes a foreign operation), all of the exchange differences
accumulated in equity in respect of that operation attributable to the owners

of the Company are reclassified to profit or loss.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets and liabilities
acquired arising on the acquisition of a foreign operation are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign operation and translated at the rate of exchange
prevailing at the end of each reporting period. Exchange differences arising

are recognised in other comprehensive income.
Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
added to the cost of those assets until such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income earned on the
temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure
on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for

capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in

which they are incurred.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans including state-
managed retirement benefit schemes and the Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme are recognised as an expense when employees have rendered service

entitling them to the contributions.

Short-term and other long-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the undiscounted amount
of the benefits expected to be paid as and when employees rendered the
services. All short-term employee benefits are recognised as an expense
unless another HKFRS requires or permits the inclusion of the benefit in the

cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees in respect of
wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave in the period the related
service is rendered at the undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be

paid in exchange for that service.

Liabilities recognised in respect of short-term employee benefits are
measured at the undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid in

exchange for the related service.

Liabilities recognised in respect of other long-term employee benefits are
measured at the present value of the estimated future cash outflows expected

to be made by the Group in respect of services provided by employees up to

the reporting date.
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3.

BEF-LETZAZ - HILEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and

deferred taxation.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable
profit differs from “profit before tax” as reported in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income because of items
of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and items
that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is
calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial statements
and the corresponding tax base used in the computation of taxable profit.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary difference to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits
will be available against which those deductible temporary differences can
be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in
a business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that
affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries, except where the Group is able
to control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred
tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences associated with
such investments and interests are only recognised to the extent that it is
probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise
the benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in
the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of the
reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to
be recovered.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or the asset
is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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3.

BEZF-LETZAZ T HILEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax
consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Group
expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying
amount of its assets and liabilities. Current and deferred taxes are recognised
in profit or loss.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities or deferred tax assets
for investment properties that are measured using the fair value model, the
carrying amounts of such properties are presumed to be recovered entirely
through sale, unless the presumption is rebutted. The presumption is rebutted
when the investment property is depreciable and is held within a business
model whose objective is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the investment property over time, rather than through
sale.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a group entity
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value.
Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue
of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets or
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or
deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to
the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

Financial assets are classified into the following specified categories:
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”),
available-for-sale (“AFS”) financial assets and loans and receivables. The
classification depends on the nature and purpose of the financial assets and
is determined at the time of initial recognition. All regular way purchases
or sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date
basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame established by

regulation or convention in the marketplace.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)
Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost
of a debt instrument and of allocating interest income over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts (including all fees and points paid or received that form
an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the debt instrument,
or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial

recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt

instruments.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets are classified as at FVTPL when the financial asset is (i) held
for trading, (ii) it is designated as at FVTPL, or (iii) contingent consideration
that may be received by an acquirer as part of a business combination to
which HKFRS 3 applies.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

. it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the near
term; or
. on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of identified financial

instruments that the Group manages together and has a recent actual

pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

. it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging

instrument.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)
Financial assets at FVTPL (Continued)

A financial asset other than a financial asset held for trading or contingent
consideration that may be received by an acquirer as part of a business

combination may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if:

. such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or

recognition inconsistency that would otherwise arise; or

. the financial asset forms part of a group of financial assets or financial
liabilities or both, which is managed and its performance is evaluated
on a fair value basis, in accordance with the Group’s documented
risk management or investment strategy, and information about the

grouping is provided internally on that basis; or

. it forms part of a contract containing one or more embedded
derivatives, and HKAS 39 permits the entire combined contract (asset
or liability) to be designated as at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any gains or losses
arising on remeasurement recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss
recognised in profit or loss includes any dividend or interest earned on the
financial assets and is included in the “other income” line item. Fair value is

determined in the manner described in Notes 21 and 43(c).

AFS financial assets

AFS financial assets are non-derivatives that are either designated as
available-for-sale or are not classified as (a) loans and receivables, (b) held-

to-maturity investments or (c) financial assets at FVTPL.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)
AFS financial assets (Continued)

Equity and debt securities held by the Group that are classified as AFS
financial assets and are traded in an active market are measured at fair value
at the end of each reporting period except for unquoted equity investments
whose fair value cannot be reliably measures. Changes in the carrying
amount of AFS debt instruments relating to interest income calculated
using the effective interest method, and changes in foreign exchange rates,
if applicable are recognised in profit or loss. Dividends on AFS equity
instruments are recognised in profit or loss when the Group’s right to
receive the dividends is established. Other changes in the carrying amount
of AFS financial assets are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated under the heading of investments revaluation reserve. When the
investment is disposed of or is determined to be impaired, the cumulative
gain or loss previously accumulated in the investments revaluation reserve is

reclassified to profit or loss.

AFS equity investments that do not have a quoted market price in an active
market and whose fair value cannot be reliably measured at cost less any at

cost less any identified impairment losses at the end of each reporting period.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market. Subsequent
to initial recognition, loans and receivables (including trade receivables,
deposits and other receivables, pledged bank deposits and bank balances and
deposits) are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method,

less any impairment.

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective interest rate, except
for short term receivables where the recognition of interest would be

immaterial.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed for indicators
of impairment at the end of each reporting period. Financial assets are
considered to be impaired where there is objective evidence that, as a result
of one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the
financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have

been affected.
For its equity investments, a significant or prolonged decline in the fair
value of the security below its cost is considered to be objective evidence of

impairment.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of impairment could

include:
. significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or
. breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in interest or

principal payments; or

. it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or

financial re-organisation; or

. disappearance of an active market for that financial asset because of

financial difficulties.

Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio of receivables could include
the Group’s past experience of collecting payments, an increase in the
number of delayed payments in the portfolio past the average credit period,
as well as observable changes in national or local economic conditions that

correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the impairment
loss recognised is the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the financial

asset’s original effective interest rate.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the impairment loss is
measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the current
market rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such impairment loss will

not be reversed in subsequent periods.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the impairment loss
directly for all financial assets with the exception of trade receivables, where
the carrying amount is reduced through the use of an allowance account.
Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance account are recognised
in profit or loss. When a trade receivable is considered uncollectible, it is
written off against the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts

previously written off are credited to profit or loss.

When an AFS financial asset is considered to be impaired, cumulative
gains or losses previously recognised in other comprehensive income are

reclassified to profit or loss in the period.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a subsequent period,
the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss
to the extent that the carrying amount of the investment at the date the
impairment is reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost would have

been had the impairment not been recognised.

In respect of AFS equity investments, impairment losses previously
recognised in profit or loss are not reversed through profit or loss. Any
increase in fair value subsequent to an impairment loss is recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated under the heading of investments
revaluation reserve. In respect of AFS debt investments, impairment losses
are subsequently reversed through profit or loss if an increase in the fair value
of the investment can be objectively related to an event occurring after the

recognition of the impairment loss.
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BEZF-LETZAZ T HILEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are classified as either
financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an

equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the
assets of the group after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments
issued by the Group are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct

issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments is recognised and
deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss
on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the Company’s own equity

instruments.

Eftective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost
of a financial liability and of allocating interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments (including all fees and points paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financial liability,
or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial
recognition. Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis other
than those financial liabilities classified as at FEVTPL, of which the interest

expense is included in net gains or losses.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the financial liability
is (i) held for trading, or (ii) it is designated as at FVTPL or (iii) contingent
consideration that may be paid by an acquirer as part of a business
combination to which HKFRS 3 applies.

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if:

. it has been acquired principally for the purpose of repurchasing it in
the near term; or

. on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of identified financial
instruments that the Group manages together and has a recent actual

pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

. it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging
instrument.

A financial liability other than a financial liability held for trading or
contingent consideration that may be paid by an acquirer as part of a business
combination may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if:

. such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or

recognition inconsistency that would otherwise arise; or

. the financial liability forms part of a group of financial assets or
financial liabilities or both, which is managed and its performance
is evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with the Group’s
documented risk management or investment strategy, and information
about the grouping is provided internally on that basis; or

. it forms part of a contract containing one or more embedded
derivatives, and HKAS 39 permits the entire combined contract (asset
or liability) to be designated as at FVTPL.

3.

EE A BOR (4)

TR (4])

i 10 R pli g TR ()
H A P A A H s 2 2 A 6

ik <2 Rl B0 % GO FF AR BB > IR & B3k AP
fEwH AR AR - B FE 2 T P 7 s B o o
S 3395 2 SR 5 £ 4 — 0 2 WO O T RE S A 2
BRI - Gl 1 06 20 800 3R 0 P A
ko

1E TG DL - il A 0 % F5 A 9 -

o WASRAMEERERREYALE:
=

o HRIRR T R > LS AR 4 I A O 4 B
Z O TR MAZ SRR
A7 d5c 300 T W T R A K B

o HARBPERERTHBMEREW T AZ
AT R

ETFHUT - &b (R e R T A%
W A O — B 43 WO 5 WA WO Z sl A8 AR Bk
Ab) TR A IR R R E K 1A A EE AR
5

o AR TH BR BN IR IR A AT BE T BLRY S
i sl e % 0y T AR — B0 5 Bk

o AT E AR R AL e il
HEkEemEEREMAMAGTZ K
g3 > T AR % A 45 1] 4] S il DL e A L At
R T T VA VAR s S i
745 B e b A 2% AT B 4y AL Rt
T3 45 0k e i 1 A B 5 B

o HERES - HESEIRAME TR
FrR 2 — 84y o T At I 55305k
Fo o B AL A (B EE R AR 1R
E B IRV FH A 2R o

137



Carnival Group International Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2017

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A B IR B

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #E _F—tE+T_H=Z+—HIL4EE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities at FVTPL (Continued)

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value, with any gains or
losses arising on remeasurement recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or
loss recognised in profit or loss excludes any interest paid on the financial
liabilities and is included in the ‘fair value changes on financial liabilities’
line item. Fair value is determined in the manner described in Notes 33 and
43(c).

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities including bank and other borrowings, trade payables,
deposits from customers, accrued liabilities and other payables, amounts
due to non-controlling interests and amounts due to related companies are

subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

Senior bonds

Senior bonds issued by the Company that contain both liability and early
redemption option (which is not closely related to the host contract) are
classified separately into respective items on initial recognition. At the date
of issue, both the liability and early redemption option components are

recognised at fair value.

In subsequent periods, the liability component of the senior bonds is carried
at amortised cost using the effective interest method. The early redemption
option is measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in

profit or loss.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the senior bonds are allocated
to the liability and early redemption option components in proportion to
their relative fair values. Transaction costs relating to the early redemption
option are charged to profit or loss immediately. Transaction costs relating
to the liability component are included in the carrying amount of the liability
portion and amortised over the period of the senior bonds using the effective

interest method.

EE A BOR (4)

A TR (41)

< ik 1 0% R A2k T AL (AT)
AP AT R s 2 A6 (A7)

PR A S 2 SRl B AR A PR
T R R A A 2 A A AR s 4R A 4R 2R
AT 2. o 7 4 2 T 2 2 AL 2 A VR A
4 il RS A AR AR - BT T 4 il B
WA FEEE | HE N - APIEIRH 33 &
43 (c) B 4t J5 3 HEAE o

HLHEGT AT Z 2 A A

SRR (B BT B LA A K - HEA B 5 R
K P AT 4~ ME R R R I Al E A R -
AsF i 4 J A 2 K D M A B 2 W k) 6 AR
PR FH T R 2 3k 45 i B AR i

B

AN ) BAT 2 0 e B A A 4 e
HE (S £ 20 3 I D) B T ) 77 0 s e By 4
B A B H o 84T B SRR PREAT
VI 8 8 4 2 O AT 6

TR AU ] - B S 08 2 2 AR 2 T PR B R
A 2 5 1 8 PR AR T o R I U U 3%
iR A EL L2 SF 16 58 ) 7 R 4 e R o

WBELTERERARNZIZSRACTHEELHA
PP Z B 2 L T 65 B 2 i M I R 4 -
S i DT I AR A A 22 B AR B O 4 2 o
B o B0 A A I PR 28 B AR A B BEER
43 B MR T A - S0 BT WA R AR B R 2
LR 3



F AT R P IR TR F] | 201 74F 8t

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A B IR B

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #E _F—tE+T_H=Z+—HIL4EE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)
Convertible bonds

Convertible bonds issued by the Group that contain both the liability and
conversion option components are classified separately into respective items
on initial recognition in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument. Conversion option that will be settled by the exchange of a
fixed amount of cash or another financial asset for a fixed number of the

Company’s own equity instruments is classified as an equity instrument.

On initial recognition, the fair value of the liability component is determined
using the prevailing market interest of similar non-convertible debts. The
difference between the gross proceeds of the issue of the convertible bonds
and the fair value assigned to the liability component, representing the
conversion option for the holder to convert the notes into equity, is included

in equity (convertible bonds equity reserve).

In subsequent periods, the liability component of the convertible bonds is
carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method. The equity
component, representing the option to convert the liability component into
ordinary shares of the Company, will remain in convertible bonds equity
reserve until the embedded option is exercised (in which case the balance
stated in convertible bonds equity reserve will be transferred to share
premium). Where the option remains unexercised at the expiry date, the
balance stated in convertible bonds equity reserve will be released to the
retained profits/(accumulated losses). No gain or loss is recognised in profit

or loss upon conversion or expiration of the option.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)
Convertible bonds (Continued)

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the convertible bonds are
allocated to the liability and equity components in proportion to the
allocation of the gross proceeds. Transaction costs relating to the equity
component are charged directly to equity. Transaction costs relating to the
liability component are included in the carrying amount of the liability
portion and amortised over the period of the convertible bonds using the

effective interest method.

Convertible bonds contain liability component and conversion option

derivative

The component parts of the convertible bonds issued by the Company are
classified separately as financial liabilities at amortised cost and financial
derivatives in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements
and the definitions of a financial liability and a derivative instrument.
A conversion option that will be settled other than by the exchange of a
fixed amount of cash or another financial asset for a fixed number of the

Company’s own equity instruments is a conversion option derivative.

At the date of issue, both the liability component and conversion option
derivative are recognised at fair value. In subsequent periods, the liability
component of the convertible loan notes is carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method. The conversion option derivative is measured at

fair value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the convertible bonds are
allocated to the liability and derivative components in proportion to their
relative fair values. Transaction costs relating to the derivative components
are charged to profit or loss immediately. Transaction costs relating to the
liability component are included in the carrying amount of the liability
portion and amortised over the period of the convertible loan notes using the

effective interest method.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)
Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities including bank and other borrowings, trade
payables, accrued liabilities and other payable, amounts due to non-
controlling interests, amount due to a related company and obligation
under finance lease are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest method.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date the derivative
contracts are entered into and are subsequently remeasured to their fair value
at the end of each reporting period. The resulting gain or loss is recognised in
profit or loss immediately unless the derivative is designated and effective as
a hedging instrument, in which event the timing of the recognition in profit
or loss depends on the nature of the hedge relationship.

Embedded derivatives

Derivatives embedded in non-derivative host contracts are treated as separate
derivatives when they meet the definition of a derivative, their risks and
characteristics are not closely related to those of the host contracts and the
host contracts are not measured at FVTPL.

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer to make
specified payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a
specified debt or fails to make payment when due in accordance with the
original or modified terms of a debt instrument.

A financial guarantee contract issued by the Group and not designated as at
fair value through profit or loss is recognised initially at its fair value less
transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issue of the financial
guarantee contract. Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group measures
the financial guarantee contract at the higher of: (i) the amount of obligation
under the contract, as determined in accordance with HKAS 37 “Provisions,
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets”; and (ii) the amount initially
recognised less, when appropriate, cumulative amortisation recognised in

accordance with the revenue recognition policy.
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BEZF-LETZAZ T HILEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights
to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial
asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset
to another party. If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred
asset, the Group recognises its retained interest in the asset and an associated
liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the Group retains substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group
continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a collateralised

borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received and receivable
and the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or

loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the
Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or expired. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and the

consideration paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.
Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or
constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that the Group will be
required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the

amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the
consideration required to settle the present obligation at the end of the
reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding
the obligation. When a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated
to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of

those cash flows (when the effect of the time value of money is material).
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3.

BEZF-LETZAZ T HILEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Impairment losses on tangible assets other than
goodwill

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the
asset is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so
that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the
asset (or a cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment

loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.
Share-based payment transactions of the Company

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and others providing
similar services are measured at the fair value of the equity instruments at
the grant date. Details regarding the determination of the fair value of equity-

settled share-based transactions are set out in Note 40.

The fair value of the equity-settled share-based payments determined at
the grant date without taking into consideration all non-market vesting
conditions is expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period, based
on the Group’s estimate of equity instruments that will eventually vest, with

a corresponding increase in equity.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group revises its estimate of the
number of equity instruments expected to vest based on assessment of
all relevant non-market resting conditions. The impact of the revision of
the original estimates, if any, is recognised in profit or loss such that the
cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate, with a corresponding

adjustment to share options reserve.

For share options that vest immediately at the date of grant, the fair value of

the share options granted is expensed immediately to profit or loss.

‘When share options are exercised, the amount previously recognised in share
options reserve will be transferred to share premium. When share options are
forfeited after the vesting date or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the
amount previously recognised in share options reserve will be transferred to

retained earnings.
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3.

BEZF-LETZAZ T HILEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a)

or

(®)

the party is a person or a close member of that person’s family and that
person:

(@)

(i)

(iii)

has control or joint control of the Group;

has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of the key management personnel of the Group or
of a parent of the Group;

the party is an entity where any of the following conditions applies:

®

(i)

(iii)

@v)

)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

the entity and the Group are members of the same group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or
of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of the other entity);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same third
party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity
is an associate of the third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of
employees of either the Group or an entity related to the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a);

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the
entity or is a member of the key management personnel of the
entity (or of a parent of the entity); and

the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part,
provides key management personnel services to the Group or to
the parent of the Group.

Close members of the family of a person are those family members who may
be expected to influence, or be influenced by, that person in their dealings

with the entity.
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4.

BEZF-LETZAZ T HILEE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are described
in Note 3, the directors of the Company are required to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other
factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these

estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an on-going
basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in
which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current

and future periods.
Critical judgements in applying accounting policies

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those involving
estimations (see below), that the directors of the Company have made in the
process of applying the Group’s accounting policies and that has the most
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial

statements.

Estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment

Management determines the estimated useful lives and related depreciation
charges for its property, plant and equipment. This estimate is based on
the historical experience of the actual useful lives of property, plant and
equipment of similar nature and functions. Management will increase the
depreciation charges where useful lives are less than previously estimated, or
it will write-off or write-down obsolete assets that have been abandoned or
sold.
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4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies
(Continued)

Deferred taxation on investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax arising from investment
properties that are measured using the fair value model, the directors have
reviewed the Group’s investment property portfolios and concluded that
the Group’s investment properties are held within a business model whose
objective is to consume substantially all of the economic benefits embodied
in the investment properties over time, rather than through sale. Therefore,
in measuring the Group’s deferred taxation on investment properties, the
directors of the Company have determined that the presumption that the
carrying amounts of investment properties measured using the fair value

model are recovered entirely through sale is rebutted.

Other intangible assets and amortisation

The Group determines the estimated useful lives and related amortisation
for the Group’s other intangible assets. The useful lives of other intangible
assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinite, based on the expected
usage and technical obsolescence from the changes in the market demands
or services output from the assets. Other intangible assets with finite useful
lives are amortised over the expected useful economic lives and assessed for
impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible assets may
be impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method for the
intangible assets with finite useful lives are reviewed by the management at

least at the end of each reporting period.
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4.

BEZF-LETZAZ T HILEE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have
a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of

assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

Valuation of investment properties under construction

As described in Note 17, investment properties under construction are stated
at fair value based on the valuation performed by independent professional

valuers.

Investment properties under construction are valued by estimating the fair
value of such properties as if they were completed in accordance with
the relevant development plan and then deducting from that amount the

estimated costs to complete the construction and a reasonable profit margin.

Estimated impairment of intangible asset with indefinite useful life

Determining whether the intangible asset is impaired requires an estimation
of the value in use of the cash-generating unit to which intangible asset has
been allocated. The value in use calculation requires the Group to estimate
the future cash flows expected to arise from the cash-generating unit and a
suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value. Where the actual
future cash flows are less than expected, a material impairment loss may

arise.

Estimated impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an estimation of the
value in use of the cash-generating units to which goodwill has been
allocated, which is the higher of the value in use or fair value less costs
of disposal. The value in use calculation requires the Group to estimate
the future cash flows expected to arise from the cash-generating unit and
a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value. Where the
actual future cash flows are less than expected, or change in facts and
circumstances which results in downward revision of future cash, a material
impairment loss/further impairment loss may arise. As at 31 December 2017,
the carrying amount of goodwill is derecognised resulting from disposal of

subsidiaries.

4.

o S22 7 il A i e At A e P TR
R B ERW (H])

Al st A W1 R 2 R

VLR 2 T o 31 R AT I AR 2A¢ Y 2 AR B A
FEAS WY B R A A T AR - L A TR
T B B A M M R i B R T
R e 2 oA B

e BB Wy % 2 M i

0B RE 17 T A > 7 48 ) S T 4 S A
i i 4 47 2 Al A DA 2 P B B B o

1E R B W 3 Ty HIB AN G % F R AP
B AT A - B rh B % W 36 ORI AT i 3
Jo w0 56 B - ST R S0 B B A R AR K A
BLA T R o

W B8 JH AT A 52 2 ST ¥ 2 A it oo

il R JHE T2 5 R A 9 AL ZE At A o TG JHE TR
A 2 B4 A AR v 5 P R o B R
I - A S [ ZE A st B 4 s A LA T 7 A 2 R
2R B 4 YA T B AR DA S B B
i T B R A B 4 kA0 TEC) - BT BB AR K
WA R o

BB 2 At i A

THEE R T R A AP JE A T A L R 2 B
A BT 8 B (2 P £ P Dk
H B A o B R ) o WS AR R S A
4 T Z A%t B A LA TR AR 2 R AR B
9L Bk 5 0 4T B R - DL A B B - M T
W R 2B <5 B A T TEYT > s T 17 0 A T 4
BORABLE i - 0 v] Rl 28 2 R s 1
E— PR R _F-EE L AZ
H o p 7 45 B 23 W - o R L Y e

o

8y




Carnival Group International Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2017

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A B IR B

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #E _F—tE+T_H=Z+—HIL4EE

4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Land appreciation tax (“LAT”)

The Group is subject to land appreciation tax in the PRC. However, the
implementation and settlement of the tax varies amongst different tax
jurisdictions in various cities of the PRC and certain projects of the Group
have not finalised their LAT calculations and payments with any local tax
authorities in the PRC. Accordingly, significant estimate is required in
determining the amount of land appreciation and its related income tax
provisions. The Group recognised the LAT based on management’s best
estimates. The final tax outcome could be different from the amounts that
were initially recorded, and these differences will impact the income tax
expense and the related income tax provisions in the periods in which such

tax is finalised with local tax authorities.

Impairment loss of trade and other receivables

The Group’s policy for doubtful receivables is based on the on-going
evaluation of the collectability and ageing analysis of the trade and other
receivables and on management’s judgements. Considerable judgement is
required in assessing the ultimate realisation of these receivables, including
the current creditworthiness and the past collection history of each debtor,
and the present values of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the
effective interest rates. If the financial conditions of the Group’s debtors were
to deteriorate, resulting in an impairment of their ability to make payments,

additional impairment loss of trade and other receivables may be required.

Construction costs estimation for revenue recognition

Certain projects of the Group are divided into several phases according
to the development and delivery plans. The Group recognises sales upon
delivery of properties. Cost of sales including construction costs specific to
the phases and common costs allocable to the phases are calculated based on
management’s best estimation of the total development costs for the whole
project and the allocation to each phase at the time when the properties are

delivered.
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4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Income taxes

There are transactions and calculations relating to the Group’s ordinary
business activities for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain and
judgement is required in determining the provision for income taxes. Where
the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the amounts that were
initially recorded, such differences will impact the income tax and deferred

tax provisions in the year in which such determination is made.

Write-down of properties for sale under development

Management performs a regular review on the carrying amounts of
properties for sale under development. Based on management’s review,
write-down of properties for sale under development will be made when the

estimated net realisable value has declined below the carrying amount.

These estimates require judgement as to the anticipated sale prices by
reference to recent sales transactions in nearby locations, rate of new
properties sales, marketing costs (including price discounts required to
stimulate sales) and the estimated costs to completion of properties, the legal

and regulatory framework and general market conditions.

Fair value measurements and valuation processes

Some of the Group’s assets and liabilities are measured at fair value for

financial reporting purposes.

In estimating the fair value of investment properties, the Group uses market-
observable data to the extent it is available. Where Level 1 inputs are not
available, the Group engages independent qualified professional valuers to

perform the valuation of the Group’s investment properties.
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4.

BEZF-LETZAZ T HILEE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Fair value measurements and valuation processes (Continued)

At the end of each reporting period, the management of the Group works
closely with the independent qualified professional valuers to establish and
determine the appropriate valuation techniques and inputs for Level 2 and
Level 3 fair value measurements. The Group will first consider and adopt
Level 2 inputs where inputs can be derived observable quoted prices in the
active market. When Level 2 inputs are not available, the Group will adopt
valuation techniques that include Level 3 inputs. Where there is a material
change in the fair value of the assets, the causes of the fluctuations will be
reported to the board of directors of the Company. Information about the
valuation technique and inputs used in determining the fair value of the
Group’s investment properties are disclosed in Note 17.

REVENUE

An analysis of the Group’s revenue for the years ended 31 December 2017
and 2016 are as follows:

4.
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2017 2016

L TR AR

HK$’000 HK$’000

T#xT T#x

Sale of properties HEmE 1,138,880

Rental income from investment properties REBREWHEZHERA 48,406

Restaurant operations of catering business BIREH Z RBEEY 502,222
Realised and unrealised gains on financial AR Z S ME fEZ

assets at fair value through profit or loss CAEBL R R BIMER (M 7T ) )

(Note (1)) 197,647
Dividend income from listed investments KA LW REZ R ERA 326
Revenue from admission tickets KAANGMEZBA 24,655
Others H A 21,888

1,934,024
Note: Hak

(i) Gross sales proceeds related to disposal of financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss is approximately HK$825,363,000 (2016:
approximately HK$350,326,000) for the year ended 31 December 2017.
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION

The management has determined the operating segments based on the
reports reviewed by the directors of the Company, being the chief operating
decision maker (the “CODM?”) that are used to assess performance and
allocate resources. The management assesses the performance of the

following operating segments as below:

6. iER

A OB A R R (B R R
) W RE A B 4 LR A B i
AR o3 o A L Al T B AL 3 U R A

(i)  Property development and investment — Developing residential and commercial properties in the PRC
and Hong Kong for sales and leasing;
YR B R E — b R A ) R B A R
(i)  Catering business — Operating restaurants in different provinces in the PRC and Hong Kong;
BIYET; — b A R A AR
(iii)  Trading and investment business — Investing on securities and financial instruments; and
B o B AR E RS - REBHFLERMITHE K
(iv)  Others — Providing retail-related consultancy and management services and operating kids
edutainment centre and touring carnival.
oAt — PRAE B AT IR B A B RS - DA R G B Bt 0 BB B AR
o

Following the changes of reporting structure, the number of operating
segments in the Group was increased from four to five during the year ended
31 December 2016 due to the opening of touring carnival in Hong Kong.
During the year ended 31 December 2017, the management decided to
change the reporting structure again, and the number of operating segments
of the Group was reduced from five to four due to suspension of the
touring carnival operations. Segment information presented as comparative
information in these consolidated financial statements have been restated to

reflect the current reporting structure of the Group.
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-REE_Z—-LHET+ZA=Z+—HILSE
JBE > HA RS Bl 35 AF B 4 SE W A B 0 - A B
DA T U5 B A - AR I Y AL 43 T
A A O o T I A A S R A B B AR L
FORE YA B EORE AR E S > DA R WA AR [ AR 41
JRE F) B R A o
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Segment revenues and results

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results by reportable

and operating segment.

For the year ended 31 December 2017

Property
development
and investment
segment
LE {791
BEAH
HK$’000
T#
REVENUE KA
External sales shE s
Inter-segment sales SR 2 8
RESULTS E3
Segment results VRS
Finance costs B AR
Unallocated income RATBA
Unallocated expenses RATI
Profit before tax Bt i A

Catering
business
segment
#%
FHAR
HK$°000
T#E

6. SR ()

Vg VO E 3

B T 2 AT R e AL A V43 A 4 T
ABEREZ 5T

e —LIET ZH=1T—HILEE

Trading and
investment
business Other  Inter-segment
segment segments elimination Total
10)3
BYRH MR AR BB i

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T T T

I
LEEET S

=
5.

EESEEE
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Segment revenues and results (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2016

6.

23 VB R (%)
g V'O E 3 ¢ )

BEZF-ANFLZH = —HILERE

Property Trading and
development Catering investment
and investment business business Other  Inter-segment

segment segment segment segments elimination Total

WHEBRR B Bk
B EHA REEBR JfoR A fki
HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HKS$000 HKS$’000 HK$°000
T T T Tz T T

(Restated)
(#E5)
REVENUE BA
External sales AR 1,187,286 502,222 197,973 46,543 - 1,934,024
Inter-segment sales RN 2 - 3487 - - (3487) -
1,187,286 505,709 197,973 46,543 (3,487) 1,934,024
RESULTS E8

Segment results ViRiE S 214,708 (82,967) 161,188 (144,034) - 148,895
Finance costs A A (19,856)
Unallocated income RN 115,220
Unallocated expenses FATL (193,873)
Profit before tax it i 1 50,386

Segment revenue reported above represents revenue generated from external

customers. Inter-segment sales charged at prevailing market rates during the

years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016.

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the same as the

Group’s accounting policies. Segment results represents the profit earned

by/(loss from) each segment without allocation of central administration

costs including directors’ emoluments and finance costs. This is the measure

reported to the CODM for the purposes of performance assessment and

resources allocation.

VA3 Z A 2 B AN % B Z A
RBRE_Z-LELZ-AET A=+
H ik 45 B2 > 43 0 ] = 89 85 3% BLAT W 45 # R X
o

HLE 4 W0 BT S BOR LA SR [ 2 S BOR M
7] o 3 W SR A A R 3 B P S A BURAR (B4
T e AR ) 4% 43 B I i,
(A Z R - 75 1m 32 285 SR B2 )
VAP Al 28 B e o3 I 5 R < it B 7 9
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

6.

6.

4y BB ()

Segment assets and liabilities 43 T8 A B £ A
The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and liabilities by TH e ¥ TR AR R o 2 AR
reportable and operating segment: R ARG
Segment assets Vg 303
2017 2016
—®—-L SR
HK$’000 HK$’000
T#L RRC
(Restated)
(RRHEF])
Property development and investment segment 4 35 %% f& M $¢ & 433 19,886,965
Catering business segment BACER 53T 1,310,387
Trading and investment business segment B 5 B 4% S 43 T 1,324,114
Other segments FoAth 43 133,436
Total segment assets Vg 8:4:3.k 1 22,654,902
Unallocated corporate assets A HA FEHE A 2,492,498
Consolidated assets BEEA 25,147,400

Note: All assets are allocated to operating segments other than certain bank
balances and deposits and other unallocated assets.

Mifiit - B T ERAT R R ARk T L AR 43 T

A > 2 AE 3 4 L 2 AR AR 4 o

i, z:aé;;:“:vA /4

7=
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6.
Segment assets and liabilities (Continued)

The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and liabilities by

reportable and operating segment: (Continued)

23 VB R (%)
gy W ¥ B £ 4 (40)

DEIEE Y B SV S Y -viait Pia N

7 R B ()

Segment liabilities Vg 3:8 4
2017 2016
e Sl i 3 RN
HK$’000 HK$’000
T#xT RRC
(Restated)
(I H#H5)
Property development and investment segment 4 35 %% f& M $¢ & 433 8,825,004
Catering business segment BRE S 1,001,830
Trading and investment business segment B 5 B 4% 4 205 43 15,165
Other segments oAt 5y #8 74,652
Total segment liabilities ¥ £ 4 A 9,916,651
Unallocated corporate liabilities RSB FE AR 6,478,693
Consolidated liabilities AR 16,395,344

Note: All liabilities are allocated to operating segments other than certain
borrowings, deferred tax liabilities, obligation under finance lease,
convertible bonds and other unallocated liabilities.

Fifict B A K ~ 28 B A U~ AL RO
T BT ~ AT AR O T S R A0 T £ £

Ab > 2R E R 3 2 B 2 AR AR 4
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

6.

Other segment information

For the year ended 31 December 2017

Property
development
and investment
segment

BT 1Y
B¥Eir
HK$°000

T

Amounts included in the measure of BN S R M B
segment profit or loss or segment assets: A EREZ A HZAH:
Capital expenditure (Note) BERBX (M)

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment #13 * RUR Kk fif 2 91 %

Impairment losses on property,
plant and equipment

Written-off on property, plant and equipment  #13 ~ RUR 1k o i 85

Amortisation of other intangible assets JoA T 5 e 4
Impairment losses on other receivables HA I WA
Net foreign exchange differences TS S
(Gain)/loss on disposal of property, ¥ BR R
plant and equipment (Wedk) /168
Fair value change on investment properties B4 A T H)
Fair value change on financial liabilities BT AR
at fair value through profit or loss SRARZATHED
Gain on bargain purchase E{UUE
Tnpairment loss on goodwill WA HEER
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries o A 4 ) 2 W
Loss on early redemption of senior bonds SR e e 2 s 1
Loss/(gain) in respect of convertible bonds 4 B W Bl % 2
cancelled during the year EH/ ()

LEN YT kAl G

Amounts regularly provided to the CODM %] 3 £ 3 B & @K %

but not included in the measure of AR A 23 R
segment profit or loss or segment assets: BB EAEZ
At AN
Interest income on bank and other deposits  $RAT R A7 5k Rl B A
Income tax expense

- Fi Bt

6.

Catering
business
segment

Lies ]
o
HKS$'000
T

2 e R (A1)
JCfib 43 5 B R
BRE-F-LFET-HA=Z1—HILEE
Trading and
investment
business Other
segment segments  Unallocated Total
Ehk
e
Vg Lt R i
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T T T
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Other segment information (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2016

6. iR (&)
I Ao 23 8 2ORH (48)

BEZF-ANFLZH = —HILERE

Property
development Trading and
and Catering investment
investment business business Other
segment segment segment segments Unallocated Total
Ak
WERRR BHEH bi3ce s
RHAH yini] vk HAba KA ERE
HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
Tt T i Titx Titx Titx
(Restated)
(&)
Amounts included in the measure of SN B R S 4R o
segment profit or loss or segment assets: AR A2 HZAH:
Capital expenditure (Note) BARWY (Hit) 1716918 12,899 - 42,580 372,709 2,145,106
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 913 » B X i 97 2175 65,342 = 13,672 11,749 92,938
Impairment losses on property, EN VYT PA L T
plant and equipment - 59,087 - 30,000 - 89,087
Written-off on property, plant and equipment ¥ 3 » BUR: 1 i L - - - 152 - 152
Amortisation of other intangible assets NI AT ] - - - 4,106 - 4,106
Impairment losses on other receivables JORbREW R 2 W A - - - 38,261 - 38,261
Net foreign exchange differences B30 B 2236 (1,349) (177) (1,071) 38,120 37,759
Loss on disposal of property, & B R R
plant and equipment - 872 - - - 872
Fair value change on investment properties B ¥ A THEH (126,172) = = = = (126,172)
Fair value change on financial liabilities BN AR Z
at fair value through profit or loss SREFZ A THEES - (12,104) - - - (12,104)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries o A A ) 2 M (254,146) = = = = (254,146)
Loss on early redemption of senior bonds SRR B R 2 B R - - 1471 - - 1471
Share of profit of an associate JEAG— [T Gk 4 7 2 i (3,136) - - - - (3,136)
Amounts regularly provided to the CODM &£ 7 £ EB MK %
but not included in the measure of A4 A 23 e R
segment profit or loss or segment assets: WA HHELZ
A AR
Interest income on bank and other deposits ~ $t47 RE fA7sk Fl BICA (650) - - (16) (33,509) (34,175)
Income tax (credit)/expense PR (Hi% ) /3 (15.402) 434 - 88 15,643 763

Note: Capital expenditure comprises additions to property, plant and equipment

and investment properties.

Mk s EASBH SO B IEI B - W B skt B
JegVE
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6.
Geographic information

No geographic information has been presented as the Group’s operating

activities are mostly carried out in the PRC.
Information about major customers
During the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016, there was no revenue

from transactions with a single external customer amounted to 10% or more

of the Group’s total revenue.

7. OTHER INCOME 7.

4y BB ()
o i 2

FH A A4 1 2 260830 ) 2 B vp B AT > Wk
JE 2 5] Hb [ R}

TEEFZER
BEE-LER-F-AET H=E+—

HaE4F > sk 3 BB — MR P #EIT R 5
Z WA A SR A B8R 2 10% 80D L -

%A

Interest income on bank and other deposits SRAT B H Al A 3R B A

Gain on disposal of property, 3 - B B 2 MR
plant and equipment

Gain in respect of convertible bonds A YRR S R R B R 2 WA
cancelled during the year (Note 33) (M #t33)

Reversal of deferred income 1 R A

Others HAly

2017 2016
- —F A

HK$°000 HK$°000

T#x T

34,175

40,974

9,510

84,659

& |
A B 5 s

V1L
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8. FINANCE COSTS

8.

S5 AR

2017 2016
- SR
HK$°000 HK$’000
T# TH#T

Interest on bank and other borrowings: SRAT B H Al A SRR B,

— wholly repayable within five years — ZE AN B R 577,200
Interest on obligation under finance lease B IH T EEZ A B 29
Effective interest expense on FEBEA BB X

— senior bonds — g% 155,049

— bonds — iz 6,986

— convertible bonds kg 197,730
Total finance costs T 75 AR B 936,994
Less: amounts capitalised (Note) W EAAC SR (M) (917,138)

19,856

The weighted average capitalisation rate on funds borrowed generally is

6.63% (2016: 8.91%) per annum.

Note: Certain finance costs had been capitalised to property development
projects in the PRC and Hong Kong included in construction-in-progress

of property, plant and equipment, investment properties and properties

under development for sale.

O A8 & 4 2 A 7 35 8 AR AE R KB 56.63%
(ZER—ANH:891%) °

BaE s 35T W A B AL 2 o I A e 3
PRI H (FHATEREYIE - s Bkl -~ 1%
BB B PHEEDE) -
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9.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE 9. Pif3Bi Xl

2017 2016

e S RN

HK$°000 HK$°000

TH#T T-#o0

Current tax: HIE PR e

PRC Land Appreciation Tax (“LAT”) o - B AR ([ s g A ) 78,405
Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT”) ke oEEY 43,407
Deferred tax (Note 32) SEREBEH (M 7E32) (121,049)
Income tax expense P8 3 763

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated assessable

profit arising in or derived from Hong Kong for both years. No provision for

Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made as the Company and its subsidiaries

had no assessable profits arising in Hong Kong for both years.

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT Law”)
and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax rate of the PRC

subsidiaries is 25% from 1 January 2008 onwards.

LAT is levied at progressive rates ranging from 30% to 60% on the

appreciation of land value, being the proceeds of sales of properties less

deductible expenditures including cost of land use rights and all property

development expenditures.

A W 45 B T A1 45 B A A SR A
A 2 Al R R A 4% 16.5% 2 Bl A 55T o
FH P AR 2 ) e B A ) A 4 R 34 3 J
TP A s A A MR R e A > S S A W R 15
AR H 458 -

iR AR AR (TRERARE]) R
DEFABLERGES - A ZFF)\F—H—
H L > o [ i i A Bl Z B R A525% o

i 399 6 4% - b R 2 VR 4 DA30%
60% 2 T HEBE R AR > b A 2 WG EHR 43 2
45 0 2 P07 A5 sk JEIR T 1 B 5 (A4 L b
JAHE A B B A A S8R R B 52 ) -




FAEIER R A R A F | 201748t

W

[

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ST R Wk

For the year ended 31 December 2017

BEZF-LETZAZ T HILEE

9. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued) 9.

The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the profit before

P Be s iy (4)

A JBE T 45 B 3t BRLAR 5 18 A M 3L At 2 T ok 2

tax per the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive & Z BB A R R
income as follows:
2017 2016
e Sl vk 3 RN
HK$’000 HK$°000
T#T R
Profit before tax Wi A58 Ty ¥ ) 50,386
Tax at PRC Enterprise Income Tax rate of 2 v I A 3 P A BB %2 259%
25% (Note) SR B (M aE) 12,596
Tax effect of share of results of an associate JREAY — ] BB A\ AR 2
B (784)
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax purpose  #: 2 st Bt Yt A 2 B 75 5% 2% (183,183)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible AT R BH 3 2 % B
for tax purpose 32,583
Tax effect of temporary difference not R T RRRT I 2 A B R
recognised 13,081
LAT SR 78,405
Tax effect of LAT LGB B R (19,601)
Utilisation of tax losses previously not 8 S A AR e R 2 B s 1R
recognised (45,455)
Tax losses not recognised oA e T M 99,253
Effect of different tax rates of group entities A HH R DA A1 ] e A
operating in jurisdiction other than the PRC HEEERARBRZ 13,868
Income tax expense for the year AR B R4S 3 763

Note: Majority of the assessable profits of the Group were derived from
subsidiaries situated in the PRC and the applicable enterprise income tax

rate of those subsidiaries is 25%.

Aifie A5 DR 43 B R A A 11 e o 4
AT > i S R O R 9 I A 3 A B A

RF25% ©
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10. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

Profit for the year has been arrived at after charging/(crediting):

10. 45 S %t Fl

ERERF CAER 7 (REA) UF &5

Net foreign exchange differences

Auditors’ remuneration
— audit services

— non-audit services

Gross rental income from investment
properties (Note (1))
Less:
direct operating expenses incurred for
investment properties that generated rental
income during the year
direct operating expenses incurred for
investment properties that did not generate

rental income during the year

Cost of inventories recognised as an expense:

Rental expenses in respect of rented premises

under operating leases

2017 2016
—® L RN
HKS$°000 HKS$’000
T TFio0
B 56, 2% 52 A 37,759
A% S il 357 T
— % B 2,180
— AL OB 430
2,610
KEBEEYEZREWA
MR (AT ) (48,406)
W
ENEEHSRAZREYE
BB A AR S
14,663
AR PN S A RS Z R
Yy SE P e A AR S
274
(33,469)
T w8 BA X 2 A7 18 A 1,366,473
WEMBEHTARMEDEZ
X 128,932

| =l

|
|
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10. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR (Continued)

Employee benefits expense (including directors’
emoluments)
— salaries and other benefits
— contributions to retirement benefits schemes

— equity settled share-based payment (Note (ii))

H T B (45 4

— Wi B I At A A

— B PR A

— DARE 2 765 S B0 32 Ak 2 sk 0
(Mt i)

Less: amounts capitalised (Note (iii))

W AR (ML i) )

Total employee benefits expenses 1 B 6 A1) B S 40 A
Amortisation of other intangible assets A IR B
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 43 ~ 5% K ik f 7 8

Less: amounts capitalised (Note (iii))

Ul AW (Mt i) )

Impairment losses on other receivables At 8 WKk T 2 UL s 4

(Gain)/loss on disposal of property, hEmE - ME A2
plant and equipment (Wed) ka1

Written-off on property, plant and equipment W3 B T % A e

Impairment losses on property, W3~ B B A =2 A 1R
plant and equipment

Loss on early redemption of senior bonds R L e A R 2 s 4

Loss on cancellation of convertible bonds HES B A 2 2 e

10. AFRE&R A (4)

2017
-
HK$°000
T#L

2016

B
HKS$°000
T

299,402
21,605

(65,168)

255,839
(17,959)

237,880

4,106

92,938
(342)

92,596

38,261

872

752

89,087

1,471
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10. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR (Continued)

Notes:

@

(ii)

(iii)

Contingent rent of approximately HK$58,164,000 (2016: approximately
HK$37,735,000) is included for the year ended 31 December 2017.
The contingent rent are determined based on percentages of sales when
incurred.

On 6 April 2016, 30,000,000 share options were granted to an employee
of the Company under the Company’s share option scheme adopted on
31 May 2013. Each option gives the holder the right to subscribe for one
ordinary share of the Company at the exercise price of HK$1.078. These
share options will vest on 6 April 2018, and then be exercisable until 5
April 2021. The above share options granted had been cancelled during
the year ended 31 December 2016.

On 10 May 2016, 50,000,000 share options were granted to a former
executive director of the Company under the Company’s share option
scheme adopted on 31 May 2013. Each option gives the holder the right
to subscribe for one ordinary share of the Company at the exercise price
of HK$1.022. These share options will vest on 10 May 2018, and then be
exercisable until 9 May 2021. The above share options had been lapsed
upon the resignation of the executive director during the year ended 31
December 2017.

On 7 June 2016, 40,000,000 share options were granted to an employee
of the Company under the Company’s share option scheme adopted on
31 May 2013. Each option gives the holder the right to subscribe for one
ordinary share of the Company at the exercise price of HK$1.06. These
share option will vest on 7 June 2018, and then be exercisable until 6 June
2021. The above share options had been cancelled during the year ended
31 December 2016.

Certain employee benefits expenses, contributions to retirement benefits
schemes and depreciation of property, plant and equipment had been
capitalised to property development projects in the PRC.

10. AFREERA (4)

B -

R

@

(i)

(iii)

BARTH 4 #158,164,0008 70 ( =B —N4E: 4
37,735,000 ) it AR E _F— L4+ 2H
=+ — H IR o SR 4 TIAR IR TR A
B HSLEE -

R ZE—NEANH - RATRER =%
—ZAETA = H R b 42
T A T — 418 B 30,000,000 1 B © 4543
s IR RE R 5 A AR R T 35210788 L 2 4T
A5 M R — P A A 0 3 o % I RN
AR —)\4EWY AN H R - BT P
HE_Z ENATH AL FlEZE
WREERRE—R-ANET A=+
H Ik 4E BE RS -

RoF—ANEHHTH > RAFRER —F
—ZAEH A = — H R 5 R S
T A2 H] — 2 Wi A $4T # 550,000,000 1§
JBERE o 4540 SR RE R T R AREAR R 421,022
Wb TG AT A R — B AR 2 ] R o %5
W BEREAS Y = — )4EHL A + H 8 > H %
WPAEEE R ERLAILH Bk R
BE-F-EHE+ A=+ —HIE4EE |
Tt 8 JERE OO R BUAT B B BHEAR R o

M —ANEANHLH - KA RN 2
—ZAEHH = H R Z R R B
FA A H— 448 B 40,000,000 1 BEHE o F5:47
i IR R T R R T 4% 1,06 o0 Z A7
R RS PR AR 2 1 R T I © % S W PR
ZZ - )\EANHLHEB  REPITHE
FEORTEANANE BRI LIRS
MBREZZ—NETA=ZT—HILHEE
RESH o

A TR FLRR A B 3~ SR AR A sk R
3 W B TR EUA P B S B R IE
BAAL
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11. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
EMOLUMENTS

11, FEFRBEITBAHZ#ME

B 32 A sl HE S A T A A R S R EEATBOA

The emoluments paid or payable to the directors and the chief executive of

the Company were as follows: BZBEWT :
Salaries, Contributions Equity settled
allowances and to retirement share-based
Fees  benefitsinkind  benefits schemes payment Total
DRSS
B W BIRHIA By 3 £
W REHAG wt 8k 2B it
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HKS$’000
T#7x T#7 T#x T#x T#7
For the year ended 31 December 2017  #ZE % L4
FZAZt—HIREE
Executive directors Wik
Mr. King Pak Fu (Note (¢)) REFRE (Witc)
Mr. Gong Xiao Cheng HRREE
Mr. Meng Cai (Note (2)) wA R (Mika)
Mr. Wang Yikun (Note (d)) R (Wit@)
Mr. Wang Chunning (Note (c)) ERSRE (Mite)
Mr. Tsai Tson (Note (£) BREE (Wio)
Independent non-executive directors  JH 3% FEHATH
Ms. Hu Gin Ing TS
Mr. Chan Wai Cheung Admiral BB e 2k
Mr. Lie Chi Wing EHELE
For the year ended 31 December 2016~ HE_F—A
FEREFHILERE
Executive directors Wik
Mr. King Pak Fu (Note (¢)) REFRE (Witc) B 19,500 18 - 19,518
Mr. Leung Wing Cheong Eric (Note (b)) Kk BiJe2: (Mt b)) = 5,924 8 = 5932
Mr. Gong Xiao Cheng HREREL E 1,625 18 = 1,643
Mr. Meng Cai (Note (2)) WA (Mik@) = 3212 = 845 4,057
Independent non-executive directors i 3 FEH AT I
Ms. Hu Gin Ing NS e 240 = . Z 240
Mr. Chan Wai Cheung Admiral Bt B e 2 240 - £ = 240
Mr. Lie Chi Wing EHELE 240 = < ~ 240
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11. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S

EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

After Mr. Leung Wing Cheong Eric’s resignation on his positions on 26
May 2016, the Chairman, Mr. King Pak Fu took over the position as chief
executive officer on the same date. On 26 October 2017, Mr. King Pak Fu
resigned as chief executive officer and Mr. Wang Chunning took over the
position on the same date. Subsequent to the reporting period, Mr. Wang
Chunning resigned as chief executive officer and the position was taken
over by Mr. Wu Yangi on 15 March 2018. The emoluments disclosure above
included those for services rendered by them as Chief Executive during the
year ended 31 December 2017.

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were for their services
in connection with the management of the affairs of the Company and the
Group.

The independent non-executive directors’ emoluments shown above were for
their services as directors of the Company.

During the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016, neither the chief
executive officer nor any of the directors waived any emoluments.

During both years, no emoluments were paid by the Group to any of the
directors or chief executive as an inducement to join or upon joining the
Group or as compensation for loss of office.

Notes:

(a)  Mr. Meng Cai was appointed as an executive director on 10 May 2016 and
resigned on 9 February 2017.

(b)  Mr. Leung Wing Cheong Eric resigned as an executive director and chief
executive officer on 26 May 2016.

(c)  Mr. King Pak Fu was appointed as chief executive officer on 26 May 2016
and resigned as chief executive officer but remained as chairman of the
board and executive director on 26 October 2017.

(d)  Mr. Wang Yikun was appointed as an executive director on 3 February
2017.

(¢e)  Mr. Wang Chunning was appointed as an executive director and chief
executive officer on 26 October 2017. On 15 March 2018, Mr. Wang
Chunning resigned as chief executive officer and was appointed as the vice
chairman of the board.

(f) Mr. Tsai Tson was appointed as an executive director on 8 February 2017
and resigned from the position on 4 October 2017.

11. ﬁ%&i%ﬁﬂtAﬁZEﬂﬁ:

n

R ANFERLA AN HRKE SRR
&> B RE PR R H AR AT B R
frojt ZF—tETAZHAH - REFRE
BEAEAT BRI - B S LR HEBE
AT BRI AL o AR IR - R =
HATH > 35 %50 B AT BRI AL > 52
HIE RS AR IR TR AR A AT B AR AL o B ST B
BXMEOBERERRE_ZE LA A
b FIkR AR AR T AT 8RR AR B B R B T
4o

AT 2 T s A A B A R R
AR [ 2 5 T B AR T

g S AT N T A A R AR
GIE & 38 K

WNRE - —LER - —AETHA=Z+—
H 1k 45 B > 47 B 48 3% I 3 = WG 208 ik 5% A o 1M
4o

P T A 5 JBE - A 8 T MOE 8 1k T o 5 o 1 34T
BON B S AHE T 4 > A1 2 478 15 m A A 58 1
TR T A 5 1B W 2 % i s e Al 3

B -

() JABERFE-NELATHERES
PUTES R R -BEZAJUABHE-

b)) BAKBRERZZF-ANEHLAZTAHE
AT AT A -

(¢ FEFEER-R-NELZTPAREER
ERATHRAHE Wit —F—LE R
H BEAEAT AR A A 2 R R
PITHS -

d)  ERMEERF-EE A ZHERE
BT ES

(o0 HHEERER_-F-LETAZTFAHE
ZAT T AT T FARAT AR T 2% — 4
SR H - AR BT B
TR F oA LR o

H LR _F-EHEANHERER
PUTES R R EET AN A RME-
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12. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 12. T d5e v 5 g B
A Y > AR 4 T 0 7 R B S (=
TN SR A R
B2 F R EOR LR R T RIAL (2
TN AL ) W AR A 7 S A B

The five highest paid employees of the Group during the year included
three (2016: three) directors and the chief executive officer of the Company,
details of whose remuneration are set out in Note 11 above. Details of the

remuneration for the year of the remaining two (2016: two) highest paid

employees who are neither a director nor chief executive officer of the Z A5 H AR B AR RS A
Company are as follows:

2017 2016
L4 TR N
HK$’000 HK$’000
T#xT RRC
Salaries and other benefits Wi 4 B H A AR ) 6,271
Contributions to retirement benefits schemes YN R R 36
6,307

7 T A S DA i Y S A A D O B

The number of the highest paid employees who are not the directors of the

No dividend was paid or proposed for ordinary shareholders of the Company

during the year, nor has any dividend been proposed since the end of the

reporting period (2016: Nil).

Company whose remuneration fell within the following bands is as follows: Hi R B AN

2017 2016
R e
No. of employees No. of employees
e HHH i B 4 H
HKS$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 5t £2,000,0003% 7T =
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 %5 7G %2,500,000% G =
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 %5 7G %3,000,000% G =
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 3,000,001 JG %3,500,000% J& 2
HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000 3,500,001 JG 324,000,000% 7& =
13. DIVIDENDS 13. JBA

A1 1 3N 8 16 A O ) 9 B B RS A e ek R
FEAEAT I A5, > 19 3 5 191 A DA 2A I 06 il e ik A 42
R (B — N4 fE) o
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14. EARNINGS PER SHARE 14. 35 M
The calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share attributable to owners A V) BER N R A B B 5 A % i 9 2R T AR
of the Company is based on the following data: BT B at 5
2017 2016
Bt 2 ZERNE
HKS$’000 HK$°000
T#x RRC
(Restated)
(EF])
Earnings B
Earnings for the purpose of basic earnings VAT S e B AT Z 2 F) -
per share:
Profit for the year attributable to owners of A R BEA N AL 4 B i R
the Company 123,740
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares: T A P A R e
Fair value change on financial liabilities WATHEFABGEZERMARKZ
at fair value through profit or loss AN TAEEEE) (12,104)
Earnings for the purpose of FH DA G T S A A 2 B
diluted earnings per share 111,636
Number of shares Bety ¥ H
Weighted average number of ordinary shares LGt A R AR A 2
for the purpose of basic earnings per share W 978 B RE - 2 8 16,529,300,924
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares: T TE B S B R 2
Issuance of shares for conversion of At VT A A 5 T AT 2 B
convertible bonds (Note 33) (Mt 7E33) 294,010,680
Weight average number of ordinary shares for FH DA S R R R 2
the purpose of diluted earnings per share 48 JE o0 T 4 8 16,823,311,604

The denominators used are the same as those detailed above for both basic
and diluted earnings per share.

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting the weighted average
number of ordinary shares outstanding to assume conversion of all dilutive
potential ordinary shares.

The number of ordinary shares adopted in the calculation of the basic and
diluted earnings per share for the years ended 31 December 2016 and 2017
have been retrospectively adjusted to reflect the bonus element of the rights
issue completed during the year ended 31 December 2017 as disclosed in
Note 29.

Share options of the Company are not dilutive as the exercise prices were
higher than the share price of the Company’s shares during the years ended
31 December 2017 and 2016.

In arriving at earnings for the purpose of diluted earnings per share, no
adjustment is made for effective interest expenses recognised on convertible
bonds as all such interest expense were capitalised during the years ended 31
December 2017 and 2016.

Jie A A 2 43 B B b SRR R A4 I R AR R
3 25 R0 B 3 A I

o BB 2R % 98 00 ) AT AR S B2
TR - 34 1B S > A1 5 P A TR A 4 O B
Hez 5 Xt H -

BKE_R-AER_F—LEITZA=Z1+—
H Ik 4FE B DL 51 50 B B A T 4 9 2R 2 3%
MR CAEH BB DR ECR
—tEF A= HIEFEE R A (B
K EE29) Z AL R B K o

BE_FE—LER_F—NEhiHE=6=
H R4 - f R AS 2 ) i e W =2 47 68 0 e i AR
%ﬂi&%aﬁﬁ&ﬂiﬁ&@ﬁXﬁﬁﬁm

BE_FLER_F-AETAZT—
H k42 - 2 SO R BHE G B BRI < &
AL IR » Slf: S8 S it T 460 0 il Rl 2 R A B
%ﬁ&ﬁﬁ’ﬁﬁkﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁiﬂﬁﬁ
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #E _F—tLE+T_H=+—HIL4EE
15. INTERESTS IN AN ASSOCIATE 15. % — A1 0BR 28 2 Wl 2 A 4
2017 2016
B 2 TR N
HK$’000 HK$’000
T#xT T#x
Cost of investment, unlisted Ik LT HE AR 100,000
Bargain purchase AL 4,407
Share of post-acquisition results and JREE A WA i A% 3 A R G At 2 T WK 2
other comprehensive income, WO B
net of dividends received (20,210)
Disposal during the year (Note 37) ENmE (HiEk37) (84,197)
Proportion
Place of of ownership Proportion of
establishment/  Class of interests held  voting rights held
Name of associate operations share held by the Group by the Group Principal activities
A5 1 O 5 5 1 i 5
B, P +§ 2P B
B8 A 7 4 AR B iZiigb] HE At P il RIS 3
A0 N 5 b 2 B B A PR ) PRC Ordinary - —  Property development
(“Beijing BSD”) (2016: Nil (2016: Nil) in the PRC
(Indirect))
b T NELEE e B % A PR A o s - - PR
(M EEEE]) (ZR—RE: (ZB—RE: BT
I (FI$R) ) I
In the opinion of the directors of the Company, no associate is individually AR ] S R A o N B — T N W] AR
material to the Group. HEKNEE-
Aggregate information of associate that is not individually material: I8 3 Jk B KBk A W] 2 & fF BB -
2017 2016
—F—Lt% R A
HK$’000 HK$’000
T#x T¥#T
The Group’s share of profit A 4 8 A 5 ) 3,136
The Group’s share of other comprehensive expense A% 42 [Hl Al J fib 2 i B 3% (5,763)
The Group’s share of total comprehensive expense 2% 45 [ Ji& {} 4 Thi BH 3 48 4 (2,627)
e s o bata ! )|
W, (t; 1 :\;‘V J ‘M .gf,—;; | ,),?@&' >
3 “N ?;“, ‘{ : M 'RM; k‘ &3 \\\\ »—b =
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16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

16. Y13 ~ B 55 Bk i

Furniture,
Leasehold fixtures and Construction-
Buildings  improvements equipment Machinery Vehicles in-progress Total
K- RER
ey HEmREE B} e RBLA FRTHE kil
HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000
i Tl T i Tt T T
COST A
At January 2016 RZF-AE—H—H - 143,856 83,382 81,541 56,362 5,693,006 6,058,147
Additions RE - 18,308 12,83 27,685 372,835 1,599,191 2,030,302
Revaluation gain Efil - - - - - 585,652 585,652
Transfer to investment properties HRERENE - - - - - (1,111,090) (1,111,090)
Reclassified as held for sale EH AR HEH & - - - - - (571,245) (571.245)
Disposals i - - (1,374) - (223) - (1,597)
Written-off sy - (1,176) - - - - (1,176)
Exchange adjustments [EE 5.3 % - (10,021) (5434) (13) (496) (380.994) (396.938)
A31 December 2016 and 1 January 2017 REF-AEFZAZ—HE
“Z-tE-A-A - 150,967 88,857 109213 428478 5,814,520 6,592,035
Additions wE - 6,331 12517 1475 3909 988,030 1,012,262
Acquired on acquisition of subsidiaries A A 1 P A - - 9 - - - 9
Acquisition of assets through acquisition of subsidiaries 7% 18 VR Ak B 24 i OB ¥ 115,765 - 7 - 116 - 115,888
Disposals ik - 3) (99) (108,936) (1,677) - (110,715)
Elimination on disposal of subsidiaries 4 A 2 ) - (144,609) (68.924) - (875) (406) (214814)
Written-off g - (8.209) (225) - - - (8434)
Exchange adjustments T 3t o e - 7,729 5,197 7 593 492973 46,569
At 31 December 2017 i ane SR e =S o | 115,765 12,206 31,339 1,829 430,54 7,235,117 7,832,800
DEPRECIATION AND IMPAIRMENT i Rwf
At1 January 2016 BWEB-NE—H—H - 2018 9272 179 10403 59,924 81,798
Provided for the year EAREd | - “4m 26,038 10,685 11,992 - 9,938
Impairment loss recognised in profit or loss S Eat A AL - 59,087 - 30,000 - - 89,087
Eliminated on disposals 4 - - (509) = (178) = (687)
Written-off sy = (24) = = = = (@24)
Exchange adjustments 3t o 2 - (4,726) (1427) (1 (365) (3446) (9.965)
At 31 December 2016 and 1 January 2017 REB-AEFZAZT—AR
“F—tE-A-H - 100,178 3374 40863 21,854 56478 250,147
Provided for the year A Pt = 11,745 12,185 9,856 25,733 = 59519
Impairment loss recognised in profit or loss B WA = 12215 30408 = 244 299 43,166
Eliminated on disposals Hi R 8 - - - (50,637) (986) - (51,623)
Written-off g = (1,544) (84) = = = (1,628)
Elimination on disposal of subsidiaries H 4 B 2 R = (125419) (65,348) = (613) (406) (191,786)
Exchange adjustments B 6 =3 5,589 4528 5 483 3,865 14470
At 31 December 2017 i ane SR oy =8 o S 2764 15063 87 46,715 60,236 124,865
CARRYING AMOUNTS e L
At31 December 2017 gt SR oy g e 115,765 9442 0276 1,742 383,829 7,174,381 7,707,935
At31 Decerber 2016 - 50,789 55,483 68350 406,64

FHA=t-R
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16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16.
(Continued)

The above items of property, plant and equipment, except for construction-

in-progress, are depreciated on a straight-line basis at the following rates per

annum:

Buildings Over the shorter of the term of
the lease or 5%

Leasehold improvements Over the shorter of the term of
the lease or 10%

Furniture, fixtures and equipment 6.66%-33.33%

Machinery 10%

Vehicles 5%-33.33%

At 31 December 2017, motor vehicles amounting to approximately
HK$3,512,000 (2016: approximately HK$821,000) is held under finance
lease.

The Group’s construction-in-progress, including theme parks and hotels

under constructions, are situated in the PRC.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group has pledged construction-in-progress
with a carrying amount of approximately HK$7,174,881,000 (2016:
approximately HK$5,757,656,000) to secure the Group’s borrowings (Note
31).

Yok - W b3 Be sl (#8)

VL b3 s Reoak fE B (e TR R Ah)
VLR A4 R DL AR T

M A 31 55 % 2 W S
Mg R E FLA I 310% 2 W

TRARL -~ S5 B R BM 6.66%%FE33.33%
A 10%
RETH 5%%33.33%

W=F—LETZH=1—H > #1%3,512,000
Wt (ZF— N4 4 4821,000% 00) Z K
TR EHERE -

ARG e TR (6 3o 7 o T i
JE ) e e

W_F—LEFTZ A=+ —H o AREEHCH
MR T AV 440 %47,174,881,0008 76 ( =& — A
#1%5,757,656,000% JG ) Z 16 B T.F2 > /E 25 L
PAAEE Z A3k (BEEE31) Z PR
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #WE_ZF—LE+ZH=1+—HILEE
17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 17. #EWX
HK$’000
T-#T
FAIR VALUE AT
At 1 January 2016 R-F—ANFE—H—H 4,420,271
Additions ~E 114,804
Transfer from construction-in-progress under property, WE ARG LREE T Z AR TR
plant and equipment 1,111,090
Net increase in fair value recognised in profit or loss B A R A TG A 126,172
Exchange adjustments FEE 32, 3 (340,507)
At 31 December 2016 and 1 January 2017 RoF—AETH=Z+T—HE
—Z—-tHE—-A—H 5,431,830
Additions NE 234,110
Net increase in fair value recognised in profit or loss AR A R A T E B 267,946
Exchange adjustments FEE B2, i % 419,270
At 31 December 2017 A —Z—LiE+=H=+—H 6,353,156
2017 2016
L RN
HK$’000 HK$’000
T#xT RRC
Fair value change on investment properties A A Z R E Y E T
revaluation included in profit or loss O 58 B 126,172

AR it
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17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties at 31 December 2017
and 2016 have been arrived at on the basis of a valuation carried out on
that date by APAC Asset Valuation and Consulting Limited (“APAC”), a
firm of independent qualified professional valuer not connected with the
Group. APAC had appropriate qualifications and recent experiences in the
valuation of similar properties in the relevant locations. The valuations which

conformed to International Valuation Standards.

The valuation of investment properties have been arrived at adopting direct
comparison approach with reference to comparable transactions in the
locality as also the income approach and assuming that the investment
properties will be completed in accordance with the development proposals
and the relevant approvals for the proposals have been obtained. For
properties which are under construction, APAC has taken into account the

cost that will be expanded to complete the development.

There has been no change from the valuation technique used in prior year.
In estimating the fair value of the properties, the highest and best use of the

properties is their current use.

All of the Group’s properties interests held under operating leases to earn
rentals or for capital appreciation purposes are measured using the fair value

model and are classified and accounted for as investment properties.

Details of the Group’s investment properties and information about the fair

value hierarchy as at 31 December 2017 and 2016 are as follows:

17. Be&W¥E (4)

AELEER-F-LFERZF-ANFETZA
St HZBREMRZ AV IR EAREE
ABE S8 T o 6] 8L 2 ) . Y M T SR A A B )
i K A M B A PR R (TR ) 7 %
H A7 2 Al 2% 2 S T A o K L 00
% > BB HOS A B AL B R B SE AT
il L 2 AR = R UKl LR £ R Al 8 )

W Z A A TS BR B B PR3 2 IR Y
Z T B AR By DA B WO\ > A B4 B g St
5 2% i R 58 0 K © gt A1 8 8 45 R B At S
3 2 o BLAE B W SR T & - SR TR B e i B
B RE 2 Z A

T A i T =2 A 8 D7 42 36 S0 5 ) o A A 4
L PRI » W38 2 do w5 B dmcHE 38 2 L B g
g

7K 5 AR A AL B R A DA R < B
ST 51 Z 280y S 2 > 3900 A P A
EEWIe SR APis- VY Tl (i a<E/E VN X

RE-B—HERZF-AFTZH=+—H"
AR B S N S PR SR R R
T

Fair value as at
Level 3 31 December 2017

/R S i B
T =A==l
W= Z AP
HK$’000 HK$°000
T T

Investment properties located in the PRC AL H B 2 4 3
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #WE_ZF—LE+ZH=1+—HILEE
17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 17. BEWE (&)
Fair value as at
Level 3 31 December 2016
RN
+ZH=+—H
B ZATE
HK$’000 HK$ 000
Tt T-¥HIT
Investment properties located in the PRC A I 2 BB 3 5,431,830 5,431,830
There were no transfers into or out of Level 3 during the year. AR MRS S B A = o
As at 31 December 2017, the Group’s investment properties with a carrying MoF—LETFZAZ+—H s AREECHAH
amount of approximately HK$6,353,156,000 (2016: approximately W THI L 4 %56,353,156,000% 70 ( & — N4«
HK$5,431,830,000) have been pledged to secure the Group’s borrowings #1%5,431,830,0008 6 ) Z B & Py % > M A B
(Note 31). AR 2 R (HEaE3 L) Z # it o
The carrying amounts of investment properties shown above comprise: BSCPR Z 3% P 2 IR R A A
2017 2016
e S ZRNE
HK$’000 HKS$’ 000
T FHIT
Outside Hong Kong WA 5,431,830




FEAE B R TR F] | 20174F 8t

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A I B IR B

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #ZE ~F—LE T+ H=Z1T—HILEE

17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 17. B#EWE (5)

At 31 December 2017 RE-F—-tE+ZHA=+T—H
Investment properties
held by the Group
in the consolidated Valuation Relationship of
statement of Fair value technique and Significant unobservable inputs to
financial position hierarchy key inputs unobservable inputs fair value Sensitivity
ERMERAF N
A4 i b B ¥ BTH TSR ERAW A BES YR
ik 8 1LY BEsY AT B AR BB
Commercial premises in Level 3 Direct comparison method
Chengdu with carrying S8 =#(  assuming sale in its existing
amount of approximately state and by making
HK$564,013,000 reference to comparable sales
(2016: approximately evidences of similar nature
HK$218,696,000) properties as available in the
IR T . 47564,013,000 relevant market.
B (ZF A4 R Bkt
#1218,696,000% 72 ) 9 BRI - N 2%
T 3 B 735 P w2 5
PR 2 T I B 5
filo
The key inputs are:
FER YR
(i)  Price per square metre  Price per square metre, using market direct The higher the price per square  If the price per square metre to the valuation model
comparables and taking into account time, metre, the higher the fair value.  is 1% higher/lower, while all the other variables
location and other individual factors such as were held constant, the fair value of the property
quality, size, levels, etc., which is ranging from would increase/decrease by approximately RMB4.7
RMB19,250/sq.m. to RMB35,000/sq.m million.
() "R TP (RIS > BRI - ATE B EBUNZ &F JoR fk 1 Tt/ T W19 »
WA B R R AT MBS R T A SO R R R A R SR 2 A P A
JUB AR 3 ) A T8 J ok AR 19,250 /Wb 29 N R HE4,700,00078 o
TEE kA RH35,0007E
L W t i o .
WA ; v ]
3 L ) 1 L 3 18, 1 ﬁ 5 )
bia, Y :il \f:{’..xw "&,\R“ ‘
\\‘ s# R \\\\ --ﬂ‘ =z =
A S | Y T e = ) < =




Carnival Group International Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2017

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ST AR Wk
For the year ended 31 December 2017 #WE_ZF—LE+ZH=1+—HILEE
17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 17. BeE&P% (&)
At 31 December 2017 RE-F—-tE+ZHA=+T—H
Investment properties
held by the Group
in the consolidated Valuation Relationship of
statement of Fair value technique and Significant unobservable inputs to
financial position hierarchy key inputs unobservable inputs fair value Sensitivity
ERMHRIEN
7 45 B 4 B ¥ AV TSR BARW AWBES YR
LB 8 TESY BEsY AT B R
Commercial premises Direct comparison method
under construction HELE:
in Chengdu with
carrying amount of
approximately
HK$1,252,038,000
(2016: approximately
HK$1,047,846,000)
W T 17 4
1,252,038,000% 78
(ZB—RE:H
1,047,846,0003 75 ) 9
AR S
The key inputs are:
FESW:
i.  Gross development Gross development value on completion basis, ~ The higher the gross If the gross development value to the valuation
value; and taking into account of time, location and development value, the higher model is 1% higher/lower, while all the other
individual factors such as quality, levels and the fair value. variables were held constant, the fair value of the
size between the comparable and the property property would increase/decrease by approximately
of approximately RMB1,375.6 million. RMBI1.9 million.
i BBREE R MBRGE (DR BT AR R MR AR A PR SRR AR T T 1% - i B
ST LB AR LR R MR e ARG 2 AT/
5 B 30 T B ) A AR A N RH11,900,00072 o
11,375,600,0007C °
ii.  Developer’s profit Developer’s profit, taking into account of the The higher the developer’s If the developer’s profit to the valuation model is
progress of the property of 5% profit, the lower the fair value. 1% higher/lower, while all the other variables were
held constant, the fair value of the property would
decrease by approximately RMB11.3 million and
increase by RMB11.5 million.
i BREAE BRIRTFIH (BRI B5% BREAEER AR MR BRI LT T 1% T
i3 A A R AR - A TR SN

[ 11,300,00078 K 38 m A R # 11,500,007 ©

7

f/.

\
i, F-1—r ?
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17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 17. B#&EWE (4)

At 31 December 2017 RE-F—-tE+ZHA=+T—H

Investment properties

held by the Group

in the consolidated Valuation Relationship of

statement of Fair value technique and Significant unobservable inputs to

financial position hierarchy key inputs unobservable inputs fair value Sensitivity

ERMHRIEN

7 45 B 4 B ¥ RV ISR BARW AWBES YR

L7 8 TESY BEsY AT B R

Shopping mall Level 3 Direct comparison

in Qingdao with carrying =%  method

amount of approximately ML

HK$4,537,105,000

(2016: approximately The key inputs are:

HK$4,165,288,000) FESUN:

I i 18 414,537,105,000

B (ZF A

#14,165,288,000% ¢ )

5 5

Price per square metre Price per square metre using market direct The higher the price per square  If the price per square metre to the valuation model
comparables and taking into account of metre, the higher the fair value. s 1% higher/lower, while all the other variables
location, time and other individual factors such were held constant, the fair value of the property
as quality, size, levels, etc., which is ranging would increase/decrease by RMB37.8 million.
from RMB37,800/sqm to RMB63,000/sqm
(R P FRPIORETE RIS HETILREN . G PIORBURM - AP MG TR 2 7 0 R TR LY/ F We1% -

WA B W R R MRS B AT el R AR U3 2 A (A
U AR 3) A T4 7k AR 37,800 B/ Wb N R H37.800,0007C 0

TR T IR AR 63,0008
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18. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

|
|

18. JLAib M7 ¥

Trademark Licences Total
] A4 At
Note (i) Note (ii)
B ) Bk i)
HK$°000 HK$°000 HKS$°000
T T Tt
COST WA
At 1 January 2016 RER—RE—~H—H 206,931 - 206,931
Additions WE - 24,482 24,482
Exchange adjustments [FE 5, i) 2 - (358) (358)
At 31 December 2016 and RER—ANEFZH=Z1—H
1 January 2017 k_%F—tHE—-H—H 206,931 24,124 231,055
Additions wE - 1,510 1,510
Elimination on disposal of subsidiaries £ it Ji 2 =] I¢ 3} 8
(Note 37) (H7E37) (206,931) - (206,931)
Exchange adjustments HE 3. e 2 - 575 575
At 31 December 2017 L e L - 26,209 26,209
ACCUMULATED AMORTISATION % i 8
At 1 January 2016 R_R—NFE—H—H - - -
Provided for the year GANE L = 4,106 4,106
Exchange adjustments i 5%, i % = (78) (78)
At 31 December 2016 and HoZ—NE+H=+—H
1 January 2017 k_F—t4E—~H—H = 4,028 4,028
Provided for the year A N B A = 5,521 5,521
Exchange adjustments FE 5, 8 = 142 142
At 31 December 2017 Wo2—LE+H=1+—H = 9,691 9,691
CARRYING AMOUNTS i v L
At 31 December 2017 - 16,518

e M=V ES T

| =l

e

1 it

|

|
:tu-lJ
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18. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

Notes:

®

(i)

Various studies including product life cycle studies, market, competitive
and environmental trends, and brand extension opportunities have
been performed by management of the Group, which supports that
the trademark has no foreseeable limit to the period over which the
trademarked products are expected to generate net cash flows for the
Group. As a result, the trademark is considered by the management of
the Group as having an indefinite useful life because it is expected to
contribute to net cash inflows indefinitely. The trademark will not be
amortised until its useful life is determined to be finite. Instead it will be
tested for impairment annually and whenever there is an indication that it
may be impaired.

The above intangible asset represent trademark with indefinite useful
economic life. The trademark has been derecognised upon the disposal of
subsidiaries which was completed on 28 December 2017 (Note 37).

The other intangible assets (other than trademarks) have finite useful
life, such intangible assets are amortised on a straight-line basis over the
following periods:

18. JLAbAEIE % s (4)

S
B

(i)

A5 [ 4 B R AT 2 T 58 > G35 2
WIWFSE - T 85 ~ 50 R BR BT 34 DL % i ol 4
JEA T - R I TR OB AR A T T A AR
AR I8 Az B A D (D Sl 6 Y L 2 PR
i) o BRI - A 458 T 4 L 2 s v A L S R S
T FRAR ] > PR O T S PR A L
WA K e A S Y R
FIR > 785 DI S o 40 8 o 08 RS IR 4 47 B
AT 90 B9 5 IR A £ R A0 L

Rl ST S L S PR T A AR PR A
PR ZMBROR R -bE AN
H 58 1 8 WY g 2> B (M it 37) 45 RO ke

2
o

oAb f O ¥ A (TGREBRAN) BAT FRAT 48 F 47
91 - T % 55 ST Y T L AR R TR A 40 T
8.

Licenses 2-8 years 3 I RE 2-84F
19. GOODWILL 19. B
HK$ 000
T
COST AND CARRYING AMOUNT P AR e M i
At 1 January 2016, 31 December 2016 and 1 January 2017 ~ AZF—N4FE—H—H -
“F-AETZA=1+—HR
—2—tE—-H—H 870,169
Impairment loss recognised in the year A P9 it o TR A 1 (250,000)
Elimination on disposal of subsidiaries (Note 37) H B B G 2 ] R (M AE37) (620,169)

At 31 December 2017

R=2—t#+=H=+—H -

Impairment testing on goodwill

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill has been allocated to the

group of cash-generating units (the “CGU”) engaged in catering business in
the PRC and Hong Kong. The basis of the recoverable amounts of the CGU

and its major underlying assumptions is summarised below:

0 00 L

A R - PR A TR o A
e = 8 BRCE B 1Y B 4 A AL ([ B4 i A
i 1) AL o Bl 4 7 A B Ar 2w MR Ie] < 5
He il B L 3 B B A BB A0
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19. GOODWILL (Continued) 19. W62 (#9)

Impairment testing on goodwill (Continued)

An impairment loss of HK$250,000,000 has been recognised for the CGU
in the interim period ended 30 June 2017 as the recoverable amount of the
CGU was less than the respective carrying amounts of its net assets including
the goodwill. The impairment loss was allocated to reduce the carrying
amount of goodwill allocated to the CGU.

During the first half of 2017, the Group eliminated certain loss-making
restaurants in order to maximise profitability of the core restaurants
operations, as well as maintain the competitiveness in catering business.

The recoverable amount of the CGU was the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. The recoverable amounts of the CGU as at
30 June 2017 and 31 December 2016 were determined based on a value
in use calculation which used cash flow projections based on financial
budgets approved by management covering a period of 5 years, and cash
flows beyond 5 years were extrapolated by assuming 3% growth rate and
a discount rate of 18.5% per annum as at 30 June 2017 (as at 31 December
2016: 17.7% per annum). This growth rate was below the average growth
rate of the catering industry for the past 10 years. Senior management of the
Group believed that using a lower growth rate was a more conservative and
reliable choice for the purpose of this impairment testing. The discount rate
used was pre-tax and reflected management’s estimate of the risks specific
to the CGU. In determining an appropriate discount rate for the unit, regard
has been given to the applicable borrowing rate of the industry in the current
period.

Other key assumptions were used in the value in use calculations of the CGU
as at 30 June 2017 and 31 December 2016. The basis used to determine
the future earnings potential were average historical sales and expected
growth rates of the catering market in the PRC. The basis used to determine
the value assigned to the budgeted gross margins were the average gross
margins achieved in the year immediately before the budget year, increased
for expected efficiency improvements, and expected market development.
The basic factors used to determine the values assigned are staff costs, rental
expenses and other expenses. Values assigned to the key assumptions reflect
past experience and management’s commitment to maintain the Group’s
operating expenses at an acceptable level.

S A D0, ()

P B 4 7 A B 2 W Il 4 R A i L A TR
1 (EFEmEE)WEEE ORRE_F—L
RN A= H Ik A B 4 A 2k R AL
FRIRAL I 250,000,000 € o Y AE G 1H ELAE 4
BE DA IR A 43 B T B 4 s A A 2 7 R B T
{E °

T LA AR > ARG 5 B T A
FE PR B I > L5 A R JBE i 8 v A 8 I S 5 1Y
RGeSy B DR R KRB WY B )

B4 7 A WAL 2 AT e Tl A RS A T R IR B
A B A Z B & - R = F—BEAH
ESTHEZZ-AFETZA=ZT - HEERE
A B A 2 e < TG AR Bt B P B A
SE > L eb Bl A B e A 0 A R BB
et 2 B A R T » i AR AR 2 Bl i
T MBI R 3% Bt —F—LEAA =T
HIZ B R 4E18.5% (RB—ANFE+ZA
St H mA17.7% ) EATHEN o R RK
TR KM A 4 Z P 3 3R R o ACHR I R A
L > A 0 o O R I 2 3 R R
T R 51 B AT 5 o T 22 3 B3 s B 9T BL
B [ WA P S B A AR A L B AR
H R REAL o R B E % B Z A AT LR I - B
7 58 20 A9 ] P9 A7 3008 A kR R

REFB-EEAAZTHRZF-AGE T2
H = A H B4 A WAL 68 AR w59
T A R S A1 5 o PP Tl A R AR B ¥
Z Ry R 5OV 34 9 Q% vl R A T 5 A T
W10 R R o PR e S TG B A R R A Y A Bl
Ty BB PO AR B 2 W — AR R B WY OF 3 B A R
(S A9 e 39 28 3 42 T A7 v ) B TR0 i 5 %
Jo& o PRI Tl A SR A 2 B A PR 3R 2 E TOAS - L
4 B S % FEA B 3 o 3 AR B A R M S R T 0
T A I % A B g 3 A A 4 I O B SR T
2K F W ARG o
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19. GOODWILL (Continued)
Impairment testing on goodwill (Continued)

In performing the impairment testing as at 30 June 2017, the directors
of the Group have also made reference to a valuation performed by an
independent professional valuer, using the same methodology as previous
year. The carrying amount of the CGU was determined to be higher than
its recoverable amount and an impairment loss of HK$250,000,000 (31
December 2016: Nil) was recognised. The impairment loss was allocated
fully to goodwill included in the catering business segment in the PRC; and
is included in consolidated profit or loss.

On 22 December 2017, the Group have entered into a shares subscription
agreement with an independent third party to dispose of the Group’s entire
equity interest for the catering operations in the PRC. The directors of
the Group considered that the disposal represents an opportunity for the
Group to realise its investments and deploy its resources into other business
segments which may generate better return to the Group. The transaction
was completed on 28 December 2017 and the terms of the share subscription
agreement shall be irrevocably revoked nor any subsequent condition
presumed. The goodwill was fully de-recognised upon the disposal of the
catering business in the PRC.

19. v (41)

S A D0, ()

P ZF— LN A= BT A - A
ESUF & YINGE EAGE A€ LR
AR W T AT A - B A AL
IR Y (L 7B 2 v S T W [T 4 T - I L AHERR
A $250,000,0008 58 ( —F—AF+H
Z4—H ) o WA R 2 4 B E R P
PR IR TR 2 8 s A A S i8R -

RE-F—LEF A+ ZH - AR 4
B8 1 58 = 05 5T 1 e o O k> DA H A A AR
A e B RAT S I A B o ACSE I
Ry o R A A A T SR B > DU B
BB Tl A T A T B A A 4 I A 2R
R R B S 2 o AR By DR R LR
2 H A\ H e B B N e P sk
A A T A o 4 LA T C AR R RS T A
HESE R Ty o T A R R R B AR - A B T
B 2 T I R o
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20. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS

20. Wit AR E

Unlisted investments: E LS
— Unlisted private fund in Cayman Islands — SRS ZIE BN SEES
(Note (i) (Kita))
— Unlisted private fund in the PRC (Note (ii)) — A ZIE LT RA R4
(Kt i)
— Equity securities (Note (iii)) —WEZR W F (Mt Gii))
Analysed for reporting purposes as: BURCE H 2B ks
Current assets it B
Non-current assets B A A

Notes:

®

(i)

(iii)

The unlisted investment fund represented a mutual fund managed by a
private fund manager registered and approved by the Cayman Islands
Monetary Authority. As the fund is at a preliminary stage and mainly
holding of cash and deposits, and therefore the management considered
that the fair value of the investments approximated their cost at the end of
the reporting period. No impairment was identified as at the year ended
date.

The unlisted investment fund represented a fund managed by a private
fund manager registered and approved by the Asset Management
Association of China and is measured as fair value. The fair value of
unlisted private fund is established by making reference to the redemption
price quoted by respective fund administrators which was based on the
net asset value of the fund determined on a fair value basis. The unlisted
private fund is redeemable by the Group at any time, within one year after
the subscription upon giving a written notice in advance of the redemption
and shall be redeemed at the end of the one year period.

On 31 October 2017, the Group entered into agreement with an individual
third party and acquired the unlisted equity investments issued by private
entity incorporated in Marshall Islands with limited liability with equity
interests of 19.97%. The captioned entity is an investment holding

(i)

(iii)

2017 2016
T SRR
HK$°000 HK$°000
T#x T

I LT R G R AR PR R A A B
a5 0 ke v ¥ R 5 e < A B8 ) A B
Y L R 4 o Y AR R R B >
LR BLGr T Ak > RGBT i
IR % S ) A T B R A A o 4
A5 F 3 08 Y B IRAR -

e LT B A AR R A A
S Tih 0 M 5 41 v ¥ A S G 8L )
B B > 3R PR B o %k BT AL SE
He G Wy N TAE TS 2 75 A B 0k 6 A BN ¥R UL
To B R B A > A R R B 7 BT 2 o B
et 0 A B R A S R o %k LT AL
SRR T ph A 45 TR R AR — 4R T B IR O
R o S % 8 T M A T DA B ] > Sl R
— A ] [ A4 AR I B 1]

R-Z—LETA=ZT—H REHME—F
BB =05 5T etk - WORR IS SRR Sk
10 185 57 9 FA N IR B A5 A B 8547 1919.97%
JREREIE b7l BE AR PR B o R4 A Rl — R
T2 ) B L B A ) LB W e SR
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21. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE

21, AV A B Z S E A

THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS
2017 2016
L4 “RNE
HK$’000 HK$°000
T#T AR
Financial assets A
Held for trading: FrAEHEH -

Equity securities listed in Hong Kong (Note (i) R Ll Z WS35 (Mitd)) 274,388
Designated at fair value through profit or loss: 5 A PALEE AR -
Equity linked note (Note (i) RE£5 P 8 08 (Mt (i) ) 463,000
Unlisted investment fund (Note (iii)) I b BB I L (M i) ) 392,529
1,129,917
Notes: Mtk -

@) The fair value of equity securities are determined based on the quoted
market prices at the end of the reporting period.

(i)  The fair value of the equity linked note was determined with reference to
the quoted price of the underlying listed equity investments in Hong Kong
at the end of the reporting period.

(iii)  The fair value of unlisted investment fund is established by making
reference to the redemption price quoted by respective fund administrators,
which was determined based on net asset value of the fund measured on a
fair value basis.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had pledged equity securities listed
in Hong Kong with carrying amount of approximately HK$1,477,994,000
(2016: Nil) to secure the Group’s borrowings (Note 31).

'3

() W IR G AP R BRR $ IoR 2 7T 8
AR AL ©

(i) A4 8 SR 2 AT 15 2 IO R 5 S0 R A
o A B R S 2 R A -

(i) FELHHREEREZAFPMIBBE LIS
A PN Y B 1 A AR - A R R AR G B 4
O PAH A SR A R 4 3 7 R o

WoF—tHE+H=+—H > REECHI
W T 8 40 %5 1,477,994,0008 76 (=T —7

) YA T W T 2 B 2SR R o R R B AR 4R
M ik Z AR (HERE3L) o
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22,

23.

INVENTORIES 22. ##188
2017 2016
Bt 2 TR R
HK$’000 HK$’000
T#L RRC
Properties under development for sale Rk 2,615,160
Completed properties for sale Ok TRk 2,392,067
5,007,227
Food and beverages, and other operating items %8 ik DA S 28 fik S A BRI 285 36 %5 1
for catering and related service operations HimeEmEE 14,116
Finished goods BB 6,134
5,027,477
The Group’s properties for sale with a carrying amount of approximately R —LE+ZHA=Z+—H - AREHECHIT
HK$5,968,225,000 as at 31 December 2017 (2016: approximately M T A 40 %55,968,225,0008 76 ( =B — N4 ¢
HK$5,007,227,000) have been pledged to secure the Group’s borrowings #1%55,007,227,000% 5¢ ) Z ¢ B ¥ % - 1E R I
(Note 31). A B K (BERE31) Z 45 PR o
The properties for sale are situated in the PRC and Hong Kong. The R R TRAL I P B R A v o R PR B
properties under development for sales are expected to be completed and SE TR A T AR A& 1218 A Wk T AT Bk 8
available for sale within 12 months from the end of reporting period. o
TRADE RECEIVABLES 23. HMEWCR B R

Trade receivables arising from sale of properties are due for settlement in
accordance with the terms of the related sale and purchase agreement. Rental

receivables from tenants are payable on presentation of invoices.

Trade receivables arising from catering business are mainly due from credit
card companies and corporate customer. In view of aforementioned, there is

no significant concentration of credit risk as at 31 December 2017 and 2016.

PRI 839 65 1 38 i 7 2 MR S M R AL 4 A B
T T K B 9 465 5 o B R E L B R
FRRLA -

BOREB A R 2 M MR K T B ME A
AW 2 ) R A 3% PRI o B A UL > R
“EFLERZE-AETZAZT—HlE
3 SN EEE LN
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23. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued)

The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables (net of allowance for
doubtful debts), presented based on agreement terms and invoice date, at the
end of the reporting period:

23.

M B 5 Mk ()

REE IR - R ek R BEE A RS2
JRE W B 0 R sk (0 B R M A ) 2 MR 8 4 T
T

2017 2016
- SRR
HK$°000 HK$°000
T#x T

0 - 30 days 0F30H
31— 60 days 31FE60H
61 —90 days 61%90H
91 — 180 days 91%180H
Over 180 days 180H YL I

15,258
4,375
5,364
3,629

31,861

60,487

As at 31 December 2017, included in the Group’s trade receivables were
debtors with aggregate carrying amount of approximately HK$19,894,000
(2016: approximately HK$31,861,000) which are past due for which
the Group has not provided for impairment loss as there had not been a
significant change in credit quality and the amounts were still considered
recoverable. The Group has collateral over certain these balances from sale
of properties. Trade receivables are non-interest bearing.

MR —BEFZAZS—H - AREE K
B 5 W K v A 55 R T 4B A0 %5 19,894,0009 76
(ZB—NE  H1531,861,0009 50 ) Z B
JRE WOk T > T ER R R A KA B B
B 4 A0S ok 1A T MR T » s A 4 B S 9 8
G 1E - AREEMR BB R H T HERFFER
5t o M R B WOl R T o

Ageing of trade receivables which are past due but not 3300 AR AT AR R B WA 2 M B B
impaired Wk 2 ik b

2017 2016
e Sl i 3 N S VAY o
HK$’000 HK$’000
T Tt
0 - 30 days 0%30H -
Over 180 days 180H YL | 31,861
31,861

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired were mainly related
to a number of corporate customers for whom there were no recent history
of default. Accordingly, no provision for impairment of trade receivables is
necessary as at 31 December 2017 (2016: Nil).

I 08 26 391 75 A% Ik L 2 O R ik 8 I 2
B S R Gt Sk 2 A K P o H M R T F
—tHEFZHA=Z+—H  BARZFERHE S
MR AR i (% ANAE ) o
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24. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES

24. THAS K > 35 4 B I il B WOk

Non-current assets 8 Wy % e
Long-term rental deposit R &S

Note receivables (Note (1)) FEWCEBE (M aEG))
Current assets bR b 9
Prepayments: TE AT KH :

— construction contracts —HRk A

— pre-sale related taxes — B R B I

— others —Hfl

Deposits (Note (ii)) Y4 (Mt i)
Consideration receivables (Note 37) FENARAE (M 7E37)
Other receivables (Note (iii)) JL b JE WOk T (M i) )

Notes:

®

(i)

(iii)

As announced by the Company on 20 December 2017, the Company
has introduced a strategic partner to jointly develop a property located in
Canada. Note receivables have been issued to the Company in relation to
the strategic arrangement.

Save as disclosed in the announcement made by the Company on
20 December 2017, the note receivables in the principal amount of
US$11,400,000, which bears interest at the rate of 5% per annum and has
a maturity date falling 7 years from the date of issue or such other date as
may be agreed between the Company and the issuer.

The balance mainly represents deposits paid in advance to third parties for
future supply of construction materials prior to entering into contracts with
the suppliers.

The Group has provided for certain other receivables of approximately
HK$41,092,000 for the year ended 31 December 2017 (2016:
approximately HK$38,261,000) because management had determined the
likelihood of recovery of the monies is remote.

above assets is either past due or
d in the above balances related to
r}t hist

®

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

BRI AT

2017
e Sl i 3
HK$°000
T

2016
A
HK$’000
Tt

16,954

16,954

1,209,649
69,426
268,396
1,474,826
235,000
479,960

3,737,257

3,754,211

AMAR AR =R —BEFZH -
M > AR T TG ARRIE AR £ DL R BA
FEOLTA I S 4y 3 o A3 B IR B 4 T g
W L BT AT T AAF -

BEAAFR - Z—LE+ZH 1+ HF 5
W25 B B @ 5 A » ARG %% 11,400,00055 70
) B e 22 B F AR I R 5 %wt B > B H A 88
H 918 511 748 Bl AR 2 ] B2 88 47\ VT B 1 8
F oAt H -

ik At i 25 B I SRS IR R 5T S £ A4 BT BE H
A% B SRR B M 1k 555 =0y A 4

BEZZ—-LHE+ A=+ HIL4EE &
SE [ E L 441,092,000 78 ( ZF— N4 4
38,261,000¥ 70 ) Wy T Fo At MEGR IE 5T 3%
%ﬁ; > Jo PR A L 7 AL Tk I 4 Tl e

R o A Lt 4 ik 2 4 ik i s B

4
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25. PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS/
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

25. %%Wﬁﬁﬁ#%{/ﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁ%

2017 2016

e S ZERNE

HK$°000 HK$’ 000

T T

Pledged bank deposits TG R AT 3K 1,860,257
Cash and cash equivalents B4 M B4 S AE ) 446,737
Cash and bank balances B4 B ERAT K5 8% 2,306,994

Cash and bank balances of the Group comprise bank balances and cash held
and short-term bank deposits that are interest-bearing at market interest rate
and have original maturity of one year to three years. The Group’s bank
deposits carry interest rates ranging from Nil to 4.2% (2016: Nil to 4.2%) per

annum.

At 31 December 2017, approximately 6% (2016: approximately 11%) of the
Group’s bank balances and deposits are denominated in Hong Kong dollars
and approximately 94% (2016: approximately 89%) in Renminbi (“RMB”).
RMB is not a freely convertible currency and the remittance of funds out of

the PRC is subject to exchange restrictions imposed by the PRC government.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group’s bank balances and deposits of
approximately HK$11,737,000 (2016: approximately HK$72,627,000)
are solely for certain designated property development projects in the
PRC, and there are approximately HK$20,987,000 (2016: approximately
HK$86,984,000) of bank balance’s that had been secured for certain
construction cost payable in the PRC.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had pledged bank deposits with a
carrying amount of approximately HK$1,337,248,000 (2016: approximately
HK$1,860,257,000) to secure the Group’s borrowings in the PRC (Note 31).

A ) 2 B4 B SRAT 5% A 55 BT R 2 BRAT 45
ik B B4 V), T 4 v 35 M) R 58 LB 0 R s
—AE B E M RAT R e RE I RIT T
KZAEFBATPREL2% (B—NIE:RE
42%) o

NoE—bE+H=Z+—H AREEMM
TR R Z R B KI6%D (ZF—AN4F:
1% ) ZARW (TARE ) 15#8194% (=%
—INAE HI89% ) o AR R IEE d i e B i
B B 4 T Hh R 28 % v [ BORT B 2 A e
i il e 5 BRE

RoB—bEF A =SB AR AT
G M AF AR #111,737,0008 78 ( F — N4 :
1 4572,627,000% 76 ) B A AL P B 2 2T
HwREMEBRIEE - B A £20,987,000% 7t
( ZF— N4 £186,984,000 7T ) = $RAT 45 %
T KA A 2 1 o 5 T A R S B AR 2 M AR o

W_F—LEFZA=+—H > REFHCHIH
YR TG ¥ 40 %51,337,248,0008 G ( 2R —N4F ¢
#17%1,860,257,000% 7T ) Z 8] 47 77 3K » 1E % B
o A 5 [ o IR 5 O A AR (B RESL) Z MR o
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26. TRADE PAYABLES

Trade payables comprise amounts outstanding for construction costs,

26. MEAT 5 MR

A 50 M ok 5 A7 I st S A~ 3 T B

suppliers and on-going costs. BN A 2 1 A IR 2K o
The following is an aged analysis of trade payables at the end of the reporting T o A BT 5 HE k2 HE A0 A I T o
period. )
2017 2016
ZR— LA RN
HK$’000 HK$’000
T#xT T#x
0-30 days 0%30H 106,646
31 -60 days 31260H 11,907
61 —90 days 61290H 22,955
Over 90 days 90H L I 1,408,074
1,549,582

[ P o . T

T
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27. DEPOSITS FROM CUSTOMERS/ACCRUED
LIABILITIES AND OTHER PAYABLES

27. gg*ﬂﬁz/lﬁ%‘rﬁfﬁﬁﬁfmiﬁﬁ

2017
e Sl i 3
HK$°000
T

Deposits from customers: KR4
Deposits received from sales of properties 858 3 CMOGT 4
Advances from customers of catering business & i 35 FH L & P 3K IH
Others HAl
2017
—R— LA
HK$’000
T#L
Accrued liabilities and other payables: M T £ 46 B G i A kR
Non-current liabilities I8 By £ 4
Deferred income TR GE WA
Long-term payable 1= 391 A+ 3k 0E
Current liabilities i ) £
Construction costs payable JE A s 5 R A
Other payables At A K IE
Accruals R
Interest payable JE A ) B

2016
—F A

HK$°000

T

981,406
231,987
8,081

1,221,474

2016
-
HK$°000
T

12,447
71,376

89,823

96,010
561,522
84,657
11,885

754,074

843,897
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28. AMOUNTS DUE TO NON-CONTROLLING
INTERESTS/RELATED COMPANIES

29.

u

The amounts due are unsecured, interest free and repayable on demand.

28. MEAT P BOHE A Bl 2 vil 5k

A B K T SR~ S0 B A RO -

SHARE CAPITAL 29. JBeAR
Ordinary
shares of
HK$0.2 each Amount
49 ¢ i i
028 L2
gl B
Notes ’000 HKS$’ 000
ik T AR
Authorised: W
At 1 January 2016, R_F—NF—H—H-
31 December 2016 and ZE—AFTH=ZT—HK
1 January 2017 —R—tHE—H—H 25,000,000 5,000,000
Increase on 10 July 2017 W —BEE AT Bm 25,000,000 5,000,000
At 31 December 2017 w2 -t#E+-A=+—H 50,000,000 10,000,000
Issued and fully paid: T R :
At 1 January 2016 W_F—ANFE—H—H 14,882,378,468 2,976,476
Issue of shares by way of placing 7 T AT IR (a) 1,995,350,000 399,070
At 31 December 2016 and 1 January 2017 A _F—ANE+_H=+—HK
&R —tHE—H—H 16,877,728,468 3,375,546
Issue of shares by way of placing 5 T AT A (b) 300,000,000 60,000
Issue of shares upon rights issue 2 Ak s AT ey ©) 4,294,432.117 858,886
At 31 December 2017 R_-2—tE+-A=+—H 21,472,160,585 4,294,432

I
LEEET S

=
5.

EESEEE
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BEF-LETZAZ - HILEE

29. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Notes:

a)

b)

)

Issue of shares by way of placing

@

(i)

(iif)

On 21 June 2016, the Company allotted and issued 725,000,000
ordinary shares of HK$0.2 each in the capital of the Company
by way of placing at a placing price of HK$0.95 per share.
The Company raised approximately HK$674,472,000 (net of
expenses).

On 7 July 2016, the Company allotted and issued 440,000,000
ordinary shares of HK$0.2 each in the capital of the Company
by way of placing at a placing price of HK$0.88 per share.
The Company raised approximately HK$379,260,000 (net of
expenses).

On 22 December 2016, the Company allotted and issued
830,350,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.2 each in the capital of the
Company by way of placing at a placing price of HK$0.873 per
share. The Company raised approximately HK$702,895,000 (net
of expenses).

Issue of shares by way of placing

On 17 May 2017, the Company allotted and issued 300,000,000 ordinary
shares of HK$0.2 each in the capital of the Company by way of placing at
a placing price of HK$0.80 per share. The Company raised approximately
HK$237,600,000 (net of expenses).

Issue of shares upon rights issue

On 27 September 2017, the Company allotted and issued 4,294,432,117
ordinary shares of HK$0.2 each in the capital of the Company by way of
rights issue at a subscription price of HK$0.40 per share. The Company
raised approximately HK$1,678,852,000 (net of expenses).

29. JBeA (%)

b)

c)

B

B AT IRy

i MNZB-ANEANHZtT—H- KA
W] LB - B R B
0.95%% JG L % B B8 47 A 24 W] JBe A o
725,000,000 55: Ji T 5029 6 Z 3%
I8 It o AR W) B AT #1674,472,0009 TG
(Fupr#H) -

() MF—ANELALH - KAFBER
T B > 5 T B 1 15 IR JE 473 0.8 895 DT L
B B AT A ] e AR 440,000,000
G029 TE Z S B o AR A T E
#1379,260,0009 7¢ (FBREH ) -

MRE-Z—ANETFTHZ+FZHK
2\ ] % LB - 4R T B AE 1T R R
0.873%5 0 it %5 M AT A A W] e A op
830,350,000/8t 5 JBt i 10.2% JC Z ¥
I8 Bt o AR\ W) 1% £1702,895,0009 It
(fubr#m) -

(iif)

BV BAT IRy

R-F—LEHLA+LH - RAFR BB
A SR A A 4 B B 400,809 I L 3% e B AT
AR 2 W] AR H1300,000,000/8 45 B 1 0.2 45
JCZ 58 I o AR A\ A% £9237,600,00095 78
(fukr#H) o

BB EEAT IRy

RoF—LERH Z+LH  RAF B
JBE > 352 A 4 T IR 40,4035 70 Bl 3% I B8 4T
AN ) I AR H14,294,432,117 )8 45 R T 40,235
TG Z 5 8 B o A2\ W] #1453 401,678,852,000%
JG (FIBREA) -
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30. OBLIGATION UNDER FINANCE LEASE

30. EMBEHTZEHIT

Analysis for reporting purpose as: BURCE H 2B ks
Current liabilities Vi) £ AT
Non-current liabilities EIRT N

2017 2016
- SR
HK$°000 HK$000
T#x T

334

346

680

The Group’s leased certain of its motor vehicle under finance lease. The
lease term is 5 years (2016: 5 years). Interest rates underlying the obligation
under finance lease are fixed at respective contract dates 4.70% (2016:

3.57%) per annum.

ALHMMERMEHMEHAILE TRBETH-
R TR (R —N4R - 4R ) - R AL
TP Z BAT A AR R 45 6 4 H EE R 4.70%

(ZR—ANF:357%) °
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30. OBLIGATION UNDER FINANCE LEASE 30. AEMBEE T Z2EA (8)

(Continued)

Present value of minimum

Minimum lease payments lease payments
B R AH B K T AR AH B R H B E
2017 2016 2017 2016
ZR L SRR ZR L SR A
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000
T#x T#T T#x T#T

Obligation under finance lease B A 2

payable: B EIE T 2 B
Within one year —4E N
More than one year but not AR DL AH S A e A

more than two years
More than two years but not AR DL AR 0 4

more than five years

Less: future finance charges a2 AR A #

Present value of lease obligation ~Fl & H £ Z Bi{H

Less: Amount due for settlement  J8 : 1248 H 1 2] 1] 4% 35

within 12 months (shown FKIE (B R B
under current liabilities) HAEET)

Amount due for settlement after 12118 H & 2| 3] 4% B 3k JEH
12 months

The Group’s obligation under finance lease is secured by the lessor’s title to

the leased assets.

Finance lease obligation is denominated in Hong Kong dollars.

A5 A il A B R 2 BT o RN S AR
5 E A REAR A R o

il 5 AL B AR DA ot 5
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31. BORROWINGS

31. fiiak

Bank borrowings, secured (Note (i) SRATAY 3 - B AT (M EEG) )
Other borrowings, secured (Note (1)) oAb AE 3 - B BRI (M EE (i))
Senior bonds (Note (ii)) BRI (M D))

Bonds (Note (ii)) &% (Mt i)

Carrying amounts repayable: 20 T AE R 2 IR

On demand or within one year RN

More than one year but not exceeding two years —4F P4 [ H AS 18 4% i 47

More than two years but not exceeding five years Fi4FE DA _b{H A 8 4% 14
More than five years

FAERLE

Notes:

@

As at 31 December 2017, bank and other borrowings of approximately
HK$5,444,346,000 (2016: approximately HK$4,999,854,000) are
denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”) and carried interest at fixed interest
rates of 1.68% to 13% (2016: 1.62% to 13%) per annum. Bank and other
borrowings of approximately HK$268,603,000 (2016: approximately
HK$289,094,000) are denominated in United States Dollars (“USD”’) and
carried interest at floating rate of London Interbank Offered Rate plus
3%per annum (2016: 3%). Bank and other borrowings of approximately
HK$1,967,468,000 (2016: approximately HK$1,080,250,000) are
denominated in HK$ including HK$100,000,000 which carried interest at
floating rate of Hong Kong Inter-bank offered Rate plus 2% per annum,
HK$904,661,000 which carried interest at floating rate of Hong Kong
Inter-bank Offered Rate plus 1.5% per annum, HK$390,000,000 which
carried interest at fixed interest rate of 6.5% per annum, HK$14,000,000
which carried interest at fixed interest rate of 8.75% per annum, and
HK$558,807,000 which carried interest at fixed interest rates of 5% to
15.25% per annum respectively (2016: HK$180,000,000 which carried
interest at fixed rate of 9.2% per annum and HK$900,250,000 which
carried interest at floating rate of Hong Kong Inter-bank Offered Rate plus
1.5% per annum respectively).

2017
-
HK$°000
T#x

2016

B
HK$°000
T

2,973,966
3,395,232
1,832,113

269,701

8,471,012

3,035,626
2,612,052
2,584,176

239,158

8,471,012

Ro-F—LEFTFZA=Z+—H - #I7 M
N He A A 5k £95,444,346,0008 70 ( —F— N
4E 1 #94,999,854,000% 75 ) U A R (TA R
W) FHAE - 64 B DL R AR R R 1.68% %
13% ( . — N4 1.62%%E13% ) 7t B o 4
A7 B oAl 3K £1268,603,0008 7T ( —F— N
4 2 %9289,094,000% 6 ) PLFE G ([3E6])
FHE > 3 DL AR B W 2R B 3% (R —N
A 3% ) IV B AR R KGR o SRAT K I A
8 3K #91,967,468,000% 76 ( ZF — N4 4
1,080,250,000% JG ) D), #s 70 5116 » 3 o 42 5
100,000,000%5 7G LA i ¥ 847 W] Z£ 47 8 2%
FI77 B 4EFI R 5B, > 904,661,0009 76 A 75
SRAT W TR BN 1.5% 00 ¥ B 4R ) K5

390,000,0009 JG 3% [ % 4F F R6.5%51 &, »

14,000,000% 76 4% 8 78 4F F1 %8.75% 51 B, > &
558,807,000 76 3% [F %8 4F F1| R5% % 15.25%
Fh B (F— N4 £ 180,000,000 TG PA [ &
AEF2R9.2%%t B > 900,250,000 7T DA 7 #E
SRAT R 2L BN 1.5% M 2R B AR R R 5HE) o
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31. BORROWINGS (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

®

(i)

(Continued)

The Group’s bank and other borrowings were secured by the assets of the
Group with the following carrying amounts:

(a)

31. ik (&)
Wt (4)

@

Property, plant and equipment (Note 16) #3 ~ Bz I &M (M7t 16)

Investment properties (Note 17) BB (Hit17)

Properties for sale (Note 22) HEWE (Hit22)

Equity securities listed in Hong Kong 2 7 s bl X RERR & J% (M 7121)
(Note 21)

Pledged bank deposits (Note 25) TR RAT K (K 7E25)

Deposits 4

(b) A personal guarantee was given by the chairman of the Company
for the Group’s certain borrowings.

(c)  Certain shares of non-controlling interests of the Group have been
pledged to secure the borrowings.

Bonds payable

As at 31 December 2017, senior bonds payable of aggregate
amount of approximately HK$1,290,152,000 (2016: approximately
HK$1,410,855,000) are denominated in USD and bear interest at the
rate of 8% (2016: 8%) per annum. The bonds will mature on 22 March
2019. The net proceeds of the bonds, after deducting the issuance costs,
amounted to approximately HK$1,374,774,000 during the year ended 31
December 2016.

Bonds and senior bonds payable of aggregate amount of approximately
HK$952,122,000 (2016: approximately HK$690,959,000) are
denominated in HKD and bear interest at the rate of 5% to 6% (2016: 6%)
per annum. The bonds will mature on the date immediately following 2
years to 8 years (2016: 2 years to 7 years) after the date of issue of the
bonds. The net proceeds of the bonds, after deducting the issuance costs,
amounted to approximately HK$646,747,000 during the year ended 31
December 2017 (2016: approximately HK$254,145,000).

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Company had repaid
the principal amount of approximately HK$400,000,000 (2016:
approximately HK$112,626,000) on maturity date.

(i)

(&1

ACHE T ST A R B LA A R AR 42 T R 5
MR A L 2 S ARG

(a)

2017 2016

e S ¥
HK$’000
T

e
HK$’000
Tl

5,757,656
5,431,830
5,007,227

1,860,257
189,788

18,246,758

(b) AN TFE I CRAE B T KR

(PN 7
(0  ASBEIES MR 2 T e f TR
T A R A R

WR_F—LtE+_H=+—H -#BE&H
#11,290,152,000% 56 ( = F — N4E: 4
1,410,855,000% JG ) i JE A5F £ 56 5 %% DA 36 o6
FHE S 4 R R8% (B — N4 8% )l
B ZEEHE/R_F-F=H_1T2H
B RMRE_FE—ANFET_H=+—HIE
AEBE 5 SR IR TR TE A (0 BR AT K
4% ) K F51,374,774,0008 IC ©

A 4 FH£9952,122,0008 78 (= F —AN4E: 4
690,959,000%5 It ) 1 JE 1 4 5 M % 2 i %
DL JCHHE I 324 R RS 6% (=T —7N
AE 6% ) BB o I B BE R B AT
H IR W24 B4R (ZF— N4 R ET4E)
ZHEW - ABRE_R-LETF A=,
H AR » 3% S 85 25 i A sk R A (B
1T AR ) £ 55646,747,0008 T8 (28—~
4E 1 £9254,145,0008 78 ) ©

MEBEELZ—LET AZ+—HILEE
A T ERA B B A A 4% 41400,000,000
Wt (22— N4 £1112,626,000858) ©
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31. BORROWINGS (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(i)

Bonds payable (Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Company early
redeemed a principal amount of approximately HK$136,511,000 (2016:
approximately HK$498,984,000) and recognised a loss of approximately
HK$637,000 (2016: approximately HK$1,471,000) in consolidated profit
or loss.

Senior bonds and bonds payable of approximately HK$2,242,274,000
(2016: approximately 2,101,814,000) were unsecured, in particular,
principal amount of approximately HK$1,290,153,000 (2016:
approximately HK$1,410,855,000) were guaranteed and principal
amount of approximately HK$952,121,000 (2016: approximately
HK$690,959,000) were unguaranteed.

The movements of the Group’s bonds payable for the years ended 31
December 2017 and 2016 are as follows:

31. ik (&)

Mtk s (B0

(i)

WA 27 (#1)

WEEZRZ—LET A= —HILE)E
A2 ] AR I R AR 4 A5 4 136,511,0009 00
(=F—N4E : £9498,984,000% 78 ) W A 57 &
18 28 TE SR 1 £9637,0008 70 ( B — N4 ¢
#11,471,00086 55 ) ©

JRE A+ 18 2 48 2 I A 25 £92,242,274,0009 JC
(ZF— N4 £ £92,101,814,0009 7T ) %5 S K
1> e op A 4 F£91,290,153,0009 78 (=&
— N4 £11,410,855,00085 7T ) 2 A 5 AR K
AR A F#9952,121,0008 00 ( ZF —AN4E 4
690,959,000%5 JT ) 7% JEHE {3 o

AR R E T B R F
—ANETZAZ IR EZ BB

Total
S5t
HKS$’000
T#T
Carrying amounts as at 1 January 2016 W BN H— H ZIREE 1,022,384
Net proceeds on date of issuance TR EEAT H B BTk JE 3 1,628,919
Exchange adjustments e 30, 3 (4,552)
Interest paid oA AL (96,833)
Effective interest charged to PR R Z R B (M iEs)
profit or loss (Note 8) 162,035
Repurchase Jif [l (498,984)
Loss on early redemption R i IR A 1,471
Repayment of principle PR A4 (112,626)
Carrying amounts as at 31 December 2016 and RZB-ANET A=K
1 January 2017 R bE—H—HZHRHE 2,101,814
Net proceeds on date of issuance TAEEAT H B I A5 T A 646,747
Exchange adjustments i 30, 3R % 10,918
Interest paid AR B (167,463)
Effective interest charged to PR R Z R B (M EEs)
profit or loss (Note 8) 186,132
Repurchase Jif [el (136,511)
Loss on early redemption R i L R A 637
Repayment of principle TR AR 4 (400,000)
Carrying amounts as at 31 December 2017 RoR—LEFH=E+—H 2B 2,242,274

The effective interest rate of the above bonds payable ranged from
8.14% to 12.71% per annum (2016: 8.56% to 9.75%).

b e A A R A B R AR R R 558.14%
12.71% (ZF — N4 18560 %
9.75% ) ©



F AT B P R TR ] | 201 74F 8t

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A B IR R B

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #E _F—tLE+T_H=+—HIL4EE

32. DEFERRED TAXATION 32. BB
For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated statement of financial BRR G A M BR LR R & > 5 TIEERIE
position, certain deferred tax assets and liabilities have been offset. The GRERABCIKE - LT A B HE HZ
following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances for financial reporting T S T8I 45 0% 43 AT
purposes:
2017 2016
e Sl i 3 ZE AN
HKS$’000 HK$’000
T#xT T#x
Deferred tax liabilities J S I £ - 1,454,322
The following are the major deferred tax balances recognised and the DL 2 O a8 2 o R AE B IE A A B AR A
movements thereon during the current and prior years: B B A S )
Deductible
temporary
differences
Convertible  Revaluation of arising from

Deferred tax (assets)/liabilities: bonds properties LAT provisions Tax losses Total
TR B
ALz
EEi 7
ERBLE (R /B LE Y ¢ ENE W B At
HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$’000 HKS$000
Tt T T T TG
At 1 January 2016 RZZB—AF—H—H 5273 1,534,904 (10,986) (444) 1,528,747
(Credited)/charged to profit or loss WEER GEA),/ M (3,517 (98,366) (19,601) 435 (121,049)
Charged to revaluation reserves YT A Rk 4 9 T bR - 146,413 - - 146,413
Exchange adjustments FE i, 3 8 = (101,389) 1,591 9 (99,789)
At 31 December 2016 and 1 January 2017 REB=AEFZAZT—HR
“F—tHE—A—H 1,756 1,481,562 (28,996) = 1,454,322
(Credited)/charged to profit or loss RERN (FEA) /B 218 (37,218) (4,864) - (41,864)
Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 35) W s I ) (M iE3s) = 17,940 = e 17,940
Recognition of equity component of T T A 5 2 2
convertible bonds 740 - - - 740
Release upon cancellation of convertible bonds 1 #E &1 I 4 I 5 % IR 7 B (823) = = “ (823)
Exchange adjustments FE B, i 8 - 111,585 (2,373) = 109,212
At 31 December 2017 R-ZF—LFE+ZA=1+—H 1,891 1,573,869 (36,233) = 1,539,527
Deferred tax assets: YIE %t B Ve ¥

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused tax losses of
approximately HK$958,970,000 (2016: approximately HK$654,191,000)
available for offset against future profits. Approximately HK$689,211,000
(2016: approximately HK$374,110,000) of these tax losses may be carried
forward indefinitely in Hong Kong and approximately HK$269,759,000
(2016: approximately HK$280,081,000) will expire within 5 years under
other jurisdiction. No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of the
tax losses due to the unpredictability of future profit streams.

PR AREE A REHZBLIEBHELN
958,970,000% JC ( =& — N4 : £1654,191,000
W0 ) AT B 1K 8 AR 2fe w4k A o 3% 5 B JE s 18 40
689,211,000% 76 ( & —7N4F : 374,110,000
WG ) T VS BT PR 4 % £269,759,000 %5
JG (2 — N4 : £1280,081,000% 76 ) A H At
) 9 M I LA P9 Ji B o b I 3 T O R 2 ¥
Il > W AR A AR A0 T s 1 T R R E o
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32. DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued)

33.

Deferred tax assets: (Continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has deductible temporary
difference of approximately HK$11,703,000 (2016: approximately
HK$79,279,000). No deferred tax asset has been recognised in relation to
such deductible temporary difference as it is not probable that taxable profit

will be available against which the deductible temporary differences can be

utilised.

CONVERTIBLE BONDS

Convertible bonds at amortised costs:

The movement of liability component at amortised costs of the convertible

32. MEHEBLIH (%)

S BLRE E « (B)

33. W HR)B AR 2
5B B 1 AN 20 B v g B A 2

T 5 SR - AS 4 [ A5 T 0 e B T IR 2 A A
11,703,000% 78 ( 22— N4 : £179,279,000%
J6) o HRRK AT BB JRE SRR A w1 A A AT 4
JRUBE T IR 25 AR AT R B - WOR A % S T IR
TR0 R 2 R R A T o

e 4t G A B MR Y T S5 RE  BBO  2

bonds are as follows: W :
2017 2015
Convertible Convertible
Bonds Bonds 11 Total
—R—Lp ZR—TAE
CE Y dce3 W 6B A% 27 11 Bk
(Note (a)) (Note (b))
(Ktitc@) (B FE®)
HKS$°000 HKS$’000 HK$°000
Tt T T Tt
Carrying amount as at 1 January 2016 R _F—NE—H—HZ
R THI = 2,234,661 2,234,661
Interest charged (Note 8) B (M EES) - 197,730 197,730
Interest paid [REERIPsS = (176,896) (176,896)
Exchange adjustments e 3, o % - 1,031 1,031
Carrying amount as at ZEANETZHAZH R
31 December 2016 and e i H e Fl o
1 January 2017 W - 2,256,526 2,256,526
Liability components on initial 0k T 8 I 2 B AR 4
recognition 371,171 — RITA L7/
Interest charged (Note 8) B2 (M EES) 21,228 199,595 220,823
Interest paid [REERIPS (12,710) (177,578) (190,288)
Cancellation of convertible bonds ERmE e (379,689) = (379,689)
Exchange adjustments [T 52, it 2 = 18,116 18,116

Carrying amount as at

R bk — HESleH

2,296,659

2,296,659
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33. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued)

Convertible bonds at amortised costs: (Continued)

Notes:

(a)

(b)

On 6 April 2017, the Company, as issuer, entered into a placing agreement
with China Huarong Macau (HK) Investment Holdings Limited (“China
Huarong™), as subscriber, pursuant to which the subscriber subscribed
unlisted convertible bonds with a principal amount of HK$390,000,000
(2017 Convertible Bonds”) issued by the Company on 18 April 2017.
The 2017 Convertible Bonds are secured, guaranteed, bear an 6.5%
interest per annum and have a term of 3 years.

The 2017 Convertible Bonds are convertible at the option of the holder
into ordinary shares of the Company on or before maturity at a conversion
price of HK$0.946 per share (subject to anti-dilutive adjustment).

The conversion price was further adjusted to HK$0.867 per share upon
rights issue on 28 August 2017.

The Company has the right to early redeem the 2017 Convertible Bonds
at the redemption amount before maturity. If the conversion right is not
exercised by the holder, the 2017 Convertible Bonds not converted will be
redeemed on maturity at 100% of their principal amount.

China Huarong agreed on 22 December 2017 to unconditionally
and irrevocably waive their conversion rights by cancellation of the
2017 Convertible Bonds. After such cancellation, all the conversion
rights attaching to the 2017 Convertible Bonds were irrevocably and
unconditionally waived and cancelled. In return for the cancellation,
the Company entered into a loan agreement with China Huarong with a
principal amount of HK$390,000,000, which are secured, guaranteed,
bears an interest of 6.5% per annum and mature on 18 April 2020.
The Group has recognised a loss of approximately HK$10,311,000 on
cancellation of the convertible bonds to consolidated profit or loss.

On 3 July 2015, the Company, as issuer, entered into a placing agreement
with China Minsheng Banking Corp., Ltd. Hong Kong Branch (“China
Minsheng”), as lead manager, pursuant to which the Company has
conditionally agreed to issue, and China Minsheng has conditionally
agreed to use its best efforts to procure other investors to subscribe for the
convertible bonds(*2015 Convertible Bonds II”) in the principal amount
of up to USD200,000,000 (or up to USD300,000,000 if the option is
exercised) at the initial conversion price of HK$1.39 per share. The 2015
Convertible Bonds II are secured, bear an 8% interest per annum and have
a term of 3 years.

33. wRJBefE 2 (48)

fig?ﬁ&iﬁﬂﬁ&%ﬂiﬁﬂ%ﬁ# :

(@) RZF—HLENANH KAT (BB
N) B R () BE AR
w) (Mg EEgh]) (M2 Jy ) BT e 5 o
o B BT ERMAA TN Rt
AE Y H )\ H 4T YA 31 45390,000,0009
JCFE B AR AR S ([ — LR )
B F]) o ZF — LA B 5 5 B A i
A AR AT R A56.5% e AR B =4 o

SRR AR SR RN AT R R B
W1 H g 1 DA SR B 49 1820.9463 78 (AT AR
R ) A AR AR R AR A R M

Rt )\A )\ H AT - 5
e — 25 % 2= 4 0.867H I -

AR ) A RE RS B0 i DA HE Il kA R i S e
TR LA AR SR o MR AR ARAT
SRR R ez R L AR HUR A
T 30 391 I 42 L AR 4 %5100 9% W 7T o

b RN —F—LEF A+ ZHR
BB RE B R — LA W A o AR A
TS F [ R e L A8 JRE A o A BB AR > —
F— A T B A 5 M A BT R RE T
TR AT 485 VT e SR A% 1 1l 6 90 3 5 40 o AR s Y
P [e 3 > A 2 ] B v [ 3 gk BT S AR & B
390,000,00037C ~ A HGH ~ IR ~ FAFFI %R
6.5%%T B R —F ZRAEM H )\ H B
P Bk Tt vk o A 4 I LR o 0 T B S
f B TR A5 WE R 4H 49 10,3 11,0009 G ©

b)) MNoF-HELA=ZHARAR (AT
) B g R A SRAT e A BR A R B W 44T
(e A ]) (4B % 2 S AN ) BT L L
Bk B R AT BRI R B BT &
w5 R A A A I 0 5 T RE AR o At
G 2 R AR 4 5% £6200,000,00035 78 (240
AT B A - T B4 B % 8% £2300,000,00038
JG ) 1 BT 0 B £ S ([ % — 48 A 4 e A8
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BEF-LETZAZ - HILEE

33. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued)

Convertible bonds at amortised costs: (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(b)

(Continued)

The number of shares to be issued upon exercise of the conversion right
attaching to 2015 Convertible Bonds II will be determined by translating
the principal amount of 2015 Convertible Bonds II (with the agreed
exchange rate of USD1 = HK$7.755) into Hong Kong dollars and dividing
at the conversion price.

On 14 August 2015, the Company and China Minsheng entered into a
supplemental letter to amend and supplement the terms of the placing
agreement pursuant to which it was agreed that, among others, the initial
conversion price under the terms and conditions of the 2015 Convertible
Bonds II would be amended from HK$1.39 per share to HK$1.26 per
share subject to and in accordance with the terms and conditions thereof.

As at 31 December 2015, the Company completed the issuance of the
2015 Convertible Bonds II with an aggregate amount of USD285,000,000
dividing into four series on 16 July 2015 (referring as “Series 17), 21
August 2015 (referring as “Series 27), 2 September 2015 (referring as
“Series 3”) and 9 September 2015 (referring as “Series 4”) respectively, to
several individual investors and financial institutes in Hong Kong and the
PRC.

The conversion price was further adjusted to HK$1.155 per share upon
rights issue on 28 August 2017.

2017 Convertible Bonds and 2015 Convertible Bonds II contained two

components, liability (together with embedded derivative for early

redemption option by the Company which is closely related to the host debt)

and equity elements. The equity elements are presented in equity under the

heading of “convertible bonds equity reserve”. The effective interest rate of

the liability component for 2017 Convertible Bonds is 8.37% per annum,
2015 Convertible Bonds II including Series 1 to 4 are ranged from 8.85% to

9.32% per annum at the date of initial recognition respectively.

33. wRJBefE 2 (48)

% B
(%)

Wi

(b)

4 A B Y g T B B O

(B0
(%)

T TR AT B AR IR LU M B R AT
BEAR B AT I B4 B F O SR R T4
T 4B I T AR G A 2 W T (Rl P SR A
H R 1RI0 57,7559 70 ) W Wk DL St AR i
Eo

W —FAENH I E A ] B R
A T LA T AR RS T BN TR B R 2
o AR (P aif) fig—f—H
AT B R R L Ak B k1 =2 9 4 3 e A
3165 B LR ok M A 1 e 4 B 1 39 oA T B
1268 T

R RAE SR RAT R
BEATHAHE £5285,000,000K 6 2 T — AW
BUBBSIL - 43 DU K 1 750 B o 5 R LA
BEVE# B HRBEHE BT - 47 F 91530 2 —
FRAELATAR (TFA1]))  ~% 1%
EAR R (TFFR)) % Tiseh
HoH (TR13)) R =% HE AL
(TR5a]) -

R ZZ L )\A )\ H AT B4R - 5
el — BB B 1. 155% 0 -

ZE - LEMBRBRERR ZF TR
AR5 LU 435 7 0 40 > B (O W) S 5 5 %
HH B 2 A 2 ] A 288 9 92 i 0B 1 2 ik A SRR A

TH)

Be HE 25 ¥ 4y o R 25 K 2 S [T B4R

WEZS A ) ST ZHEZR N 241 o RHN 4R HERR H
B> ZF— LA W R I A A BB
FIRE8.37% > Jh —F— FLAF A AR ST (B
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33. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued) 33. w2 (&)
Convertible bonds at amortised costs: (Continued) T B 83 A 0 B oy Y A O
(%)
The movement of equity component of the convertible bonds is as follows: B B AR R RE AR AR A A B F -
2017 2015
Convertible Convertible
Bonds Bonds II Total
i L 3 ZR—HAE
4B 0 7 LE Y 2p0l Bt
HK$’000 HK$°000 HKS$’000
T#T T# T#
Carrying amount as at 1 January 2016, HoR—ANE—H—H-
31 December 2016 and 1 January 2017 TR AN
TZHAZT—HE R
R —bE-RZ
HR i A - 35,970 35,970
Equity component on initial recognition U e 2 IR 2 R 2 4 4,484 - 4,484
Deferred tax liability on recognition of TRV 4 IR B S RE AR R 4 2
equity component of convertible bonds R AERLIE £ (740) - (740)
Cancellation of convertible bonds GREDE e (3,744) - (3,744)
Carrying amount as at gt S R
31 December 2017 FEAEt— B 2R - 35,970 35970
4 — £ it 5.:; % " \
L1 . % ?i' &= { i
A ' i'ra' t
A S | Y T
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33.

CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued)

Convertible bonds designated at fair value through

33. W BAE % (%)

0 5€ 35 2 Pt A 4 8 2 ) 4 B A

profit or loss: %
2015 Convertible
Bonds I
R4
B ST
HK$’000
T#x
FAIR VALUE AT
At 1 January 2016 W_F—ANFE—H—H 257,900
Fair value change for the year AR TSR ) (12,104)
At 31 December 2016 and 1 January 2017 W ANFETZHA=ZT—HR
v Y I 245,796
Cancellation of convertible bonds during the year AR PN T 8 T 4B i (170,835)
Fair value change for the year LS PASR ] 6,759
At 31 December 2017 AL+ _H=+—H 81,720
2017 2016
—®—-LA R A
HK$°000 HK$’000
T AR
Fair value change on 2015 Convertible Bonds I~ #F A $H %% 2 % — F 4 Al R fF F7 1
revaluation included in profit or loss BT A T T) (12,104)
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33. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued)

Convertible bonds designated at fair value through
profit or loss: (Continued)

Note:

On 17 June 2015, the Company issued the exchangeable and convertible bonds
(*2015 Convertible Bonds I"’) in principal amount of HK$240,740,000 in favour
of BFT Acquisition Guernsey L.P. (“BFT”) as consideration in relation to the
acquisition of 99.99% equity interests in Nice Race Management Limited and
its subsidiaries (the “Nice Race Group”). The 2015 Convertible bonds I are
unsecured, non-interest bearing and have a term of 3 years.

BFT are entitled to (i) convert all or part of the 2015 Convertible Bonds I into
ordinary shares of the Company from the thirtieth month of the date of issuance
to maturity or upon the consummation of a fundamental corporate transaction
during the term of the 2015 Convertible Bonds I at a conversion price of HK$1.55
per share or (ii) exchange all or part of the 2015 Convertible Bonds I into a
maximum of 14,250,095,000 ordinary shares of the Nice Race Group from the
thirtieth month of the date of issuance to maturity or upon the consummation
of a fundamental corporate transaction during the term of the 2015 Convertible
Bonds I. If the conversion rights entitled are not exercised by the holder, the
2015 Convertible Bonds I not converted will be redeemed by the Company at its
principal amount on the maturity date.

On 3 July 2015, the initial conversion price of HK$1.55 per share of the 2015
Convertible Bonds I has been adjusted to HK$1.39 per share upon the entering
into the placing agreement of convertible bonds due 2018 as described in the
2015 Convertible Bonds II. On 14 August 2015, the conversion price was further
adjusted to HK$1.26 per share upon the entering into a supplemental letter to
the placing agreement of convertible bonds as described in the 2015 Convertible
Bonds II.

The conversion price was further adjusted to HK$0.95 per share upon the
issuance of shares on 21 June 2016 pursuant to the placing agreement dated 13
June 2016. The conversion price was further adjusted to HK$0.88 per share upon
the issuance of shares on 7 July 2016 pursuant to the subscription agreement
dated 29 June 2016. The conversion price was further adjusted to HK$0.873 per
share upon the issuance of shares on 22 December 2016 pursuant to the placing
agreement dated 14 December 2016. The conversion price was further adjusted to
HK$0.80 per share upon the issuance of shares on 17 May 2017 pursuant to the
placing agreement dated 4 May 2017. The conversion price was further adjusted
to HK$0.40 per share upon rights issue on 28 August 2017.

2015 Convertible Bonds I contain host debt liability components, together
with embedded derivative for converting ordinary shares of the Nice Race
Group which is not closely related to the host debt. The Group has irrevocably
designated the liability components of the 2015 Convertible Bonds I as financial
liabilities measured at fair value through profit or loss.

33. wRJBefE 2 (48)

»

giﬁ%?ﬁ%ﬂiﬁﬁzﬁﬁﬁﬂﬂﬁ

Wi

BoEFLENA T LEHAAFUBFT
Acquisition Guernsey L.P. ([BFT J) % % #& A\ # 17
K 4 1 25240,740,0009 7€ 2 W 2 # T ik i 57
(T=2— WA RAEIRT]) > VB2 WU Nice Race
Management Limited &% 3 Fff 8§ 22 ®] ([ Nice Race#
4 1)99.99% B HE 2 A BRARAT © — 2 — 4R 7] e i
I5 LA SEHEAT ~ S0 8 B A )y =4 o

BFTH HEG)H 47 H 30 H £8 sk =%
— A T e £ A U P R R A 2 38 5 58 AR DA
SRR IR 559 IO AR B 4 R — AR T
JBE 155 5 15 48 s AR 2 1 35 8 I 5 (i) R 84T H R 2K 30
i A ZFW B 8 T — T4 R S 00 R 2
B3R 5 SE BRI R B R — TLAE W
TR 5 122 e s 15 25 14,250,095,000)%% Nice Race [H]
B o A — FLAR TR R A I SR AT
i 7 252 S MR - R S0 M 2 3% A R0 AR A | R B
191 I e A 4 % ] o

HEF-HACAZH S R EF )R Z
T 6 A O L R T AR > R — AR AT HRUB R R T
Z U AR R B 1.5 59 0 B A B 2 1 e 1. 393 00
(RN = — AR TR LR L ) =% — T
VA DY H > AT 32T A 25 10 Bl il S
BAR > A I S B — 25 T B s B I 1 26350 (B
W= TR AT RURAR IR I A ) -

MN-F—=ANEANAZ T —HRBHH L Z-ZF—A
HEXNHAT=H Z IR AT AR - S —
B R0 - R B —ANELH LAR
BHAE R NENH ZTIUH 2 R0 5
AT AR A% > S0 B 0 3 — 3 3 4 28 19 130,889 G o
ZE-ANFETASHHMREBE AR = FE A
T H U H Z B R AT R 1% o SR E
— AR G0.873W It RF—LERA L
HMR 8 H R —F— L4 H U H 2 Bl & 1k
A7 B 1% > o B 1 o — 2 34 3 25 49 1508 0% It © R
TR )H )\ B AT BB > S E i
— 25 2 9 0. 40900 >

TR — AR R B R T L T R A
(0 [ B = 5 ol 4 D) Bl o 2 S84 Nice Racedf
VB S e 2 R AT A TR ) o AR [ A T i el
HURAE % TLAF AT RBAR SR TZ BRI A S 450
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33. wRJBefE 2 (48)

33. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued)

Convertible bonds designated at fair value through
profit or loss: (Continued)

Note: (Continued)

As announced by the Company on 21 December 2017, the Company and BFT
have agreed to reduce the BFT consideration to HK$72,500,000 and therefore
the principal amount of the 2015 Convertible Bonds I was reduced from
HK$240,740,000 to HK$72,500,000.

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, BFT converted the outstanding
principal amount of HK$72,500,000 and the Company issued 181,250,000
ordinary shares of the Company at the price of HK$0.40 per share.

34. PROVISIONS

%i?ﬁ&;?fﬁﬁkiﬁ%ﬁiﬂiﬁﬂ%ﬁ

»

Mt (81)

MAAF R ZF—LETZH=+—H A
A W) BLBFT & 1 52 1 BFTAR 8 14 1% 272,500,000
W0 > BB b = — AR T B R R T AR A R
240,740,000% 7G &K 2£72,500,000% JG

I A R - BET O AR A 12 4K 4:%172,500,000
TG A /A W] B8 17181,250,000/8 AR 2 7] 3 8 Ji% -
E A% B 19 120,409 T

34. B

Litigation

Whik

HKS$°000

T#T

At 1 January 2016 R_F—ANFE—H—H 89,433
Over-provision for previous year bR R (30,782)
Exchange adjustments R 53, it % (4,409)

At 31 December 2016 and 1 January 2017 RR-ANEZAZ—ER

ZR—bFE-HA—H 54,242

Provision for the year AR N B A 9,264

Exchange adjustments e 32, 5% % 4,667
Disposal of subsidiaries 5 g A =) (68,173)

At 31 December 2017

RE-F—-t#+ZH=+—H -

The Group’s subsidiaries are subject to a variety of lawsuits and claims in the
ordinary course of its business. As at 31 December 2016, there were several
claims filed against the Group’s subsidiaries contesting breaches of contract
terms and non-payment of existing obligations. Management has reviewed
the circumstances and estimated that the amount of probable outflow related
to these claims should not exceed approximately HK$54,242,000. During
the year ended 31 December 2016, certain claims have been finalised and a
reversal of approximately HK$30,782,000 have been recognised in the profit
or loss. At each reporting date the directors have assessed the provisions for
litigation and claims and concluded that the provisions and disclosures are
adequate.

The amount had been released upon the disposal of subsidiaries during the
year ended 31 December 2017.

PN U A S N E R T SRR 3
BRRE - R ZE—ANETZH=ZF—H &
45 1B P IS o ) T 22 St e B R A Ak
BAREMN B BEEZRY - P CFEG R
W st AR RETRESNB &R EA B
M #154,242,000 0 c R EZF—ANEFZ
A=Z+—HIEE - HTREC KL R E
2 WE 72 £130,782,00095 JT 1Y [ 4 o > 2 it 45 H
B> R AR MR A 2 8 4 -
B R RHEELL -

RBEZ_F—CFE A=+ HiLE g
% 4 LR B O O ) AR A
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35. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

For the year ended 31 December 2017:

Acquisition of Duoliwei Group

On 20 January 2017, the Group had completed the acquisition of 75%
equity interests in ¥R I 17 2 F) f5: 4% ¥ 3% g A5 PR A ¥ and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Duoliwei Group”). The Duoliwei Group
is principally engaged in property development in Laoshan, Qingdao. The
consideration is satisfied by a cash consideration of RMB450,000,000
(equivalent to approximately to HK$507,222,000).

35. WU BH B 2 Wl

BRE_F—LE T+ HA=Z+—HIL
A

Ve EZII e

W —tE—HZ+H - RKEHE T BHK
il VR I T 2o A e R A R A ) R Y R
AR (FHMI A EEE]) Z75%R 0 - 2 )
fEEEEREFEBLREESRE -RH
DL & R N R H450,000,0007C (8 7 £
507,222,0009 75 ) 32 £t

Consideration
transferred
[BACE AW =i
HK$’000
T#T

Cash paid oA Bl

Acquisition-related costs amounting to approximately HK$60,000 have been
excluded from the consideration transferred and have been recognised as an
expense for the period since the date of acquisition to 31 December 2017,
within the “administrative expenses” line item in the consolidated statement

of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

Wi it AH B B A £960,0003 G 3 4 5O\ B G
RE- AR E—F L4+
S H R S A 1R AR R i 2 i 2% R
(AT BB X | JE B b e s 2 B 3 o
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35. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)  35. Wik b )& 2 & (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2017: (Continued) BE_F-LFE+-H=Z+—HIE
SRR (B)
Acquisition of Duoliwei Group (Continued) W % A ik 4 ()
Assets and liabilities recognised at the date of acquisition are as follows: PR H I CHRZ G XAEmT:
Fair Value
VA
HK$’000
T#1L
Property, plant and equipment LIE Y Y & ]
Properties under development B
Prepayment, deposits and other receivables TR K ~ 4 4 T JH A B Wk I
Cash and bank balances Bl & B SRAT i
Accrued liabilities and other payables JRE A B A A 5K T
Deferred tax liabilities 9 S B I £ A
Net assets & e
Gain on bargain purchase on acquisition of WO 25 ) Ak 4 P 2 e A R O R 2
the Duoliwei Group:
Net assets acquired T W ¥ e
Less: non-controlling interests s Ik B HE 2%

Less: consideration transferred

W CE R AR
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35. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)  35. W B & 2 5 (%)
For the year ended 31 December 2017: (Continued) BE -ttt _H=1+—HIk
AERE: (8

Acquisition of Duoliwei Group (Continued) Wi % AU 5 1 (45)
The directors believe the acquisition of the Duoliwei Group would further WA Ty > WO 2 P A 4 T 0 — 2B 4R T AR 4
enhance the Group’s income and strengthen the Group’s market position. VR WAL N T i e A 4 T Y i 345 b A o
The gain on bargain purchase arise since the time lag between the negotiation ok 1 WAL T WAL 2 7 R T T T S A AR % AR ik B
of the agreed price and terms and the completion contributed by the capital 56 B T I IR T 2 o TR TR - b i A A B 4 T
appreciation of the value of land and the addition to the cost of construction- 25 I {8 42 [ A g TR AR 1 B o g A o
in-progress to the Duoliwei Group.

HK$°000

T#x

Net cash outflow on acquisition of W 25 ) 4 408 1 2 B 4 0 o

the Duoliwei Group:
Cash consideration paid
Less: cash and bank balances acquired

O B AR
Tk O B 4 B SRAT A B

The Duoliwei Group had not contributed to the Group’s revenue and a
loss for the period was recorded between the date of acquisition and 31
December 2017 of approximately HK$3,545,000.

Had the acquisition been completed on 1 January 2017, total Group’s
revenue for the year ended 31 December 2017 would have been
approximately HK$2,193,310,000 and profit for the year would have
been approximately HK$525,447,000. The pro forma information is for
illustrative purposes only and is not necessarily an indication of revenue and
results of operations of the Group that actually would have been achieved
had the acquisition been completed on 1 January 2017, nor is it intended to

be a projection of future results.

On 5 September 2017, the Group has agreed to acquire 25% of the
entire issued equity interest of the Duoliwei Group from the non-
controlling shareholder of the Duoliwei Group at a cash consideration
of RMB 150,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$167,119,000).
Subsequent to this acquisition, the Duoliwei Group has become a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Group. This acquisition was completed on the same
date.

e MeEE 2 —-LE+-H=+—H
T T > 2o ) 1 445 [0 0 40 2 A 445 9 R MG AL
A A i 18 £93,545,0009 76 ©

B FECOR - —LHE—H—HEH
HWAHEMEE -2 -E4E+A=+—H01
AR JBE 2 AN BABES 40 % 2,193,310,000% 76 B 4F
B i ] AR K0 %5.525,447,000 85 TC © M %5 B R
BT WA RO o AR o I e A 5 L AR s e 2
HOR —F—LtFE—H—HERZIBERTHE
B 815 2 WA T 2848 S 4 IR N HBRAE By R AR 3
BT -

WoZF—LHENLHALH - REERZ
Bl &R E AR %150,000,0007G (FH 5 4
167,119,000%5 7T ) ] 2 1) {45 8] 3k 42 5 JBe 3 e
itk 22 ) (5 45 T 4 0 B AT R RE 25 % o I % IR
W = TE A% > 2o I 45 4 T T i 2 A 5 [E 1Y 4
JE o ] o % WO < TR R H 58 B o
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36. ACQUISITION OF ASSETS THROUGH 36. 7 % W Ok Y D 2 il WA R e
ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES
For the year ended 31 December 2017: B2 -t4¥E+-H=1+—HIL
AERE -
Acquisition of Excel Access Group Limited and its B Excel Access Group Limited ¢
subsidiaries (the “Excel Access Group”) bt} )& 2 7] ([Excel AccessE Ml 1)
On 13 December 2017, the Group completed the acquisition of 99.01% WoZZ—tEFTZA+T=H REEER A —
equity interests in the Excel Access Group from a connected person. In the 2 B N W Excel Access®E [911999.01%J8
opinion of the directors, the acquisition did not constitute an acquisition RE o 36 3050y - 5% WO BT B 30 A A B e i S
of business in substance. The acquisition was considered as acquisition 5 o 5% W e A AT 2 728 A WA D R i 2 ) WO
of assets through acquisition of subsidiaries. The Excel Access Group is JE o Excel Access® Ml 32 22 it Jb nU 4t 35 4 2 %
principally engaged in property development in Beijing. The consideration is J 75 o B DAB & AR £7300,000,0009 55 32
satisfied by a cash consideration of approximately HK$300,000,000. o
Assets acquired and liabilities recognised at the date of acquisition are as WO H Y 2 O E R AT
follows:
HK$’000
T#T
Property, plant and equipment LAY & ]
Properties under development for sale B a g
Prepayments and other receivables LA 3 T e H Al 8 Ik S
Cash and bank balances Bl & BSRAT B i
Trade and other payables JRE A B2 5 MR mak e At B o) 3K T
Bank borrowings AT K
Net assets & e
Satisfied by cash VLB 4 3 A
HK$’000
T#T
Net cash outflow on acquisition of BUWE Excel Access Bl 2 B 4 3 h 3%
the Excel Access Group:
Cash consideration paid oA Bl AR

Less: cash and cash equivalent balances acquired I TN B 4 R B 4 ST A R
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37. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES 37. HEWB AW

For the year ended 31 December 2017:

On 22 December 2017, the Group entered into a shares subscription
agreement with an independent third party to dispose of the Group’s entire
equity interest in Nice Race Management Limited and its subsidiaries
(the “Nice Race Group”) for a cash consideration of approximately
HK$280,000,000 which is payable by 30 April 2018. Nice Race Group is
principally engaged in the operation of high-end restaurant chain under
the brand of “Golden Jaguar (48 %) ” in the PRC. The disposal of

subsidiaries was completed on 28 December 2017.

BE-F-Lt4¥#+T2A=1T—HIE
AR

M_B—tHE T AT ZH  REEER—F
3758 = Ty R L B Ay R T o b AR AR
Nice Race Management Limited 5 & Fff J& 2 ]
(I'Nice Raceff 4 1) iy 2 #8 B - Bl A A
#5280,000,000%7C » ZH# % — \EMH =+
H i 32 ff o Nice Race$ M 42 B 1¥ = &8 4% vpr ]
[ SR %Y 1 i R ey i 0 O 8 R o 3%ty 5 DB 0 )
FHOR-ZZF-EETZHZFNA R

Analysis of assets and liabilities over which control was lost: O 78 2 o o i 2 A B 4 0 0 A
HK$’000
F#L
Goodwill [
Other intangible assets oAb TR &
Property, plant and equipment LE A& ]
Long-term rental deposits R EES
Inventories ety
Trade and other receivables R Wi B2 5 MR sk e L A ik T
Cash and bank balances B4 B SRAT A5
Trade and other payables JRE A B 0 R sk At JE A sk S
Current tax liabilities B 491 6 2 £
Deferred income IEHE WL A
Long-term payables 1% 301 A k0|
Release of translation reserve R R S0
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries H B B B o W 2 Wt
Satisfied by: 2L 5 AT
Cash consideration received and receivable O % E W B 4 AR
Net cash outflow on disposal of subsidiaries: 5 B 2 il 2 B 4 oy o 3
Cash consideration received [BRE TR ]

Uk ;O B R B S U A

Less: cash and cash equivalent balances disposed

4 S
4/5ﬁ< 3 il e
Ao =
i Yttt 1 £
LY =
& e 1 \
L tt h LEe. \QL)
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37. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2016:

The Group entered into a memorandum of understanding on 12 December
2016 regarding disposal of a subsidiary, Netspac Investments Limited
(“Netspac”). On 23 December 2016, the Company entered into a shares
subscription agreement with an independent third party to dispose of
the Group’s entire equity interest in Netspac for a cash consideration of
HK$350,000,000. Netspac is an investment holding company incorporated
in the British Virgin Islands with limited liability. It owns 26% equity
interests in a property development project in Beijing City, the PRC. The

disposal of a subsidiary was completed on the same date.

i EHE A W (8)

BREZF-AHLTA=ZT—HIE
A

AEEPRF-ANETA T HREE
— [ B} J&§ 2 W] Netspac Investments Limited
(T'Netspac | ) &1 37 i ffe ff 005 8% o i ] — N 4R
ToAZTEHARAFR RSB B =Ty
WL Ay i T i > DA B4 0 45350,000,000
JC H 8 AR 4 [ Netspac Z 4= B o Netspac
T3 € B8 i L W S A A O 2 B e IR R
AT o FBEAT v L A T — 1 57 3 B 7 EH H
Z26% B o 3% B B R A T S 0H 2 R H 58
B o

Analysis of assets and liabilities over which control was lost: L9 2 e ) W 2 e % A 40 A -
HK$°000
Tt
Interest in an associate A — TR % A B Z 2 84,197
Other payable At E A K (20)
84,177
Release of translation reserve WA N SOk S 11,677
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary H A — ] B B 2 W) =2 WA 2 254,146
350,000
Satisfied by: BT R A
Cash consideration received and receivable e % HE W B 4 AR A 350,000
Net cash inflow on disposal of a subsidiary: Hh A — [ B 2 W) 2 Bl A i N A
Cash consideration received OB &R 115,000
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38. OPERATING LEASES
The Group as lessor

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had following commitments for
the future minimum lease income under non-cancellable operating leases:

Within one year —4E R
In the second to fifth years inclusive

Over five years

A T4

BB (BIEERWA)

38. MEBRE
AR A M ALA
T I » AR S AR B8R TS A AL B
o A I3 IS AL 5 AL A W A R A A
2017 2016
L TR N
HK$’000 HK$°000
T T C
5,300
43,349
63,413
112,062

The Group leases its investment properties under operating lease. The leases
run for an initial period of 3 to 15 years in combination of fixed rentals and
contingent rentals. Certain of these leases include contingent rentals which
are determined based on percentages of sales when incurred.

The Group as lessee
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had commitments for future

minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases which fall
due as follows:

AL EMTHHELREYE - HEE
1 [ 2 FiL 4 B SR 4 > W0 25 B I3 A1 54 o
AR AR O S T 4
R ZBRRL A o

A SR 1 2y AR AL

TP 3 5 R - A 8 AR 4 A T A0 L B 2
R Z AR AR S AR B K S B R LA

Within one year —4EN
In the second to fifth years inclusive

Over five years

I AR

BoERBLA (BIEERWE)

2017 2016
=L ZRAE
HK$°000 HK$°000
T#x FTHIT
80,026

265,927

197,482

543,435

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Group for certain
offices premises and retail shops. Leases are negotiated for periods arranging
from 3 months to 20 years (2016: 3 to 20 years) with fixed rentals.

AL A BRI A A R A B T A B
Be 5 T i B MR A AL < o L O O s T S AL
EFMAEMAZTE(ZF AT =
FEZ )
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39. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

39. BRI

2017 2016
Bt 2 TR R
HK$’000 HK$’000
T#L RRC
Capital expenditure AP %
— contracted but not provided for (Note (i) — CRTRMER B (M7t ) 1,789,047
— capital injection (Note (ii)) —1&E (M FEdi)) 336,538
2,125,585
The above commitments include mainly: A R A R A
(i) the construction related costs on development of the Group’s property, () BRALEDE BB KEHE RED
plant and equipment, investment properties, and properties for sale in 3 v (o B o 3 0 R TR R SE B 3 -
the PRC.
(i) commitment to contribute to the registered capital of the subsidiaries (i) R A B v IR A 2 W) O 8 A ) I R
and associates of the Group in the PRC. 11 3 A H A AR A
40. SHARE OPTION SCHEME 40. i JBe i it )
Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at the annual general meeting of WER _F—-=ZH£AH=+—HRITZ KL
the Company held on 31 May 2013, the Company adopted the share option ARREERE LERE —FHEEREE
scheme (“Share Option Scheme”). The major terms of the Share Option AR 2 ) TR A0 IR R (T R MR ) o
Scheme are summarised as follows: i e RE it ) 2 B BRI R
(a)  The purpose was to provide incentives to eligible participants as (a) B W% AR R 2 B SR AL SR AR 2 K
incentives or rewards for their contributions to the Group. T A A ] A H K P 5% Il g o
(b)  The participants included any employee, whether full time or part (b) ZBHEZAFHARAFEMREE Rk 2
time, director of the Company, consultant, adviser or agent of any W sl e ) ~ 3 AREE AL R B A
member of the Group, subsidiary or any invested entity. G PACE X RUE'S iy P ]

il N SARELA o
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40. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

(c)  The maximum number of shares in respect of which options might
be granted under the Share Option Scheme must not exceed 10% of
the issued share capital of the Company as at the date of approval
of the Share Option Scheme and such limit might be refreshed
by shareholders in general meeting. However, the total maximum
number of shares which might be issued upon exercise of all
outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under the Share
Option Scheme and any other share option scheme must not exceed

30% of the shares in issue from time to time.

(d)  The maximum number of shares in respect of which options might
be granted to a participant, when aggregated with shares issued and
issuable (including exercised and outstanding options and the options
cancelled) under any option granted to the same participant under the
Share Option Scheme or any other share option scheme within any 12
month period, must not exceed 1% of the shares in issue from time to

time.

(e)  There was no requirement for a grantee to hold the option for a certain
period before exercising the option save as determined by the board of

directors and provided in the offer of grant of option.

(f)  The exercise period should be any period fixed by the board of
directors upon grant of the option but in any event the option period
should not go beyond 10 years from the date of offer for grant.

(g)  The acceptance of an option, if accepted, must be made within 21
days from the date of grant with a non-refundable payment of HK$1
from the grantee to the Company.

(h)  The exercise price of an option must be the highest of:

(i)  the closing price of the shares on the date of grant which day

must be a trading day;

(ii)  the average closing price of the shares for the 5 trading days

immediately preceding the date of grant; and
(iii)  the nominal value of the share.

(i)  The life of the Share Option Scheme is effective for 10 years from the
date of adoption until 30 May 2023.

40. i JBe it 2 (4)

(©)

(@

(e)

®

®

()

@

L B2 AR T A T A 2 R K
5 v JBe A B B R A A2 )R A
JBeRE T E H Z BB TR Z 10% » T %
R T e SRR I B SRR o AR
L % D T ) T A Aoy LA SR R T B
52 1 19 R AT 08 B A AT 08 2 BT A B Rt
REF AT W T B8 4T 2 e Je 15 A B > A
A T IR T AT IR A Z2.30% ©

TAEAT AR P9 AR B A )
] At i B B it B4R T IR 2 5L E 2
FEATIE R REIH T Z BT R W P RITZ
JRpr B H (R CATHE B W ARAT B M E ik
B Z I ) S SR BN > R 4 2 L ]
1% 2 G PR T 95 e 2 B i Ay i B A
BB T BT Z 1% ©

W3R o e I 4 O R A R O >
S B R S SIS AL A R A2 N I A
AR ZE 45 A T R A — B ]

A5 A5 39 FRS ZE 2 B S A 2 L B i
R Z AT AT 39T 1] > MEFMEAT G LT - i A A
SO PR A28 Ehr 952 Hh 240 H e G -4 o
R N\ Ai £ 70 i Je A > b ZECY 42 1 I S0
f s e E NN NN B o B Ry
I T IR o

Vil I M 2 AT B AR ZEU % R B B A

() REHAM(BERZSH)BRAS
Z Wi e 5

(i) BB H YT 822 5 H ey
Z PR R

(i) A i

S FC R ) b R AN SR A A
HER=ZF#HH=1H-
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40. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued) 40. YR BE T (49)

The following table discloses movements of the share options granted under
the Share Option Scheme during the years ended 31 December 2017 and
2016:

As at 31 December 2017:

T A 0 L R R A R 5 e A A
B2oE-LERZE-ANETFZAZT—H

b4 J5E B S ) -

woE -t A=+ —H:

Adjusted Outstandingasat ~ Granted during ~ Exercised during ~ Lapsed/cancelled ~ Outstanding as at
Grantee Date of grant exercise price Exercise periods 1 January 2017 the year theyear  during the year 31 December 2017
RE%-L REB-Lk
—A-=H =B
KB #hnH HWMEGER RN H AL AR BN AR/ H AL
Share Option Scheme:
Tt it 3
Executive Director
ks
Mr. Meng Cai 10 May 2016 1.022 10 May 2018 to 9 May 2021 50,000,000 - - (50,000,000 -
Fepitd “E-AELATH ZF-NELATHE
ZRZELALH
Total 50,000,000 - - (50,000,000 -
it

[ P o . T

T
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40. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued) 40.

As at 31 December 2016:

Job JBe At (480)

RER-AEFZA=Z+—H:

Adjusted Outstanding as at Granted during ~ Exercised during ~ Lapsed/cancelled  Outstanding as at
Grantee Date of grant exercise price Exercise periods 1 January 2016 the year the year during the year 31 December 2016
REF-AKE REE-AKE
~f-n L3V VA o S|
REA R0 EWBHE N HALTB AR AR k4 HALTHE
Share Option Scheme:
TR
Executive Directors and
Chief Executive Officer
kSRR R
Mr. Leung Wing Cheong Eric 26May 2014 0.63 26 May 2016 to 30 May 2023 129,138,840 - - (129,138,840 -
RkakE CR-MELA AN CRRERA AR
CRCERLASTH
8 June 2015 159 8 June 2015 to 30 May 2023 137,788,840 - - (137,788.840)" -
ZE-RERAAR “E-RERANRE
CRCERLASTH
Mr. Meng Cai 10 May 2016 1022 10 May 2018 to 9 May 2021 - 50,000,000 - - 50,000,000
Fvpitd “R-RERATH “R-NELATRE
CRERAAH
Employee 29 September 2014 1264 1 October 2016 to 98,500,000 - - (98,500,000 -
30 September 2019
i “R-WELAZTAR CR-REFA-NE
ZEMERAZER
16 March 2015 137 17 March 2017 to 16 March 2020 40,000,000 - - (40,000,000)" -
“R-REZATRE ZF-tESATEEE
CRIREZAAN
6 April 2016 1078 6 April 2018 to 5 April 2021 - 30,000,000 - (30,000,000)" -
ZRNERARH “R-\ENAARE
“RTENALH
7 June 2016 1.06 7 June 2018 to 6 June 2021 4 40,000,000 = (40,000,000)" =
“ER-REAALH “R-NEAREHE
“RTERARE
Total 405427680 120,000,000 - (475427,680) 50,000,000
it

% The 50,000,000 (2016: 475,427,680) share options granted under the
Share Options Scheme lapsed upon the resignation of the employees and
directors of the Group or cancelled by the employees and the Company.

'3

i B8R S B 1 0 %2 950,000,000 (=%

—INAR T 475,427,6801 ) I BERE 1 A 4 1 1y
R B M T o AT 4% 2R Ak o i 0 H BA 2 )
RES o

j/
-
y

! o e,
S S :g’

4 =
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40. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued) 40. I BCRE wT I (4)

The exercise price in respect of any share options, shall subject to any
adjustments in the event of any alteration in the capital structure of the
Company whilst any share option remains exercisable or this scheme
remains in effect. The exercise of any share option shall be subject to the
shareholders in the general meeting approving any necessary increase in the
authorised share capital of the Company.

The fair value of options granted on 26 May 2014 (“Option 17) was
determined by using the Binomial options-pricing model at the date of grant;
no subsequent revaluation at the year ended is required. The significant
inputs into the model were closing share price of HK$0.63 at the grant date,
exercise price of HK$0.63, expected volatility of 80%, expected dividend
yield of nil, option live of 9 years, and annual risk-free rate of 1.9%

The fair value of options granted on 29 September 2014 (“Option 2”) was
determined by using the Binomial options pricing model at the date of grant;
no subsequent revaluation at the year ended is required. The significant
inputs into the model were closing share price of HK$1.16 at the grant date,
exercise price of HK$1.264, expected volatility of 70%, expected dividend
yield of nil, option live of 5 years, and annual risk-free rate of 1.51%.

The fair value of option granted on 16 March 2015 (“Option 3”) was
determined by using Binomial options pricing model at the date of grant;
no subsequent revaluation at the year ended is required. The significant
inputs into the model were closing share price of HK$1.37 at the grant date,
exercise price of HK$1.37, expected volatility of 71%, expected dividend
yield of nil, option live of 5 years, and annual risk free rate of 1.2%.

The fair value of option granted on 8 June 2015 (“Option 4”) was determined
by using Binomial options pricing model at the date of grant; no subsequent
revaluation at the year ended is required. The significant inputs into the
model were closing share price of HK$1.45 at the grant date, exercise price
of HK$1.596, expected volatility of 75%, expected dividend yield of nil,
option live of 8 years, and annual risk free rate of 1.7%.

The fair value of option granted on 6 April 2016 (“Option 6”) was
determined by using Binomial options pricing model at the date of grant;
no subsequent revaluation at the year ended is required. The significant
inputs into the model were closing share price of HK$1.06 at the grant date,
exercise price of HK$1.078, expected volatility of 48%, expected dividend
yield of nil, option live of 5 years, and annual risk free rate of 0.89%.

A A 2 ] 1 S A SR A o S J R 73 T AT
%l 7% S8 A 25000 TR Hh BT o 52 B - B O e
VR A7 9 20 R 2R o N T 2 e P SRR
JBE SRR LAt e A 2 )k A SR A AR Hh e 75 G 4
AR J5 wT AT o

RTF—PAER A 2o H 32 A RRE ([
JERELD) B P E 4% B B Al —E R
0 s A 2 B AR H R AR AT R
A o B 11 T R O\ 2 SOk B4 T H S IRy
We T 150.63%5 T » 47 13 150.63% I » T8 151 Ik B
F580% > T B B 25 R A Z - i IRehE A R4
Ry JUAE - 4 B Q6 SR B R B 2 1.9% ©

R — AU A Ju H 52 A RRE (T
e HED|) Wy 2 PR #2 B 1 A I
00 s (B A 2 AR MR AR AT R
A o AR B T KON 2 0K YR O R
Wi (B 1. 1638 T8 » 470618 % 1.264 45 70 » TE I 9% B
RE70% > TE I LB R A % - W IR e AT R4E
ks AR - AR R B A R 5 1.51% o

PR BAEZA N H AR e (5
JB A3 1) B v P #2 th HOJ 28 0 B K
T S8 BRI EE o HOCAR S U AR RO AT
il o AR G T K A\ 2 B R R TR A
Wi 81,379 56 > 47 B 8 2 1,379 o > T B B
FRT1% > T I B W2 3 B - IR REAT 24
S0 AR o A LS IR B R A 1.2% o

R Z—HAEN A\ H B2 0B RE (T e
41) W 2P 12 912 i 4 o o
FE BT S 5 H AR I ZH AR R AT AL -
AR Y TR A 22 8 N A SR T
E1.4586 50 > 4718 51,5964 70 » T DR B R A
75% » TEHH e MR35 3 0 3 o i IBERE A AR A 0
J\AE - 45 JE S IR B R K %5 1.7% ©

TR —NAE I H N BB RRE (TR JBHE
6.1) YA PR B2 398 8 0 ) o SR
FE R AR A o HL AR B A A A AT LAY o
PR (i TR A 22 8k 7 Y H A PR T
181,069 T » 470018 %5 1.078 87T » T P B R Ay
48% > T e SR 2 26 s 2 » i JBEHEE A A5k 4 0
A > A P R B Y K 2%0.89% ©
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41.

BEF-LHETHE+—HILEE
SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

The fair value of option granted on 10 May 2016 (“Option 7”) was
determined by using Binomial options pricing model at the date of grant;
no subsequent revaluation at the year ended is required. The significant
inputs into the model were closing share price of HK$1.01 at the grant date,
exercise price of HK$1.022, expected volatility of 46%, expected dividend
yield of nil, option live of 5 years, and annual risk free rate of 0.94%.

The fair value of option granted on 7 June 2016 (“Option 8”) was determined
by using Binomial options pricing model at the date of grant; no subsequent
revaluation at the year ended is required. The significant inputs into the
model were closing share price of HK$1.06 at the grant date, exercise price
of HK$1.06, expected volatility of 45%, expected dividend yield of nil,
option live of 5 years, and annual risk free rate of 0.88%.

The exercise of options are subject to exercise in whole or in part at any
time during the exercise periods upon the fulfillment of certain prescribed
performance targets set to the Group.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, employee share-based payment
of net credit amount of approximately HK$845,000 (2016: net credit amount
of approximately HK$65,168,000) has been included in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income with a
corresponding debit to the share options reserve.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS
Defined contribution plan

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme for all qualifying
employees in Hong Kong. The assets of the plans are held separately from
those of the Group in funds under the control of trustees.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC are members of a
state-managed retirement benefit plan operated by the government of the
PRC. The subsidiaries are required to contribute a specified percentage of
payroll costs to the retirement benefit scheme to fund the benefits. The only
obligation of the Group with respect to the retirement benefit plan is to make
the specified contributions.

The total expense recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income of approximately HK$4,569,000 (2016:
approximately HK$21,216,000) represents contributions paid or payable to
these plans by the Group at rates specified in the rules of the plans.

40.

41.

Job JBe At (480)

B NAE LT A H A AR (T A
71) WA AR B2 B 9% 0 O S
E AT 5 HLHAR I R AR R AT LAY
AR 1 TR A 2 3% Y B H A SR i T
fE1.013#6 70 » 47618 51,0228 50 » T D B R By
46% > T B B W28 B 5 % » W TBERE A 04T 1 2
FAE o A B SR B R 2 450.94% ©

R INAEN T L H 2 A B RE (T e
8.1) WA FAH R 2 e H 39 38 0 ) — o X
FE AR A 5 B AR B R AR AR AT LAY
R (1 T K A 2 8k S 2 Y H A R4 i T
B 1.069 70 » 178 18 5 1068 6 > T W B R 5
45% > T e S 2% 26 0 2 M JBE WA 30 30
LA » 4 B S R B R K %50.88% ©

AT J It 2 77 A 48 T 2 il T L2 e B L AR
AR AT 0 A Wy ] 22 8 204

WEE_Z—LET A=+ —HIREE B
B2 B A5 ik B TE R 40 £5845,000% 8 (=%
—NAF B TE R A 5565,168,0008 08) B EFA
S AR AS T i 2 T W 2% 2% o A REAY TE T A
JBe HE £k 5 o

S8 P At
Rl

ACKE T 2 P A B v 6 B AR R B SR JE R )
ARG o Wt AR AR I S
EESE R A CH VN -

A 55 L v [0 g A W) 2 A B v R BRE T ¢ L
Z 10 R PR A R A B 2 B o % S R 4
R ZEHAR B TR R4 R T o B A AR AR A S
B o A S T 5 AR A A R ) 2 o — T
22 A th L5 Bk -

T it A 4E i B H Al 2 G Wi 2% 3 R 2 BB BR 2 A4
%44,569,000%5 78 ( =& — N 4E 1 £974521,216,000
0 ) AR RS 4 [0 42 R B AT W = Bl RO K
ST O SO A Z Ak o
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42. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will
be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the return to
stakeholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The

Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt, which included the
amounts due to non-controlling interests and related companies, borrowings,
obligation under finance lease and convertible bonds, net of cash and cash
equivalents and equity attributable to owners of the Company, comprising

issued share capital, reserves and accumulated losses.
Net debt to equity ratio
The Group’s management reviews the capital structure on an on-going basis.

As part of this review, the management considers the cost of capital and the

risks associated with each class of capital.

42. BAREM

ACHE A BREC A > DU R A4 P IE T
B AR AR A - 00 8 5 A 2 45 B 2 B
R URRL E XL R NG E S SNEE RN L
R 0 R W LA A R A R A B

ACHE T 2 A R A B A D B
A5F % M 2 e ] T O )RR O A K~ AL
FHT Z B BT B 5% - BBl S Bl 4
SR B F A N REA R AR (S TR AT
JBAS ~ il B Bt )

£ ORI 2 L R
ARSI 2 A B A B AR - A T

Z BRI % A R B S R B
AA B Z R

The gearing ratio at the end of the reporting period was as follows: REBHIRZ EARE AR T
2017 2016
e Sl i 3 “F—-R
HKS$’000 HKS$’000
T T-# 0
Debt (Note (i)) B (At ) 10,974,014
Cash and bank balance (Note 25) Bl 4 B SRAT #5685 (M 7E25) (2,306,994)
Net debt 1 8,667,020
Equity (Note (ii)) WESS (Mt (i) 8,752,056
Net debt to equity ratio A R RE RS LR 99%
Notes: MEE -

(]

Debt is defined as obligation under finance lease, borrowings and
convertible bonds, as detailed in Notes 30, 31 and 33 respectively.

(ii)  Equity includes all capital and reserves of the Group.

FUETR R B RE30 ~ 31 %3350k 2 Rl Al
BT ZHAE - R R e B il 57

()

(i) HESE A HEACHE [ T AT B A S Gl o
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43. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(a)

(b)

Categories of financial instruments

43. ST H

(a)

Financial assets Al R
Loans and receivables Bk e HE WK IR
(including cash and cash equivalents) (ELFEBL4 BB & S HY)
Fair value through profit or loss A CTEFN AH 2R
Available-for-sale investments s s
Financial liabilities Al £
Amortised cost e 5 AR
Fair value through profit or loss A CPEEN A2

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include bank balances
and pledged deposits, trade receivables, deposits and other
receivables, available-for-sale investments, financial instruments at
fair value through profit or loss, trade payables, accrued liabilities
and other payables, amounts due to non-controlling interests and
related companies, borrowings, obligation under finance lease and
convertible bonds and long-term payables. Details of these financial
instruments are disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated
with these financial instruments and the policies on how to mitigate
these risks are set out below. Management manages and monitors
these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a

timely and effective manner.

There has been no significant change to the Group’s risks exposure
relating to financial instruments or the manner in which it manages

and measures the risks.

(b)

o NS b

2017 2016

R BN
HK$’000 HK$’000
T T
1,129.917

13,193,310

245,796

SV o 4 B H B B R

ARSI 2 BB A TR AR ST AR R
O F1E 1142 K~ M B 2 Rk A7 ik S 3L
At JE WK L~ R B R A P
PRS2 e TR - AR SR -
W Gt £ B L At B A K T~ B AR S 4 Bt
A 25 B B L 2y W) K I A K AL
JHT Z AT ~ T 408 5 2 B AR 000 HE £+ sk
TE o 3% S5 4 i B 2R R D B e o
P 9% o B 3% 55 4 b T HOM B 2 VB - DA
T Y00 88 % 56 J\ e 2 T SR T SCaR AR o 4
B g S S T B o AT A B R G - TR
B B A7 20 HHE A7 308 6 4 i

A5 R 6 i T L R 4 2 D B e
Be it f2 R B = T XSl 8 oK 8 I

219



Carnival Group International Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2017

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A B IR B

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #E _F—tE+T_H=Z+—HIL4EE

43. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk

The Group’s activities expose it to market risks of changes in currency
risk, price risk and interest rate risk.

There has been no significant change to Group’s exposure to market
risks or the manner in which it manages and measures the risk over the
year.

Currency risk

Substantially all of the Group’s sales and operating costs are
denominated in the functional currency of the group entity making the
sales or incurring the costs. Accordingly, the directors of the Company
consider that the currency risk is not significant.

The Group currently does not have a formal currency hedging policy
in relation to currency risk. The directors monitor the Group’s
exposure on an on-going basis and will consider hedging the currency
risk should the need arise.

Equity price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk arising from trading of
listed securities included in financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss. The sensitivity analysis has been determined based on the
exposure to equity price risk.

At the end of the reporting period, if the quoted stock prices had been
10% higher or lower while all other variables were held constant,
the Group’s net profit would increase or decrease by approximately
HK$197,185,000 (2016: approximately HK$112,992,000) as a result
of changes in fair value of investments.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s fair value interest rate risk relates primarily to fixed-rate
borrowings, obligation under finance lease and bonds payables.

The Group currently does not have a formal interest rate hedging
policy in relation to cash flow interest rate risk. The directors of the
Company monitor the Group’s exposure on an on-going basis and will
consider hedging the interest rate risk should the need arise.

43. E@W TR (4)
(b) ﬁﬁ%)mls@%iﬁ B % R

»

il 53 B B

A% 5 [ 22 305 4 S TS LB~ AT IR
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0% > SIS TP A 75 S B L

M 5 A4 o Bt
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43. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk

At 31 December 2017 and 2016, the Group’s maximum exposure to
credit risk which will cause a financial loss to the Group due to failure
to discharge an obligation by the counterparties is arising from the
carrying amount of the respective recognised financial assets as stated

in the consolidated statement of financial position.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of the Group
has delegated a team responsible for monitoring procedures to ensure
that follow up action is taken to recover overdue debts. In addition,
the Group reviews the recoverable amount of each individual trade
debt and loan receivable at the end of the reporting period to ensure
that adequate impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts.
In this regard, the directors of the Company consider that the Group’s

credit risk is significantly reduced.

The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk on trade
receivables, with exposure spread over a number of counterparties and

customers.

At 31 December 2017 and 2016, the Group has concentration of
credit risk on the deposits paid for acquisition of a property project
and subsidiaries paid to counterparties which are all engaged in the
PRC property development business, and are either state-owned
entities or companies with good reputation, the directors of the

Company consider that the credit risk is limited.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the counterparties
are banks with good reputation established in the PRC and Hong
Kong.

43. & TH (&)
(b) W5 B I 4% PIL H B % SR

(#)

1 BB BS

R —-LERF-NETF A=+
H > F$F 5 RAEBAT E A AL H 5
Z B AR R Z B e B R B T B A B
Bk UL BT R A R O R A
2 % e g A

Tl A R Dok 2 S K - A 4 P4 B g
TR S M B R TR R > TEARARIDUIR
A 8 M e 3 30 R < R A - A T
e oh 190 R At 5 o B2 o A B ME M
K W D] - e O AS T e e AR
H R ) Z AR 4R = BRI > A ] R
Ry AR I 2 A5 B R K 2 A

R ST R & 40 F 07 % -
A S B S5 O 60 43 44 o
2 f ST R -

R —-LERFE-NETFZA=Z+—
H > 245 [ gt S — T S TR H R e I
AP ER SRR REERZHTF
U5 SEAF BT A e 4 P A B R > S
HEHAEAEESEERIFZAA K
AR ) SR A B B R o

FHA 3 - 05 3 2 T o % A L Y
B R Z AT - HOR BRI B 2 A HR
WA i
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43. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

For properties under development which are subject to pre-sales
agreements, the Group generally typically provides guarantees to
banks in connection with the customers’ borrowing of mortgage
loans to finance their purchase of the properties for an amount up
to 70% of the total purchase price of the property. If a purchaser
defaults on the payment of its mortgage during the term of guarantee,
the bank holding the mortgage may demand the Group to repay the
outstanding amount of the loan and any accrued interest thereon.
Under such circumstances, the Group is able to retain the customer’s
purchase deposit and sell the property to recover any amounts paid by
the Group to the bank. In this regard, the directors of the Company

consider that the Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors and
maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate
by the management to finance the Group’s operations and mitigate
the effects of fluctuations in cash flows. The management monitors
the utilisation of borrowings and ensures compliance with loan

covenants.

Liquidity tables

The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual
maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities based on the agreed
repayment terms. The table reflects the undiscounted cash flows of
financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Group can
be required to pay. The maturity dates for non-derivative financial

liabilities are based on agreed repayment dates.

43. & TH (&)
(b) W5 B I 4% PIL H B % SR
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43. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

Liquidity tables (Continued)

31 December 2017 ZR-LEFZAE N
Non-derivative financial liabilities Fehi kA b 0%
Trade payables HE R 52 5 ek
Accrued liabilities and other payables HE £ A R AL A S0E
Borrowings: fhiak:

- Bank and other borrowings — A7 B A R

- Bonds — %
Obligation under finance lease MEHFET 2 B
Amounts due to related companies HE A I L2 ] R
Convertible bonds R %
31 December 2016 ZE-AETSAZETH
Non-derivative financial liabilities FeRi A S A%
Trade payables M B 53 ek
Accrued liabilities and other payables TR 0 T KA A R
Borrowings: fiik s

— Bank and other borrowings — AT RS R

- Bonds — %
Obligation under finance lease ML T 2 B
Amounts due to non-controlling interests [ZREREY S £e)
Amounts due to related companies o R A ] R

Convertible bonds EE ¢

Weighted
average
interest rate
i
REAPES
%

1.62-13
8.56-9.75
3.57

8.85-9.32

43. @ TR (48)

(b) J 75 J Bt 4 B H B B oK

1,549,582 = -
754,074 - -

3,025,010 3,865,102 175,033

464,495 1,718,659 85,498
353 353 —
20,983 - -
140,453 - =

198,898 2,610,483 5

(%)
7 ) ¥ < L e (46)
B E £ ()
On demand Total
or less than More than undiscounted
lyear  1to5 years 5 years cash flows
BER K K884
B4 ERERE O BBEFE O REAK
HKS$'000 HKS$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
T T T#x T

1,549,582
754,074

7,065,145
2,268,652
706
20,983
140,453
2,809,381

Carrying
amount

Wi
HK$'000
TH#

1,549,582
754,074

6,369,178
2,101,814
680
20,983
140,453
2,502,322
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43. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 43. £@TH (4)
(¢) Fair values measurements of financial instruments () AT HA iz

The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities are SREEMEMAMZATEDEAT

determined as follows: fEE

. the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities with . B AT R AR K B AR A BT % R U
standard terms and conditions and traded on active liquid By 5 R A Rl R A
markets are determined with reference to quoted market bid & > T3 2% P i 5 B A B %
prices and ask prices; and A FE &

. the fair values of other financial assets and financial liabilities o Hih e gEkEemafz AT
are determined in accordance with generally accepted pricing H T AR 45 £ B B 4 3L 42 43
models based on discounted cash flow analysis. 2 R A e R o

Fair value measurements recognised in the consolidated T 55 B R PR R 2 AT

statement of financial position

Fair value as at
AT
31 December 31 December Fair value Valuation technique
2017 2016 hierarchy and key input
KR LA i S
F+ZHZE+—H +ZA=+—H NP TR EESY
HK$’000 HK$'000
T T
Financial assets at FVTPL BATHGAREZ
S
Equity securities listed A b 2 b AR 5 1,602,427 274,388 Level 1 Quoted price in an active market
in Hong Kong
S 5 2
Equity linked note eSS 80 5 0% - 463,000 Level 2 Underlying assets has
quoted price in an
active market
B B A T 3 2
B
Unlisted investment fund FEligE LS 369,425 392,529 Level 2 Dealing price of the fund derived
from the net asset value of the
fund
B8 Telka g F RN
FEE 5 kG
Available-for-sale investments ok
Unlisted private fund PR B 2 L RS 263,666 = Level 2 Dealing price of the fund derived
in Cayman Islands from the net asset value of the
fund
BB ety ¥ A A 2
KRB
Unlisted fund in the PRC il P N R 707,650 = Level 2 Dealing price of the fund derived
from the net asset value of the
fund
B8 TSk A i e VR A 2 B
35 ks

Equity securities W% 99,000 = Level 3 Fair value of the equity derived

: from the net asset value of
the investee attributable to the
equity interests held by the

Grou i
COBSE GRRERRRE
L = RO BILf 2
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43. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 43. W T H (8)
(¢) Fair values measurements of financial instruments (¢ & HAVGHE (4])
(Continued)
The directors of the Group consider that the carrying amounts of B R SCHT 8 Ah > AR E R S
financial assets and financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost in T O A o B T R R AR Z 4
the consolidated financial statements approximate their fair values, R 4 il 2 VR T R B A S A
except as disclosed below. #io
Carrying amount Fair value
At 31 December 2017: RER-LHETZAZT R MG i AT
HK$°000 HK$’000
T#xT T#x
Financial liabilities: -
Convertible bonds EE/Yags
Carrying amount Fair value
At 31 December 2016: RER-ANETFZA=Z+—H: R i L AFE
HKS$’000 HK$’000
T#x AR
Financial liabilities: SRR :
Convertible bonds AR R 2,256,526 2,477,954

During the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016, there were no
transfers between Level 1 and Level 2, or transfers into or out of Level
3. The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers between levels of fair
value hierarchy as at the end of the reporting period in which they

occur.

'3

REE-F-LER-F-AFTZA
St HIRAEE B HEE SR
Sl 986 488 - I JHE A R O OB = A o R
AR ) 2 T8O SR TS R A R A 2 sk R e
R 1L S A A% A T I R

j/
-
y
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44. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES 44. BN W) A 2 A R
ARISING FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities arising from 3R 5 A B [ Y A AR 2 LA A )
financing activities, including both cash and non-cash changes. Liabilities GBS I I B 55 W) o b 3 ) A A 2 6
arising from financing activities are those for which cash flows were, or T B4 I O A B 2R B A U I R AR
future cash flows will be, classified in the Group’s consolidated statement of P 3 B 4 U o 2 40 5 % i T N B B 4 U
cash flows as cash flows from financing activities. ZHfe
Amounts Obligation
due to non- under
controlling Convertible finance
interests  Borrowings bonds lease Total
WeAF
FpE AL
B Atk T fisk  WHREE  HTZERE st
Note 31 Note 33 Note 30
Hiit31 Hiit33 Hiit30
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HKS$’000
T#T T T#T T# T
At 1 January 2017 W_F—tE—-H—H 140,453 8,471,012 2,502,322 680 11,114,467
Financing cash flows AL B A iR (145,482) (549,118) 185,367 (1,477) (510,710)
Acquisition of subsidiaries W i Y B 2 ) - 504,256 - - 504,256
New obligation under finance lease ¥ it &A1 & IH T 2 EAE - - - 3,500 3,500
Exchange adjustments [FE 50, 8 % 5,029 374,397 18,116 = 397,542
Interest expenses F BB 52 = 731,507 220,823 164 952,494
Loss on early redemption PETT BB R
of senior bonds JEis] = 637 = = 637
Equity components on BIARTERR W RE £ 80 43
initial recognition - - (4,484) - (4,484)
Gain in respect of convertible bonds 4 X i & 7J 46 Jit 15 77 2 Wi 25
cancelled during the year - 390,000 (550,524) - (160,524)
Fair value change for the year SEREN TS B - - 6,759 - 6,759
At 31 December 2017 R-Z—L4
FEE =] - 9,922,691 2,378,379 2,867 12,303,937
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4s.

46.

47.

SR B BaR R
For the year ended 31 December 2017 #ZE ~F—LE T+ H=Z1T—HILEE
SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY 45. WRBEALZS
TRANSACTIONS
Compensation of the remuneration of key management RN EEFBEZH T
during the year was as follows:
2017 2016
- TR
HK$’000 HK$’000
T#L T#C
Short-term employee benefits S 104 B A A 30,981
Post-employment benefits il 1 12 4 ) 44
Equity settled share-based payment DLRE %% 45 SR Am 32 A =2 k0 845
31,870
CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 46. HR A
Saved as disclosed in Note 34 regarding the provisions of probable outflow Tk Bt 5834 5 4% 88 A7 B 2 JECRR o T A VT R IR
of a variety of lawsuits and claim, the Group had no other material contingent HH P 98 5 A1 - A 42 (B T S Al 3 3 2 7 Rk
liabilities identified. REME-
COMPARATIVE FIGURE 47. BT
Certain comparative figures are reclassified to conform with the current HTHBEHFOCENSE > UF A REEZT)
year’s presentation. WA e
EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD 48. P % P

48.

Subsequent to the reporting period, on 22 January 2018, the Company
entered into an agreement with a placing agent. Pursuant to the agreement,
the placing agent has conditionally agreed with the Company to use its best
efforts, as agent of the Company, to place up to 2,200,000,000 new Shares to
not less than six placees in total at the placing price of HK$0.355 per share.
The placing had been completed on 2 February 2018. For details, please
refer to the Company’s announcements dated 22 January 2018, 26 January
2018 and 22 February 2018.

REME- R - NE—H_+=H:>
AR 2\ ] B B AR RT S — T 1 o AR BB 1
kB BRI OH B AL H] W AER
AR W) Z AR B g 3 T BB 1R R A R N £ R T
AN#BERO3SSHE L MEMEE S LRSS
2,200,000,000/8 57 Bt 43 o B B HIHE —F— N\
ETZHZHBRowE 2B AN H B %
= Syl ie — H T — H B = H
N HE=EES NG HE e i 2N
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49. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL

9. BB -LEF A= HA

SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY AS AT 2] BEW B A A Z wE
31 DECEMBER 2017
Place of Proportion of
incorporation/ Issued share ownership
establishment/ capital/paid up interests held
Name of subsidiary operations capital by the Company  Principal activities
kbR CETRA, R B A A AR
W B A £ fzgi st BREBAR Mg Z Bl R
Carnival Group (Hong Kong) Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 100% (Indirect)  Provision of management
Holdings Limited services in Hong
Kong
AR () R R A e A 1 T 100% (F4%)  AEFF SR AL BB
Joy More Investment Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 100% (Indirect)  Property development in
Hong Kong
FHEREER A i T Mt 19 e 100% (%) GERELERRE
L/E 3
Swift Fortune Investments Limited BVI Ordinary USD2 100% (Direct)  Securities Investment
REREHRAT o JB D L i 230 100% (E#%)  WHFRH
A (FR)BEARAF PRC (Note (i) Registered capital 64% (Indirect)  Property development in
RMB900,000,000 the PRC
W (K k) REME AR R 64% (F4%) P ELERRE
900,000,00078 L/E= 37
HEWEEEYEEEARA R PRC (Note (i1)) Registered capital 64% (Indirect) ~ Property management in
RMB1,000,000 the PRC
oI (i) ) REM AN R 64% (F4%) AP EZEWE
1,000,00078 R
T 5 i b 5547 2 v S48 A PR ) PRC (Note (ii)) Registered capital 64% (Indirect) Commercial
RMB10,000,000 management in
the PRC
WO (i) ) REM AN R 64% (FI4%)  AErh A 28 B
10,000,0007C #

1 P
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49. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY AS AT
31 DECEMBER 2017 (Continued)

BEZF-LETZAZ T HILEE

49. RZF—-LHFE A=+ —HAK

A A ERME A A Z i (5)

Place of Proportion of
incorporation/ Issued share ownership
establishment/ capital/paid up interests held
Name of subsidiary operations capital by the Company  Principal activities
kbR T RA AR AT B M
W B A i 4 [:¢. 281 BRIBA ARz el R
TN 2R R B RA A T PRC (Note (ii)) Registered capital 100% (Indirect) ~ Property development in
RMB40,000,000 the PRC
eI (i) ) REMEE AN R 100% (F4%) AP RAUE SR
40,000,0007C #
AR T 3 80 B A LA PRC (Note (iii)) Registered capital 99.01% (Indirect)  Property development in
RMB70,600,000 the PRC
R (i) ) REMHEE AN R 99.01% (M)  ErhRAR BRI
70,600,0007C #
H R EARA PRC (Note (ii)) Registered capital 100% (Indirect) ~ Property development in
RMB10,000,000 the PRC
eI (i) ) REMHEE AN R 100% (F4%)  AErh AU SR e
10,000,0007C #
U 2 A B e R PRC (Note (ii)) Registered capital 95% (Indirect)  Property development in
HIRAF RMB29,900,000 the PRC
eI (i) ) REMHEE AN R 95% (M) e BREBRYEE
29,900,0007C #
L S g A ¥ - |
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49. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL

50.

SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY AS AT
31 DECEMBER 2017 (Continued)

Notes:
(1) The company is a sino-foreign equity joint venture established in the PRC.
(i)  The company is a limited liability company established in the PRC.

(iii)  The company is a wholly foreign-owned enterprise established in the
PRC.

DETAILS OF NON-WHOLLY OWNED
SUBSIDIARY THAT HAS MATERIAL NON-
CONTROLLING INTERESTS

The table below shows details of non-wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group
that has material non-controlling interests:

Proportion of
Place of ownership interests and
incorporation voting rights held by
and principal non-controlling
Name of subsidiary place of business interests
ek 0 3 3 3 2 e FH e JBe b 2 15 A e M
WEB A i £ By3 L3 L Bl B B HE 2 Wi
2017 2016
ZE-LE ZFEAE

W EEEE(FR) PRC
BEARAF
H

9. BB -LEF A= HA

50.

A A ERME A A Z i (5)

ML <

() AT DB B T AR
Gi)  EAFRIEPEBOLZARITEAF -
(i) A F R AE TR oL 2 AR A o

B AT oK ke JB i i 2 4 i Y
J& 2 ) ¥R

S LEY VT R PR3 e T
30 USSR

Profit/(loss) allocated to Accumulated
non-controlling non-controlling
interests interests

AR BHE R 2
wH, OE#R) BRI b 23
2017 2016 2017 2016
SR ZFE-RE SR ZERE
HK$’000 HKS$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T T#T T T
(65,490) 1,731,582

EEEEEE

"
2

EDSE
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50. DETAILS OF NON-WHOLLY OWNED 50.

SUBSIDIARY THAT HAS MATERIAL NON-
CONTROLLING INTERESTS (Continued)

Summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s subsidiary that

has material non-controlling interests is set out below. The summarised

financial information below represents amounts before intragroup

B AT oK ke B i i 2 4 Y
J& 2w 'R (81)

A S ) e A K S A B 4 o R e 2 R B B
FRHBEZ IR 01T o F S B R R 2 5 R
) T S T

eliminations.
B AEEE () BEA A 2017 2016
R e
HKS$’000 HK$°000
T Tt
Current assets it B 3,661,215
Non-current assets J B A A 9,471,126
Current liabilities TR A (4,808,479)
Non-current liabilities BN (3,513,911)
Equity attributable to owners of the Company A E e NIEAGRERS 3,078,369
Non-controlling interests I B RE 25 1,731,582
Revenue WA 651,709
Profit/(loss) for the year SRR (REE) (181,918)
Total comprehensive income/(expenses) EFERTWA 7 (BIX) 8%
for the year (518,824)
Profit/(loss) for the year attributable e I B 25 AN 4R BE WA, (5 1R)
to the non-controlling interests (65,490)
Total comprehensive income/(expense) b R 5 HEAE B HRON (B %)
attributable to the non-controlling interests A (186,777)
Net cash (outflow)/inflow from Mg EE Z FBLA
operating activities (i) WA 1,464,564
Net cash outflow from investing activities L W) A 2 B AR (515,386)
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from Rl o AR R B A
financing activities WA (HiH) (940,719)
Net cash (outflow)/inflow FHA (Fl) A 8,459
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51. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND  51. 7K 2 v W #5IR UL ¢ Be Gk fi
RESERVES OF THE COMPANY
2017 2016
e S TR
HKS$°000 HK$’000
F#L T#sT
Non-current assets e Wy A
Investments in subsidiaries L AT P § 4y 3,360,891
Note receivables W R -
3,360,891
Current assets Ui W
Prepayments and other receivables TFE A 73R T T Al J8 WALk 500
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss %/ - {H 5 A $H 25 =Z 4 il % & 83,970
Amounts due from subsidiaries JRE WA Y I8 2 ) ek 7,071,307
Cash and cash equivalents Bl& R B4 ) 3,703
7,159,480
Total assets ¥ A M 10,520,371
Current liabilities i B £ 4
Accrued liabilities and other payables JRE 5 £ A5 T A B A K I 3,820
Amounts due to subsidiaries HEAT B I 2 7] K IE 61,758
Borrowings fi5 ik 601,259
Convertible bonds EE Jidie -
666,837
Net current assets R Bl 7 A 6,492,643
Total assets less current liabilities B0 7 DR Y £ A% 9,853,534
Capital and reserves A it
Share capital AR 3,375,546
Share premium and reserves Ay ¥ i S A A 2,293,354
Total equity i 2% A 5,668,900
Non-current liabilities G ) A i
Borrowings H 1,680,556
Deferred tax liabilities T S ol I £ A 1,756
Convertible bonds w4 % £ 5 2,502,322
4,184,634
9,853,534
The Company’s statement of financial position was approved and authorised KAFRZMBERAECR - )N\FE=H
for issue by the Board of Directors on 28 March 2018 and were signed on its T\ HEE B R RET B > W T A
behalf by: HRREREE
King Pak Fu Wang Chunning
AT T
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AR Lo N

51. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND  51. A2 v B 51K U 3¢ B i 5 (%8%)
RESERVES OF THE COMPANY (Continued)
Movement in the Company’s reserves A2 vi) 22 fili A 5 )
Convertible
bonds Share
Share  Contributed equity options Accumulated
premium surplus reserve reserve losses Total
LE Y3e
Bepriedl  MOAESR  BERGHE  WBERE  RSHEH At
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
T T T T T T
At 1 January 2016 REZF—AE—]—H 4,573,491 9,404 35,970 66,013 (3,420,267) 1,264,611
Loss for the year L - - - - (263,646) (263,646)
Recognition of equity-settled R RERS SR 2
share-based payments I - - - 11,407 - 11,407
Share option lapsed/cancelled SERRR TR W
during the year - - - (76,575) - (76,575)
Issue of shares by way of placing BB AT IR 1,401,776 - - - - 1401776
Transaction costs attributable to BEAT I A 2 5 AR
issue of shares (44,219) - - - - (44,219)
At 31 December 2016 and e S 2
1 January 2017 ZEt-ARZER LA
—H—H 5,931,048 9,404 35,970 845 (3,083,913) 2,293,354
Loss for the year EE B - - - - (459.680)  (459,680)
Recognition of equity component of T Rl 4 it £ % Z 1 25 6 23
convertible bonds - - 4,484 - - 4,484
Deferred tax liability on recognition e A 4 i 5 4 HE£5 80 40
of equity component of EREALIA A
convertible bonds - - (740) - - (740)
Cancellation of convertible bonds kB W e A5 - - (3,744) - 3,744 -
Share options cancelled A P LB 2 i e
during the year - - - (845) - (845)
Issue of shares by way of placing B BT R 180,000 = = = = 180,000
Transaction costs attributable to BEAT I A 22 5 A
issue of shares (2,400) - - - - (2,400)
Issue of shares upon rights issue BB AT IR A 858,886 - - - - 858,886
Transaction costs attributable BB HEAS 2 5 AR
to rights issue (38,920) - - - - (38,920)
At 31 December 2017 R=Z— L4
T H=4—H 6,928,614 9,404 35,970 - (4,139,849) 2,834,139
i \ -
y | % y A

PRR
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Particulars of the Major Properties Held
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Details of the Group’s major properties held as at 31 December 2017 under

development for sale, investment or own use are as follows:

(@)

(b)

(©

S dl' i

Name of property
and location

LESA VTN

Rio Carnival,
Huangdao District,
Qingdao City,
Shandong Province,
the PRC

R L
1

A

R

B

Carnival
International
Community,
Chengdu

Hi-tech Zone,
Chengdu City,
Sichuan Province,
the PRC

A 3 [ B A
F1E

yllE

AR T
R 15 T [

Shouson Project
Nos. 16A-16D,

Shouson Hill Road,
Hong Kong

Intended use

L g

— Residential

— Commercial

—fEE
— T

— Residential

— Commercial

L ES
ki

— Residential

Stage of

completion

52 1 B B

— Partially completed
— Completed

— A SE R
- B

— Partially completed
— Partially completed

— A SE K
— #8552 K

— Land under

development

AEEMPRFE-LETZAZT R ERE - #®

ek AR B BRI R
Expected
year of Approximate Approximate Group’s
completion site area  gross floor area interest
L] AEM
Wt AR % W wiRT  BEARL I 1 R i Ati b 22
sqm sqm
FIik FIik
2018 348,900 765,800 64%
in phases
“EB N\
43 W Be5e B
2018 72,500 481,000 100%
in phases
ZR N\
73 I Be 5 1
2020 4,600 2,100 100%
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Particulars of the Major Properties Held
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(d)

(e)

Name of property
and location

EZA YR

Laoshan Project,
No. 490 Xiangang East Road,
Laoshan District, Qingdao,

Shandong Province,

the PRC
AR
o

ipE
T L
7 s R 490%%
Beijing Project,
25th Street Zone,
Shunyi New Town,
Shunyi District,
Beijing, the PRC
I H
1

-t

I 5 [

JIE 2697 R

W25t [

Intended use

L ik

— Residential

—fEE

— Residential

—fEE

Stage of
completion

52 W I B

— Partially completed

— 5 5EBK

— Land under

development

— P g L

Expected
year of
completion

Biwk e TAR B

2019

in phases

ZEhE
43 W B SE I

2019

in phases

i
73 W BESE R

Approximate
site area
]

S 8 i
sqm

FIk

44,440

14,144

Approximate
gross floor area

PB4 v 1
sqm

FIk

110,749

45,287

Group’s
interest
AL

P At b 2

100%

95%
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Financial Summary
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A summary of the consolidated results and assets and liabilities of the Group for

the last five financial years as extracted from the audited financial statements and

restated as appropriated is set out below:

RESULTS £
Year ended 31 December BETZHZt—HILEE 2017
ot S
HK$’000
T
Continuing operations REREEE
Revenue KA
Profit/(loss) before tax VBT R (B 8)
Income tax (expense)/credit Pt (i) /155
Profit/(loss) for the year SRR (BR)
Profit/(loss) for the year attributable to: T 3 A 1: HEAf 4¢ B
WA/ OB
Owners of the Company EYNGE 2SN
Non-controlling interests EREy
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES YRR A0
Year ended 31 December BRETHAZ—HILEE 2017
v S
HK$’000
T
Assets B
Liabilities fif
Net assets BAEFH
Equity attributable to: THALHEAER :
Owners of the Company EYNTE 2N
Non-controlling interests ERE 0

DA 2 A 558 A d 2 0 A 4 B 2 B SR A DL I
P M B R - A B R D 1 R B AR A

Wk EES
2016 2015 2014 2013
ZENE RN R e S
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
T T T T
1,934,024 1,146,388 1,412,857 545,287
50386 95,728 138.986 (2,134,690)
(763) 8,162 (21,163) 11
49,623 103,890 117823 (1,811,569)
123,740 120453 43,018 (1485,874)
(74,117) (16,563) 74,805 (325,695)
49,623 103,890 117823 (1,811,569)
2016 2015 2014 2013
ZENE RN ZE-NE i S
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
T T T T
25,147,400 23,020,389 17,536,906 14,763,907
(16,395,344) (15,934,093) (10,923.203) (9,087,136)
8,752,056 7,086,296 6,613,703 5,676,771
7,051,017 5,192,128 4591399 3,491,809
1,701,039 1,894,168 2,022,304 2,184,962
8,752,056 7,086,296 6,613,703 5,676,771
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